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;~rfns ;ldlt Joj:yfkg ;d"x

>L lagf]b 1jfnL
cWoIf

>L lzj k|;fb 1jfnL
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

>L dg?kf kf}8]n
;xfos dxfk|jGws 

-k|d'v, ljQLo Joj:yfkg ljefu_

>L rGbg s'df/ ;/bf/
k|d'v, hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ljefu

>L b]jrGb| /fo
k|d'v, shf{ ljefu

>L 6f]k axfb'/ /f:sf]6L
k|d'v, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu

>L clgn ljZjsdf{
k|d'v, cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefu

>L xf]d k|;fb clwsf/L
k|d'v, ;fdfGo ;]jf ljefu

>L ;Gtf]if kf]v/]n
;~rfns

>L k'ik/fh 9sfn
;~rfns

>L lty{ ;fu/ cof{n
;~rfns -;j{;fwf/0f_

>L lzj k|;fb 1jfnL
sDkgL ;lrj

>L uf]kfn k|;fb a:ofn
;~rfns

>L ladn cfrfo{
;~rfns -;j{;fwf/0f_

>L ;'ldt kGyL
;"rgf k|ljlw ljefu



1bzf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg cf=j= @)*!.)*@

ljifo;"rL

k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L kmf/fd_ #

bzf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f;ef ;DaGwL ;"rgf $

;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL yk hfgsf/L %

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg ^

sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !)( sf] pkbkmf $ ;Fu ;DalGwt v'nfpg'kg]{ ljj/0fx¿ !!

lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg lgodfjnL jdf]lhdsf] jflif{s ljj/0f !$

;+:yfut ;'zf;g;DaGwL jflif{s cg'kfngf k|ltj]bg !%

n]vf k/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg @$

jf;nft #)

gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa #!

OlSj6Ldf ePsf] kl/jt{g;DaGwL ljj/0f #@

gub k|jfx ljj/0f #$

gfkmf gf]S;fg afF8kmfF8 lx;fa #&

cg';"rLx¿ #*

g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ubf{ lbPsf lgb]{zgx¿ **

g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg pk/ Joj:yfkgsf] k|ltpQ/ *(

s]Gb|Lo sfof{no tyf k|b]z sfof{nodf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ljj/0f ()

zfvf k|aGwssf] ljj/0f (@

ljQLo ;+:yfsf s]xL ;"rsf+sx¿ ((

ljQLo ;+:yfsf ultljlwx¿ !))

l6kf]6 !)@
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3bzf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg cf=j= @)*!.)*@

>L ;~rfns ;ldlt,
cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
ag]kf—!), sfe|]knf~rf]s .

ljifoM k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] af/] .

dxf]bo,
========================= k|b]z ===================== lhNnf ===================  d=g=kf÷p=d=g=kf= ÷g=kf= ÷uf=kf= j8f g+= 
=============== a:g] d÷xfdL ============================================================================ n] To; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] @)*@ ;fn kf}if dlxgf @( ut] d+unjf/sf lbg x'g] bzf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf d÷xfdL :jo+ pkl:yt eO{ 
5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsf]n] pQm ;efdf efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf nflu d]/f]÷xfd|f] tkm{af6 ===============  
k|b]z ============================= lhNnf ===================  d=g=kf÷p=d=g=kf=÷g=kf=÷uf=kf= j8f g+========= a:g] To;  
ljQLo ;+:yfsf z]o/wgL >L ========================================== z]o/wgL g+= ================================= nfO{ d]/f]÷xfd|f]  
k|ltlglw dgf]lgt ul/ k7fPsf] 5'÷5f}+ 

k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ePsf] JolQmsf]
gfdM
b:tvtM	
z]o/wgL g+M=
lxtu|fxL -l8Dof6_ vftf g+M
ldltM
									         lgj]bs M
									         b:tvt M
									         gfd M 
									         7]ufgf M
									         z]o/wgL g+M=
									         lxtu|fxL -l8Dof6_ vftf g+M
									         z]o/ ;ª\VofM
									       
-b|i6AoM of] lgj]bg ;fwf/0f ;ef z'? x'g' eGbf sDtLdf $* 306f cufj} sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{nodf k]z ul/;Sg' kg]{5_

======================
z]o/wgLsf] b:tvt

======================
sDkgL ;lrj

cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
bzf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL

;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{ cfˆgf] k|ltlgwL lgo'Qm ug]{ lgj]bg -k|f]S;L kmf/d_
-sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf &! sf] pkbkmf # ;Fu ;+alGwt_

z]o/  wgLsf] gfd ================================================================= z]o/wgL g+== =============================
z]o/ k|df0f kq g+= ===================================================================z]o/ ;ª\Vof ===========================

b|i6AoM

!= z]o/wgLx¿n] dfly pNn]lvt ;Dk"0f ljj/0fx¿ clgjfo{ ¿kdf eg'{ xf]nf .
@= ;ef sIfdf k|j]z ug{ of] k|j]z kq k|:t't ug{ clgjfo{ 5 .

cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

-g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 æ3Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkq k|fKt ;+:yf_

s= b= g+= !##&*%÷)&!÷)&@
g]= /f= a}+= O= kf= g+= 3 $%÷)&@÷)&#
kfg g+= ^)@$**^@*Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

sf]
bzf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt x'g hf/L ul/Psf] 

k|j]z kq



4 bzf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg cf=j= @)*!.)*@

>L z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿,
ldlt @)*@÷)(÷)& ut] a;]sf]  ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  !&) cf} a}7ssf] lg0f{ofg';f/ o; ;+:yfsf] bzf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef  
lgDGf lnlvt ldlt, :yfg / ;dodf lgDg jdf]lhdsf k|:tfjx? Dffly 5nkmn u/L lg0f{o ug{ a:g] ePsf] xF'bf sDkgL P]g @)^# 
sf] bkmf ^& cg';f/ ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] hfgsf/Lsf] nflu of] ;"rgf k|sflzt ul/Psf] Aoxf]/f cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .

;ef x'g] ldlt,:yfg / ;do
ldlt M @)*@ kf}if @( ut] d+unaf/ -tbg';f/ !# hgj/L, @)@^_ 
:yfg M jg]kf kf6L{ e]Go' jg]kf–*, sfe|]knf~rf]s
;do M ljxfg )(M)) ah]

5nkmn tyf lg0f{osf nflu lgwf{l/t ljifo;"rL

s_ ;fdfGo k|:tfjx¿
-s_ 	;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIfHo"n] k|:t't ug'{x'g] cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] jfli{fs k|ltj]bg dfly 5nkmn u/L kf/Lt 

ug]{ . 
-v_ 	cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ sf] jflif{s n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg tyf ;f]sf cfwf/df tof/ kfl/Psf] ljQLo ljj/0fx?  

-jf;tfn, gfkmf gf]S;fg, gub k|jfx ljj/0f ;lxtsf] n]vf ljj/0f,lgb]{zg cg';f/sf cGo cg';"rLx? tyf shf{  
gf]S;fgL Joj:yfsf] ljj/0f ;d]t_ 5nkmn u/L kf/Lt ug]{ . 

-u_ 	 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DjGwL P]g,@)&# sf] bkmf ^# tyf sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !!! cg';f/ o; ljQLo ;+:Yffsf] 
cfly{s jif{ @)*@÷)*# sf] n]vfk/LIf0f sfo{sf] nflu ;f]xL P]g sf] bkmf !^%-3_ jdf]lhd n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltaf6 
l;kmfl/z eP jdf]lhd n]vfk/LIfs lgo'lQm ug]{ / lghsf] kfl/>lds tf]Sg] . -axfnjfnf n]vfk/LIfs  l;=P=b'uf{ k|;fb 
1jfnL,Pkm=l;=P=Pg=lj=P;=Pd P08 P;f]l;o6\; rf68{ PsfpG6]06\;_ k'gMlgo'Qm x'g of]Uo x'g'x'G5 ._ 

-3_ 	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)*@÷)$÷)( ut] ck/fGx %M)) ah] a;]sf] !^% cf+} a}7ssf] lg0f{ofg';f/ :yfO{ 7]ufgf 
sf=d=g=kf–@*, k|bz{gL dfu{, sf7df08f}+ lgjf;L >L ;Demgf >]i7nfO{ o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] :jtGq ;~rfnsdf ldlt 
@)*@÷)$÷!! ut] b]lv nfu' x'g] u/L lgo"Qm ul/Psf]df ;f] lgo"QmL cg'df]bg ug]{ .

v_ ljz]if k|:tfjx¿
-s_ 	eljiodf cGo s'g} ljQLo ;+:yf Ps cfk;df ufEg]÷ufleg (Merger) tyf k|fKtL÷;dflxt (Acquisition) x'g] k|of]hgsf 

nflu cfjZos sfo{x?ug{sf nflu ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ clVtof/L k|bfg ug]{ . 
-v_ 	xfn sfod /x]sf] k"FhL ;+/rgf ;+:yfks ;]o/wgLsf] tkm{af6 ^^=)$ k|ltzt / ;j{;fwf/0f ;]o/wgLsf] tkm{af6 ##=(^ 

k|ltzt ;]o/ :jfldTj /x]sf]df ;f] ;]o/ :jfldTjdf kl/jt{g ug]{ ;DaGwdf g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 æ3Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt 
n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ hf/L ul/Psf] PsLs[t lgb]{zg, @)*! sf] lgb]{zg g+=!)=!#-r_ df pNn]lvt Joj:yf, 
;+:yfks ;d'xsf] :jfldTjdf /x]sf] ;]o/ ;j{;fwf/0f ;]o/df kl/0ft ug]{ sfo{ k'FhLahf/, a}+lsª nufot ;du| ljQLo If]
qdf kg]{ k|efj ;d]tnfO{ ljrf/ u/L Psk6sdf a9Ldf !) k|ltzt laGb';Dd ug{ ;lsg] /x]sf]df k|rlnt P]g, sfg"gsf] 
bfo/f leq /x]/ ;f] ;]o/ :jfldTjdf kl/jt{g ug]{ .

-u_ 	k|jGw kq / lgodfjnL ;+zf]wg l:js[tLsf] qmddf lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 s'g} km]/jbn, yk36 ug{ lgb]{zg jf ;'emfj 
ePdf ;f]xL jdf]lhd ug{ ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ jf ;ldltn] tf]s]sf] kbflwsf/LnfO{ clVtof/L k|Tofof]hg ug]{ . 

-u_   ljljw .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] cf1fn],
sDkgL ;lrj

cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
bzf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef;DaGwL ;"rgf



5bzf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg cf=j= @)*!.)*@

!=  	 bzf}F aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef k|of]hgsf nflu ldlt @)*@÷)(÷!* ut] ! lbgsf nflu ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/wgL btf{  
lstfa aGb /xg]5 . ;fy}, g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh lnld6]8df ldlt @)*@÷)(÷!& ut] ;Dd sf/f]jf/ eO{ k|rlnt sfg"g 
adf]lhd o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf]] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ d'lQmgfy Soflk6n lnld6]8, gS;fn, sf7df08f}df k|fKt z]o/ gfd;f/L  
lnvtsf] cfwf/df z]o/wgL btf{ lstfadf sfod z]o/wgLx?n] dfq pQm ;efdf efu lng kfpg] 5g\ .

@=	 z]o/wgLx?sf] xflh/Lsf] nflu  ;ef :yndf laxfg )*=)) ah]af6 g} xflh/L k'l:tsf v'Nnf /xg]5
#=	 z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] cfˆgf] kl/ro lbg] cflwsfl/s kl/rokq tyf ;fwf/0f;ef k|of]hgfy{ hf/L k|j]z kq jf  

gful/stfsf] k|df0fkqsf] k|ltlnlk jf z]o/ k|df0fkqsf] k|ltlnlk÷lxtu|fxL vftf gDa/ lnO{ cfpg' x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .  
;ef z'? x'g' eGbf Ps 306f cufj} ;efsIfdf pkl:yt e} lbg'x'g ;d]t z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ cg'/f]w ul/G5 .

$=	 gfafns z]o/wgLx?sf] tkm{af6 ;+/Ifsn] ;efdf efu lng, 5nkmn ug{, k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug{ / dt lbg ;d]t ;Sg]5g\ . 
z]o/wgLsf] btf{ lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] ?kdf gfd n]lvPsf] JolQmnfO{ dfq ;+/Ifs dflgg]5 . 

%=	 ;+o'Qm ?kdf z]o/ u|x0f ug]{ z]o/wgLx?sf] xsdf z]o/wgLx?sf] lstfadf h;sf] gfd klxn] pNn]v ePsf] 5 ;f] JolQm 
jf ;+o'Qm z]o/wgLx?sf] ;j{;Ddltaf6 cfkm"x? dWo] lgo'Qm JolQmn] dfq ;efdf efu lng, 5nkmn ug{, k|ltlglw lgo'Qm 
ug{ / dt lbg ;Sg]5g\ .

^=	 s'g} ;+ul7t ;+:yf jf sDkgLn] z]o/ vl/b u/]sf] xsdf To:tf] ;+ul7t ;:yf jf sDkgLn] dgf]lgt u/]sf] k|ltlglwn]  
z]o/jfnfsf] x}l;otn] ;efdf efu lng kfpg]5 .

&=	 ;efdf efu lng k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug{ rfxg] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;f]xL ;d"xsf] csf]{ z]o/wgLnfO{ dfq 
k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug{ ;Sg' x'g]5 / ;f] ;DaGwL k|f]S;L kmf/d ;ef z'? x'g' eGbf $* 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo 
sfof{no, ag]kf !),sfe|]knf~rf]sdf a'emfO{ ;Sg' kg]{5 . k|f]S;L kmf/d o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Website af6 Download 
ug{ ;lsg] 5 .

*=	 ;efdf efu lng k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/L k|f]S;L ljQLo ;+:yfdf a'emfO{ ;s]kl5 ;f] k|f]S;L ab/ u/L csf]{ lbg rfx]df ;f]sf] 
;"rgf ;ef z'? x'g'eGbf $* 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf k'Ug' kg]{5 / gofF k|f]S;Lsf] xsdf lgod -%_ 
df n]lvP adf]lhd x'g]5 .

(=	 z]o/wgLn] Ps eGbf a9L k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] cj:yfdf h;sf] lgo'lQm ;a}eGbf klxn] k|fKt ePsf] xf] dfly -^_ df 
n]lvP adf]lhd ab/ ul/Pdf afx]s p;}nfO{ k|ltlglw dflgg]5 / ;efdf ;DalGwt z]o/wgL cfkm} pkl:yt x'g cfPdf  
z]o/wgLn] ul/lbPsf] k|f]S;L :jtM ab/ x'g]5 . 

!)=	 5nkmnsf] laifo cGt/ut lalaw lzif{ssf] ;DaGwdf z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] s'g} laifo pk/ 5nkmn ug{ rfx]df ;f] 
laifo jf/] ;ef x'g' eGbf & lbg cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf lnlvt hfgsf/L lbg' kg]{5 . ;f] hfgsf/L 
glbPsf] laifo pk/ k|Zg ug{ kfOg]5}g .

!!=	 ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwdf s]lx yk hfgsf/L cfaZos k/]df jf aflif{s k|lta]bg k|fKt gePdf sfof{no ;do leq 
sfof{nosf] kmf]g g+=)!!^^$%&(, ^^!))* df ;Dk{s ug'{x'g jf :jo+ pkl:yt e} hfgsf/L lng ;lsg] 5 .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] cf1fn],
sDkgL ;lrj

cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
;fwf/0f ;ef;DaGwL yk hfgsf/L



6 bzf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg cf=j= @)*!.)*@

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL tyf cfdGqLt dxfg'efjx?, 
cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] bzf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt oxfFx? ;a}nfO{ o; ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] tkm{af6 / d]/f] AolQmut tkm{af6 clejfbg ;lxt xflb{s :jfut ub{5' . cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ Dff ;+:yfn] xfFl;n 
u/]sf k|utL, k|fKt u/]sf pknlAwx?, ;+:yf ;+rfngdf ef]Ug'k/]sf r'gf}tLx? Pj+ cfufdL cNksfnLg Pj+ lb3{sflng of]hgfx? 
/ ;du| ljQLo ;+:yfsf] jflif{s ;ldIff tyf k'g/fjnf]sg ug{ sDkgL P]g @)^#, lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisf;g lgodfjnL @)&#, 
a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DjGwL P]g @)&# sf] clwgdf /xL tof/ ul/Psf] of] k|ltj]bg ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{jf6 ;+:yfsf] 
bzfF}F ;fwf/0f ;efdf oxfFx?;dIf k]z ug{ cg'dtL rfxG5' .
           
!=	 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ df ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg M
-s_ 	k|d'v ;"rsfÍM cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ sf] ;+:yfsf] cfly{s ljj/0f / k|d'v ;"rsf+sx? b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf 5g\ .                                                           

zLif{s cfiff9 d;fGt @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGt @)*! j[l4 k|ltzt

zfvf ;+Vof ! ;o #% ! ;o #% 0%

hDdf sd{rf/L $ ;o %* $ ;o %! 1.55%

;b:o ;+Vof ! nfv @ xhf/ *% (( xhf/ && 3.03%

C0fL ;+Vof #@ xhf/ # ;o %) #@ xhf/ % ;o ** -0.73%

r'Qmf k"FhL #  ̂s/f]8 &! Nfv $# xhf/ $ ;o ( #^ s/f]8 &! Nfv $# xhf/ $ ;o ( 0%

g]6 jy{ %^ s/f]8 &# nfv ! xhf/ $* s/f]8 %# nfv (* xhf/ 16.9%

shf{ ;fk6 -v'b_ # ca{ #% s/f]8 (@ nfv && xhf/ @ ca{ && s/f]8 ^* nfv (! xhf/ 21.0%

art lgIf]k ! ca{ *( s/f]8 $( nfv ! ca{ %* s/f]8 @) nfv ^$ xhf/ 19.8%

nufgLdf /x]sf]  shf{ % ca{ @  ̂s/f]8 ̂ % nfv &! xhf/ $ ca{ @$ s/f]8 @^ nfv #% xhf/ 24.1%

;~rfng d'gfkmf & s/f]8 &) nfv $! xhf/ ! s/f]8 #) nfv !* xhf/ 591.79%

s/ kl5sf] v'b  d'gfkmf * s/f]8 *) nfv $( xhf/ ^ nfv *) xhf/ 12830.0%

-v_ 	 zfvf lj:tf/M 
	 ;+:yfn] cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] cGTo;Dddf %# lhNnfx?df sfo{qmd lj:tf/ u/]sf] 5 . xfnsf] cj:yfdf ;+rfng 

nfut, shf{sf] u'0f:t/ / hf]lvdnfO{ Go"lgs/0f ;fy} ;b:osf] bf]xf]/f]kgfnfO{ dWogh/ ul/ ef}uf]lns ?kdf glhs ePsf 
zfvfx?nfO{ Ps cfk;df dh{/ u/L xfn !#% zfvf sfof{noaf6 ;]jf k|bfg ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 .

-u_ 	 u|fxs ;b:o ;+Vof yk M 
	 cf=j= @)*)÷)*! ;Dddf o; ;+:yfdf ((,)&& u|fxs ;b:ox? cfa4 ePsf]df cf=j @)*!÷)*@ df #))* hgf 

;b:ox? a9]/ ;b:osf] ;+Vof !)@,)*% k'u]sf] 5 . oL u|fxs ;b:ox? *,%)& s]Gb|df cfa4 ePsf 5g\ .

-3_ 	 art tyf shf{sf] sf/f]jf/ M
	 cf=j @)*)÷)*! c;f/ d;fGTfdf nufgLdf /lx/x]sf] s'n shf{ (Net Loan Outstanding) ?= $ ca{ @$ s/f]8 @^ 

nfv #% xhf/ # ;o &^ ePsf]df cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df ;f] /sddf ! ca{ @ s/f]8 #( nfv % xhf/ & ;o !% n] 
a9]/ @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtdf % ca{ @^ s/f]8 ^% nfv &! xhf/ (! k'u]sf] 5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! df ;b:ox?sf] art 
lgIf]k ?= ! ca{ %* s/f]8 @) nfv ^$ xhf/ ! ;o *) /x]sf]df ;ldIff calwdf ?=#! s/f]8 @* nfv #^ xhf/ ! 
;o @ n] a9]/ aiff{Gtdf ! ca{ *( s/f]8 $( nfv @ ;o *! k'u]sf] 5 . 

cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf]
bzf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf cWoIfHo"af6 k|:t't

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg  -@)*!÷)*@_
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-ª_ 	 dfgj ;+zfwg tflnd tyf j[lQ ljsf; M 
	 ;+:yfsf] bL3{sfnLg ;kmntfsf] nflu ;+:yfdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?sf] bIftf, dgf]jn tyf pTk|]/0ffsf] d"Vo e'ldsf x'g]  

s'/fnfO{ cfTd;ft u/L sd{rf/Lx?sf] 5gf}6, ;?jf, j9'jf, tflnd tyf j[lQ ljsf; ;DjGwL pko'Qm gLlt jgfO{ sfof{Gjog 
ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . dfgj ;+;fwgsf] bIftfdf clej[l4 u/L ;do / kl/j]z cg';f/ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ k|lt:kwL{ jftfj/0fdf 
Ifdtfjfg agfpg cfGtl/s tyf afXo tflnd lbO{ pgLx?sf] j[lQ ljsf; ub}{ hfg] gLlt /x]sf] 5 . 

-r_ 	 nufgLM 
	 ;+:yfn] g]kfn lkmg;K6 sDkgL lnld6]8sf] ;+:yfks z]o/df ?= !) nfv nufgL u/]sf] 5 .

@  	 /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltaf6 sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/df k/]sf] c;/M
  	 a}+lsª If]qdf b]vfk/]sf] gsf/fTds k|efj ;fy} C0f lnP/ C0f ltg{ kb}{g eGg] dg;foaf6 >[ª\vnfa4 ?kdf cl:y/  

/fhlgltsf] kmfObf p7fpFb} n3'laQ ;+:yf lj?4 eO/x]sf] cfGbf]ngn] shf{ c;'nLdf ;d:of >[hgf u/L shf{sf] u'0f:t/df  
;d]t k|efj kf/]sf] 5 . h;af6 OdfGbf/ / ;sf/fTds ORIffzlQm ePsf u|fxs ;b:onfO{ ;d]t shf{ tyf art sf/f]af/df  
;d]t l4ljwf pTkGg ePsf] / sd{rf/Lsf] dgf]jndf ;d]t gsf/fTds k|efj kfl//x]sf]n] ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfly{s jif{ leq 
xfl;n ug{ ;Sg] pknlAwnfO{ ;d]t ;+s'lrt agfPsf] 5 .

#= 	 jt{dfg cj:yf / efjL sfo{qmd M
-s_ 	 rfn' cfly{s jif{df ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/M
	 nlIft ju{ klxrfg ul/ ljQLo kx'Fr lj:tf/ ug]{ qmddf ldlt @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGtkl5  xfn ;Dd u|fld0f If]qdf /x]/ klg 

pTkfbgd"ns sfo{ / To; ;+u ;DjlGwt ;Lk tyf gub cfDbfgLsf >f]tx?af6 pBd;Lntf ljsf;df hf]8 lbg ;j{k|yd 
s]Gb| a}7s ;'wf/ tyf Joj:yfkg / ;d"xdf cfj4 ;b:ox?nfFO{ ;Lkd"ns tflnd ;+u} ljQLo ;fIf/tfsf sfo{qmdx?nfO{ 
rfn' cfly{s jif{sf] ;'?b]lv g} k|efjsf/L ?kdf sfof{Gjog ul/Psf] Joxf]/f ;ef ;dIf /fVg rfxG5' .

	 ;+:yfsf] zfvf ;+~hfn , ;Defljt hf]lvd / nfut vr{ Go"lgs/0fdf hf]8 lbFb} ef}uf]lns ?kdf glhs /x]sf zfvf 
sfof{nox? Ps cfk;df dh{ ug]{ p4]Zo jdf]lhd ljleGg !$ j6f zfvf sfof{nox? dh{ ug{sf nflu g]kfn /fi6« a}+s 
;dIf cfjZos sfuhft k]z ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy} gofF ;Defjgf ePsf :yflgo lgsfodf n3'ljQ ;+:yfsf] pkl:ylt gePsf] 
;'b'/ klZrd k|b]zsf 8f]6L,89]Nw'/f,sGrgk'/ / s}nfnL  lhNnfx?df rfn' cfly{s jif{sf] ebf} !% ut] b]lv % j6f gofF 
zfvf ;~rfngdf cfPsf] hfgsf/L ;d]t u/fpg rfxG5' .

	 ;Defjgfsf] klxrfg u/L cj;/df jbNg] / ;+rfng hf]lvd Go"lgs/0fsf nflu Joj:yfkgnfO{ k'0f{ ?kdf ;xof]u ub}{ 
;+:yf cuf8L a9fpg ;~rfns ;ldlt k|ltj4 /x]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' .

	 ut cfly{s jif{sf] cGTo ;Dd ljutdf sd{rf/Lx?af6 ePsf cfly{s ckrng ;DjlGw d'4fx? lsgf/f nufO ;+:yfn] 
dfu bfjL u/]sf] ljuf]jfktsf] /sd c;'n ug{ sfg"gL k|lqmofx?nfO{  k5\ofpb} ax; k}/jL nfO{ pRr k|fyldstfdf /fVbf 
;d]t ;DjlGwt sd{rf/LnfO{ cbfntn] s;'/ 7x/ u/]sf] t/ ljuf] sfod gu/]sf] cj:yf 5 o:tf] cj:yfn] ubf{ cfufdL 
lbgdf ljuf] jfktsf] /sd ;DjlGwt kIfaf6 c;'n ug{ ;+rfns ;ldlt / pRr Joj:yfkg ljleGg lgsfo ;+u lg/Gt/ 
5nkmn tyf ;dGjo ub}{ cufl8 j9L/x]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' . 
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	 rfn' cfly{s jif{sf] sflt{s dlxgf ;Ddsf] ljQLo ljj/0f lgDg cg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .

ljj/0f PsfO{ sflt{s d;fGt @)*@

lhNnf ;+Vof 57

Zffvf sfof{no ;+Vof 140

sd{rf/L ;+Vof 467

u|fxs ;b:o ;+Vof 104,508

C0fL ;b:o ;+Vof 32,668

nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{ ?= % ca{ &@ s/f]8 !@ nfv @@ xhf/

art df}Hbft ?= ! ca{ (@ s/f]8 $! nfv *% xhf/

v'b gfkmf ?= (& nfv ( xhf/ 
 
-v_ 	;+:yfsf] pGgltsf] nflu eljiodf ug{'kg]{ s'/fsf] of]hgfsf] ;DjGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] 5M
    	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+s af6 Ohfhtkq k|fKt 3 ju{sf n3'ljQ ljQLo ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lxtdf hf/L ePsf] Plss[t lgb]{Zfgsf] 

clwgdf /xL  o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lxtsf] nflu ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff lgDgjdf]lhd /x]sf] 5 M
•	 ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ yk k|efjsf/L jgfpg] / ;+:yfsf] lb3{sfnLg >f]t Joj:yfkgsf nflu ;b:od}qL 

jrt a[l4sf nflu hf]8 lbg] .
•	 ;Defjgfsf] klxrfg ub}{ ljQLo kx'Fr lj:tf/df u'0f:t/Lo shf{ nufgL / shf{ ;b'kof]uLtf ;DjGwdf ljQLo ;fIf/tf 

clea[l4 ug{ sd{rf/Lsf] Ifdtf clea[l4, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg / ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf nflu cfjZos /0fgLlt th{'df u/L 
nfu' ub}{ n}hfg]  .

•	 Kf|lt:kwf{Tds u|fxsd'vL ;]jf / ;'lawfx? k|bfg ug{'kg]{ tyf ;"rgf k|ljlwsf] pRrtd k|of]u ug'{kg]{ cfaZostf cg'?k 
k|ljlw d}lq ;]jf df hf]8 lbOg]5 .

•	 u|fxssf] dfu / cfjZostf cg';f/ shf{, jrt tyf cGo n3'ljQ ;]jfx?df lgodg lgsfosf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ kl/dfh{g 
tyf yk ;]jfx?sf] lj:tf/ ub}{ n}hfg] .

-$_ 	 sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus jf Joj;flos ;DaGw M
	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgodgsf/L ;+:yfx? g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn :6s 

PS;r]Gh ln=, l;l8P; P08 lSnol/+Ë ln= nufot cGo lgsfox?;Fu ;'dw'/ ;DaGw /x]sf] 5 . ;+:yfn] /fli6«o tyf 
cGt/f{li6«o ;+3 ;+:yf, sDkgL, JolQm tyf cGo ;/f]sf/ jfnfx?;+u ;'dw'/ Aoj;flos ;DjGw sfod /x]sf] 5 / o; 
;DjGwnfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbO{g] 5 .

-%_  ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj / u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifM
-s_ 	 ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTjM 
	 ;+:yfn] ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj cGt{ut ljleGg ;fdflhs sfo{x?sf] nflu ;xof]u ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . o; sf]ifdf 

pknJw /sd dWo]jf6 cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df ljQLo ;fIf/tf sfo{qmd ;~rfng ug{ / ;dfhdf of]ubfg k'Ug] lx;fjn] 
ljleGg ;fdflhs ;+3 ;+:yfx?nfO{ ljleGg ;fdflhs tyf ;fd'bflos sfo{sf] nflu ?=% nfv (! xhf/ $ ;o %%  
;xof]u k|bfg ul/Psf] lyof] . 

-v_ 	 u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if M 
	 ;+:yfn] u|fxs ;b:ox?sf] lxt tyf ;+:yfut ljsf;df of]ubfg k'/fpgsf] nflu k|To]s jif{sf] gfkmfaf6 lglZrt k|ltzt 

/sd 5'6\ofO{ u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if v8f u/]sf] 5 . o;sf] ;~rfngsf] nflu Pp6f cnUu} u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if ;~rfng 
sfo{ljlw tof/ u/L nfu' u/]sf] 5 .
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    	 af9L klx/f], cfunfuL h:tf b}jL k|sf]k tyf ljkQLaf6 lkl8t u|fxs ;b:ox? tyf lghx?sf] kl/jf/sf] :jf:Yo pkrf/, 
lgh jf lghsf] kl/jf/sf] ;b:osf] d[To', dlxnf ;b:ox? ;'Ts]/L x'Fbf cfly{s ;xof]u k|bfg ug{ u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if  
k|of]u ul/G5 To:t} u|fxs ;b:ox?sf] nflu tflnd uf]i7L ;~rfng cfbL sfo{ ug{ klg o; sf]ifsf] k|of]u ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 .  
cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df o; sf]ifaf6 ?= !% nfv &! xhf/ $ ;o %# pk/f]Qm sfo{df ;xof]u ul/Psf] 5  .

  
-^_  	sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx? M
	 ;+:yfsf] sf/f]jf/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx? b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 .
-s_ 	n3'ljQ ;+:yfx? nlIft gsf/fTds ;fdflhs l6Kk0fLx?,
-v_ 	a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?sf] t/ntfdf ;+s'rg cfpFbf ljQLo >f]tdf x'g ;Sg] k|efj
-u_ 	g]kfn ;/sf/ tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfox?af6 ;do ;dodf kl/jt{g x'g] gLlt lgod Pj+ b]zsf] cfly{s, df}lb|s, tyf ljQLo 

gLlt  nufot g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 k|fKt lgodg lgb]{zgsf] ck|Toflzt k|efjaf6 ;Defljt hf]lvd, 
-3_ 	b'u{d :yfgdf sfo{qmd ;~rfng ug{ cfjZos e/kbf]{ k"jf{wf/ h:t} ljh'nL, OG6/g]6,  af6f]3f6f], ;'/Iff tyf bIf hgzlQm 

cfbLsf] sldn] ;[hgf x'g] sl7gfOx?,
-ª_	 k|fs[lts k|sf]ksf] sf/0fn] a]nf a]nfdf cfO{kg]{ ;d:ofx? .
-r_ 	k"FhL ahf/df cfpg ;Sg] ptf/r9fjaf6 x'g ;Sg] hf]lvdx?,
   	 pk/f]Qm s'/fx?nfO{ ;~rfns ;ldltn] dgg u/L To;sf] k|efjnfO{ sd ug{ ;b}j k|lta4 /xg] 5 .

&= 	 n]vfkl/If0f k|ltj]bg / ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof M
   	 o; k|ltj]bg ;fy ;+nUg n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg / n]vf ljj/0fx?n] ;+:yfsf] oyfy{ l:yltsf] lrq0f u/]sf] 5 . ;+:yfsf] 

lgoldt sf/f]jf/sf] l;nl;nfdf b]lvPsf ;fdfGo l6Kk0fL afx]s cGo s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v gePsf] .

*= 	 nfef+z aFf8kmfF8 ;DaGwdf M
   	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df s'g} klg nfef+z ljt/0f ug{ k|:tfj u/]sf] 5}g . 

(= 	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL M
	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0fsf] nflu ;+:yfn] ljleGg k4tLx?sf] lasf; u/]sf] 5 . ;+:yfn] hf]lvdnfO{ Go'lgs/0f ug{sf nflu 

k|zf;lgs lgoGq0f, ah]6/L lgoGq0f, cgnfO{g sDKo"6/s[t clen]v k|0ffnL, lgoldt cg'udg, cfGtl/s n]vfkl/If0f 
h:tf sfo{x? r':t ?kdf ul/Psf] 5 . sDkgLnfO{ ;'–Jojl:yt ?kdf ;~rfng ug{sf nfuL cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL, 
sd{rf/L ;]jf ljlgodfjnL, shf{ ckn]vg ljlgodfjnL, shf{ gLlt, ;"rgf k|lalw gLlt, ;DklQ bfloTj Aoa:yfkg gLlt, 
nufgL gLlt, n]vfk/LIf0f gLlt, hf]lvd Aoj:yfkg gLlt ljQLo hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldIff sfo{ljlw, ;DklQ u'0f:t/ 
;ldIff sfo{ljlw, tYof+s ljZj;gLotf hfFr sfo{ljlw nufotsf ljlgodfjnL, sfo{ljlw tyf gLlt lgb]{lzsfx? cflb 
tof/ u/L nfu" ul/Psf] 5 . To;}u/L g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L lgb]{zgx?sf] cg'kfngf x'g] ul/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf ;b:o 
;+of]hs /xg] ul/ ljleGg ;ldltx? u7g u/L cfGt/Ls lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ yk k|efjsf/L agfOPsf] 5 .

-s_	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt M 
	 ;+:yfsf ;~rfns >L lty{ ;fu/ cof{nsf] ;+of]hsTjdf k|d'v cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ljefu ;b:o ;lrj /x]sf] o; 

;ldltsf] a}7s cf=j @)*!÷)*@ df % k6s a;]sf] lyof] . o; ;ldltsf] sfd st{Jo / clwsf/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 
hf/L lgb]{zg jdf]lhd /x]sf] 5 .
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-v_	 hf]lvd Aoa:yfkg ;ldlt M 
	 ;~rfns >L ljdn cfrfo{ ;+of]hs /x]sf] o; ;ldltdf n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;+of]hs kb]g ;b:o, k|d'v shf{  

ljefu ;b:o ;lrj /x]sf] o; ;ldltsf] a}7s cf=j @)*!÷)*@ df $ k6s a;]sf] lyof] . o; ;ldltsf] sfd st{Jo /  
clwsf/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L lgb]{zg jdf]lhd /x]sf] 5 .

-u_	 sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'lawf ;ldlt M 
	 ;~rfns >L ;Gtf]if kf]v/]nsf]] ;+of]hsTjdf sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt /x]sf] 5 . o; ;ldltdf ;~rfns k|d'v 

sfo{sf/L clws[t kb]g ;b:o, k|d'v ljQ laefu ;b:o / k|d'v dfgj ;+;fwg Joj:yfkg ljefu ;b:o ;lrj /x]sf] o; 
;ldltsf] a}7s cf=j @)*!÷)*@ df @ k6s a;]sf] lyof] . o; ;ldltsf] sfd st{Jo / clwsf/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 
hf/L lgb]{zg jdf]lhd /x]sf] 5 .

-3_	 ;DklQ z'l4s/0f cg'udg ;ldltM 
	 ;~rfns >L k'ik/fh 9sfnsf] ;+of]hs /x]sf] o; ;ldltdf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t kb]g ;b:o, k|d'v shf{ ljefu 

;b:o / k|d'v ;~rfng ljefu ;b:o ;lrj /x]sf] o; ;ldltsf] a}7s cf=j @)*!÷)*@ df $ k6s a;]sf] lyof] . o; 
;ldltsf] sfd st{Jo / clwsf/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L lgb]{zg jdf]lhd /x]sf] 5 .

!)= 	 ;"rgfsf] Joj:yf M
	 ;+:yfn] z]o/wgLx?;Fu ;"rgf cfbfg k|bfg ug]{ sfo{nfO{ pRr k|fyldstf lbPsf] 5 . jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf 

z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?;Fusf] k|ToIf ;+jfbsf] dfWodaf6 ;+:yfn] dfu{ lgb]{zg k|fKt ug]{ u/]sf] 5 . ;+:yfsf] jflif{s 
k|ltj]bg, q}dfl;s k|ltj]bg nufot cGo hfgsf/Lx? ljleGg ;~rf/ dfWod, kqklqsf Pj+ ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6  
www.aarambhachautari.com åf/f pknAw u/fpg] ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy} ;"rgfsf] xs ;DaGwL P]g, @)^$ bkmf ^ sf] 
pkbkmf æ3Æ adf]lhdsf] ljj/0fx? k|To]s q}odf;sf] cGTodf /fli6«o b}lgs klqsf dfkm{t ;fj{hlgs ug]{ ul/Psf]  5 .

  
cGTodf,
cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?af6 k|fKt /rgfTds ;Nnfx ;'emfj, dfu{bz{g / ljZjf;sf] sf/0f ;+rfns ;ldlt ;fy}  
Joj:yfkgsf sd{Rff/Lx?sf] pRr dgf]jnn] ;+:yfut ;'b[9Ls/0fdf 6]jf ldn]sf] 5 . o;/L k|fKt k|ToIf ck|ToIf ;xof]u Pj+ 
ljZjf;sf nflu ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 z]o/wgL dxfg'efx?k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf AoQm ub{5f}+ . o; ;+:yfsf] lg/Gt/ 
dfu{ bz{gsf ;fy k|f]T;fxg ug]{ >L g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, >L sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfo{fno, >L g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, >L g]kfn :6s  
PS;r]Gh, >L l;l8P; P08 lSnol/Ë ln=, g]kfn ;/sf/ / :yfgLo lgsfox?, ;+:yfsf u|fxs ;b:ox?, ljleGg a}+s tyf ljQLo 
;+:yfx?, z]o/ /lh:6«f/ d'lQmgfy Soflk6n ln=, ljleGg ;+3 ;+:yf nufot cGo ljleGg lgsfosf kbflwsf/Lx?, kqsf/x?, Pj+ 
cGo ;Dk"0f{ z'e]R5'sx? k|lt ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s cfef/ Pj+ s[t1tf JoQm ub{5f}+ . ;+:yfn] cfhsf] lbg;Dd 
xfl;n u/]sf] pknlAwsf] nflu pNn]lvt ;+:yfx?sf] ;xof]u ;b\efjsf] ;fy;fy} ;+:yfsf] Joj:yfkg / sd{rf/Lx?sf] ldlxg]
taf6 ;Dej ePsf]n] o; cj;/df Joj:yfkg ;d'x nufot ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ xflb{s wGojfb 1fkg ub{5f}+ . ;fy} cfufdL 
lbgx?df klg lg/Gt/ ;xof]u k|fKt eO{/xg]df ljZj:t 5f}+ . o; bzf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt eO{ sfo{qmdsf] ul/df a9fO 
lbg'ePsf]df pkl:yt ;a}k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf JoQm ub{5' .

wGojfb Û

						      lagf]b 1jnL
						      cWoIf
						      @)*@ kf}if @( ut] 
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cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf]
sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)( sf] pkbkmf $ adf]lhd v'nfpg'kg]{ ljj/0fx¿M

-s_ 	 ljut jif{sf] sf/f]jf/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg  M 
	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf lj:t[t ¿kdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

-v_ 	 /fli6«o cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltaf6 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]jf/nfO{ s'g} c;/ k/]sf] eP ;f] c;/ M
    	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf lj:t[t ¿kdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

-u_ 	 k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt;Dd rfn' jif{sf] pknlAw / eljiodf ug'{kg]{ s'/fsf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff M
	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

-3_ 	 sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus jf Aoj;flos ;DaGwM 
	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf lj:t[t ¿kdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

-ª_ 	 ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f]sf] sf/0fM 
	 ;ldIff cjlwdf ;~rfns ;ldltdf ldlt @)*!.!).!$ ut] r'gfa eO{ gofF  ;~rfns lgo'lQ ul/of] / ;~rfns  

;ldltsf ;b:o >L ljgf]b 1jfnLnfO{ ;~rfns ;ldltsf cWoIodf dgf]lgt ul/Psf] .   

-r_ 	 sf/f]jf/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx¿M
	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf lj:t[t ¿kdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

-5_ 	 n]vf k/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ffM
        ;~rfns ;ldltsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

-h_ 	 nfef+z afF8kmfF8 ug{ l;kmfl/; ul/Psf] /sdM
    	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df s'g}klg nfe+fz ljt/0f ug]{ k|:tfj gu/]sf] .

-em_ 	 z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/ ;ª\Vof, To:tf] z]o/sf] cª\lst d"No, To:tf] z]o/ hkmt x'g'eGbf cufj} 
;f]afkt sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ laqmL u/L sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /sd 
tyf hkmt ePsf] z]o/afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0fM 

    		 cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df ljQLo ;+:yfn] s'g} z]o/ hkmt u/]sf] 5}g .

-`_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / o;sf] ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/sf] k|ult / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] cGtdf /x]sf] l:yltsf] 
k'g/fjnf]sg M

	 cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df ;+:yfsf] k|ultsf] ;DaGwdf d"n k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v eO;s]sf] 5 . ;+:yfsf] s'g} ;xfos sDkgL 
g/x]sf] Joxf]/f cjut u/fpFb5f}+ .

-6_ 	 sDkgL tyf To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{df ;DkGg u/]sf] k|d'v sf/f]af/x¿ / ;f] cjlwdf sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/
df cfPsf] s'g} dxŒjk"0f{ kl/jt{gM

	 ;+:yfsf] s'g} ;xfos sDkgL gePsf] ;fy} ljut cfly{s jif{df ;+:yfn] n3'ljQ sf/f]af/ u/]sf] / o;} cjlwdf s'g} 
dxŒjk"0f{ kl/jt{g gePsf] .

-7_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx¿n] sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/LM
	 ljut cfly{s jif{df s'g} o:tf] hfgsf/L ;+:yfnfO{ k|fKt gePsf] .
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-8_	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx¿n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f / sDkgLsf] z]o/ 
sf/f]af/df lghx¿ ;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx¿af6 sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/LM

	 cfly{s aif{ @)*!÷)*@ cfiff9 d;fGtdf o; ;+:yfsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx¿n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] 
ljj/0f lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 M

!_  	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf kbflwsf/LM

qm=;+ gfd kb u|x0f u/]sf] z]o/ ;ª\Vof

! >L lagf]b 1jfnL cWoIo !^,#(& lsQf

@ >L ;Gtf]if kf]v/]n ;~rfns *,*)* lsQf

# >L k'ik/fh 9sfn ;~rfns *,#%( lsQf

$ >L uf]kfn j:ofn ;~rfns *,#%( lsQf

% >L ladn cfrfo{ ;~rfns !#!  lsQf

^ >L lty{ ;fu/ cof{n ;~rfns @)) lsQf

@_	  Joj:yfkg kbflwsf/L

qm=;+ gfd kb u|x0f u/]sf] z]o/ ;ª\Vof

! >L lzj k|;fb 1jfnL k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t %,)@$ lsQf

	 ;~rfnsx¿ o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/df ;+nUg /x]sf] hfgsf/L k|fKt ePsf] 5}g . Joj:yfkgdf ;+nUg kbflwsf/Lx¿n] 
;+:yfaf6 z'? lgisf;gdf ul/Psf] z]o/ vl/b ug]{ afx]s ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/df ;+nUg ePsf] hfgsf/L k|fKt ePsf]  
5}g .

-9_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;Fu ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx¿df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut 
:jfy{sf] af/]df pknAw u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Joxf]/fM 

   	 ljut cfly{s jif{df s'g} o:tf] hfgsf/L ;+:yfnfO{ k|fKt ePsf] 5}g .

-0f_ 	 sDkgLn] cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm}n] vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfˆgf] z]o/ vl/b ug'{sf] sf/0f, To:tf] z]o/sf] ;ª\Vof / cl°t  
d"No tyf To;/L z]o/ vl/b u/]afkt sDkgLn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sdM       

   	 ;+:yfn] xfn;Dd cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm} vl/b u/]sf] 5}g .

-t_	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] eP To;sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f M  
    	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .      
           
-y_ 	 ljut cfly{s jif{sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f M
      	cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{ lgDg jdf]lhd /x]sf] 5 .
							             /sd ?= df

sd{rf/L vr{ @#!,^^%,($(÷–

cGo ;+rfng vr{ &),$(*,&(^÷–

s'n Aoj:yfkg vr{ #)@,!^$,&$%÷–

							    
-b_ 	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿sf] gfdfjnL, lghx¿n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf, ;f] ;ldltn] u/]sf]  

sfd sf/afxLsf] ljj/0f / ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'emfj lbPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M
   	 >L g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg / k|rlnt sfg'gL k|fjwfg cg'?k ;~rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfnssf]  

;+of]hsTjdf n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 . o; ;ldltn] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL lj:t[t sfo{ k|0ffnL 
tof/ u/L ;f]sf] cfwf/df cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f u/fpg] u/]sf] / k|rlnt sfg'g tyf >L g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L ul/Psf 
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lgodg Joj:yfx? kfngf u/]÷gu/]sf] ;DaGwdf ;dLIff ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . o; ;ldltn] ;+:yfsf] ;du| ljQLo cj:yf,  
cfGtl/s lgoGq0f, n]vfk/LIf0f of]hgf / cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0fdf cf}+NofOPsf ljifox?df cfjlws ?kdf ;dLIff u/L ;f]  
;DaGwdf ckgfpg' kg]{ ;hutf tyf sbd af/] Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] sfo{ ub{5 . 

	 o; cltl/Qm, ;ldltn] afXo n]vfk/LIfsn] k]z u/]sf] n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf cf}FNofOPsf s}lkmotx? pk/ 
;dLIff u/L ;'wf/fTds sbd rfNg Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] nufot g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 ;+:yfsf] lg/LIf0f tyf  
;'kl/j]If0f u/L ;+:yfnfO{ k]z u/]sf] k|ltj]bgdf cf}FNofOPsf s}lkmotx?sf] sfof{Gjog eP÷gePsf] ;DaGwdf ;dLIff u/L tL  
ljifox?sf] clen]v /fvL ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;d]t hfgsf/L u/fpg] / ;+:yfsf] sfd sf/afxLdf lgoldttf,  
ldtJolotf, cf}lrTotf, k|efjsfl/tf h:tf s'/fx? cjnDjg eP÷gePsf] af/] ;dLIff u/L ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ 
cfjZos ;'emfj klg lbg] u/]sf] 5 . 

	 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ df n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] hDdf % j6f a}7s a;]sf] lyof] h;sf] ljj/0f lgDg cg';f/ /x]sf] 
5 M 

;b:ox¿sf] gfdfjnL a}7s ;ª\Vof a}7s eQf

!= >L lbks ltjf/L      ! %,)))÷–

@= >L s]zj/fh kGyL      $ @),)))÷–

#= >L k'ik/fh 9sfn      # !%,)))÷–

$= >L lty{ ;fu/ cof{n      ! %,)))÷–
     
-w_ 	 ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{  

sDkgL jf ;Ful7t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL eP ;f] s'/f M
    	 o; ;+:yfsf ;~rfns sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf]  

kmd{ sDkgL jf ;Ful7t ;+:yfn] o; sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL gePsf] .

-g_ 	 ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf kbflwsf/Lx¿nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd M
!=	 ;~rfnsx?nfO{ kfl/>ldssf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5}g . ;~rfns ;ldltsf] jf cGo pk;ldltsf] j}7sdf pkl:yt eP 

afkt cWoIfnfO{ k|lt j}7s ?= ^,)))÷ / cGo ;~rfnsnfO{ k|lt a}7s ?= %,))).– sf b/n] a}7s eQf k|bfg ug]{  
afx]s cGo s'g} kfl/>lds tyf ;'lawf k|bfg ul/Psf] 5}g .

@= 	 k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] /sdM    
      	cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ ?= $,)*@,*))÷— -cIf]/]kL ?= rfln; nfv aof;L xhf/ cf7 

;o dfq_ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5 .

-k_ 	 z]o/wgLx¿n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sd M
	 gub nfef+z ?= !%,$(,%%)=(% /x]sf] .

-km_ 	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DklQ v/Lb jf laqmL u/]sf] s'/fsf] ljj/0f M
    	 o; cfly{s jif{df ;+:yfn] sfo{;~rfng tyf sfo{qmd lj:tf/ ubf{ cfjZos kg]{ ;DklQx¿ v/Lb u/]sf] ePklg  

>L g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg tyf bkmf !$! sf] k|lts"n x'g] u/L ;DklQ vl/b ul/Psf] 5}g .

 -a_ 	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgL aLr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/0f M
    	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgL aLr sf/f]af/ gePsf] .

-e_ 	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# tyf k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg' kg{] cGo s'g} s'/f M
    	 k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg'kg]{ ljj/0f v'nfOPsf] 5 . v'nfpg'kg]{ cGo s'g} ljj/0f 5}g .

-d_ 	 cGo cfjZos s'/fx¿ M 
	 a}+ssf] ;~rfns, k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t, sDkgL ;lrjsf] bfh', efO{, klt, klTg, 5f]/f, 5f]/L jf glhssf gft]bf/ 

lgodgsf/L lgsfo jf sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{nodf clws[t:t/ jf ;f] eGbf dflysf] kbdf sfo{/t gePsf] .
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!= 	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg M jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] .
@= 	 n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg M jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] .
#= 	 n]vf k/LIf0f ePsf] ljQLo ljj/0f M jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] .
$= 	 sfg"gL sf/jfxL ;DaGwL ljj/0f M
-s_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfKfm\gf] b}lgs Aoj;flos sf/f]jf/sf] l;nl;nf;Fu ;DalGwt d'2f dfldnfx¿ jfx]s ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ 

cltl/Qm ljQLo Jooef/ x'g] lsl;dsf d'4f dfldnfx¿ gePsf] .
-v_ 	;dLIff cjlwdf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnsn] jf ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnssf] lj?4df k|rlnt lgodsf] cj1f 

jf kmf}hbf/L ck/fw u/]sf] ;DjGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] .
-u_ 	 ;dLIff cjlwdf s'g} ;+:yfks jf ;~rfns lj?4 cfly{s ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] .
%= 	 ;Ful7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/ tyf k|ult ljZn]if0f M
-s_ 	 lwtf]kq ahf/df ePsf] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ ;DaGwdf Joj:yfkgsf] wf/0ff M
	 ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] ahf/ d"No / sf/f]jf/sf] lgwf{/0f g]kfn g]kfn :6s PS:r]Ghsf] v'nf ahf/ k|lqmofdf lge{/ x'g] ePsf]n]  

Joj:yfkgsf] 5'§} wf/0ff 5}g .
-v_ 	o; cjlwsf] z]o/sf] clwstd, Go"gtd, clGtd d"No, sf/f]af/ ePsf] s"n lbg tyf sf/f]af/ ;ª\Vof M

ljj/0f @)*! c;f]h d;fGt @)*! kf}if d;fGt @)*! r}q d;fGt @)*@ c;f/ d;fGt

clwstd d'No -?=_ !$$@             !!*% !,@*$=( !!%@

Go"gtd d'No -?=_ (*@ (*^ !))) !)))

clGtd d'No -?=_ !)*) !)@!=@ !)^&=)# !)*&=$!

sf/f]jf/ z]o/ lsQf ^!@,)#% !,*@,%(! $)%,((& !#&,*!^

sf/f]jf/ ;+Vof !!^)) #^@# ^%$$ #!@$

s'n sf/f]af/ lbg %& %% %^ ^#

^= 	 ;d:of tyf r'gf}tL M
	 -s_ cfGtl/s
   	 	    j[l4 eO{/x]sf] ;~rfng vr{
	 	    u|fdL0f If]qdf sfd ug]{ lkmN8 :t/sf hgzlQmsf] cefj 
	 	    j9\bf] lgliqmo shf{sf] c+z
	 -v_ afXo
   	 	    n3'ljQ ;+:yf lj?4sf] c/fhs tyf u}/sfg'gL ultljlw 
	 	    c:j:y k|ltZkwf{
	 	    shf{sf] bf]x/f]kgf
	 	    cl:y/ ;fdflhs / /fhg}lts l:ylt
	 	    ljZj cy{tGqdf cfPsf] ;+s'rg
&=	 /0fgLlt
	 	    sfo{ Ifdtf clej[[l4 u/L k|zf;lgs s'zntfdf ;'wf/ug]{,
	 	    shf{sf] u'0f:t/ / hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] ;'b[9Ls/0fdf hf]8 lbg],
	 	    u|fxs tyf cleefjsx¿df ljQLo ;r]tgf hufO{ gub c;'nLdf hf]8 lbg],
	 	    :yfgLo lgsfo tyf ;/f]sf/jfnfx¿;Fusf] ;dGjonfO{ yk k|efjsf/L agfpg],
	 	    sd{rf/Lx¿sf] Ifdtf tyf bIftf clej[l4sf sfo{qmdx¿nfO{ hf]8 lbg],
	 	    bL3{sfnLg ljQLo ;|f]tnfO{ Wofgdf /fvL ;+:yfdf cfj4 ;b:ox¿af6 jrt j[l4nfO{ hf]8 lbg] .
*= 	 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g M
   	 ;+:yfn] ;+:yfut ;'zf;gnfO{ pRr dxŒj lbO{ g]kfn /fi6« j}+ssf] lgb]{zg tyf cGo ;DalGwt P]g lgodx¿sf] k"0f{ kfngf  

ul//x]sf] 5 .

cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf]
lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg lgodfjnL @)&# sf]

lgod @^ sf] pklgod -@_ ;Fu ;Da4 cg';"rL !% adf]lhdsf] jflif{s ljj/0f M
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!= ;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f
-s_ 	;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfsf] gfd tyf lgo'lQm ldlt M
       >L lagf]b 1jfnL	 @)*!÷!)÷!$
-v_ 	;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf ;DaGwL ljj/0f -;+:yfks, ;j{;fwf/0f tyf cGo_M

qm=;+= :jfldTj ljj/0f s'n z]o/ /sd k|ltzt

! ;+:yfks @$@,$$$,$^*.– ^^=)$

@ ;j{;fwf/0f !@$,^(*,($!.– ##=(^

hDdf #^&,!$#,$)(.– !))

-u_	 ;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

qm=
;

;~rfnsx¿sf] 
gfd  

7]ufgf k|ltlglwTj 
ePsf] ;d"x

z]o/ 
;ª\Vof

;~rfns lgo'Qm 
ePsf] ldlt

;~rfns 
lgo'lQmsf] 
tl/sf

!= >L lagf]b 1jfnL s';'dvf]nf –)#, kfNkf ;+:yfks !^,#(& @)*!÷!)÷!$ lgjf{rg

@ >L ;Gtf]if kf]v/]n ;'Gb/k'/ –)!, df]/ª ;+:yfks *,*)* @)*!÷!)÷!$ lgjf{rg

#= >L k'ik/fh 9sfn ;fv/ – )(, :ofª\hf ;+:yfks *,#%( @)*!÷!)÷!$ lgjf{rg

$= >L uf]kfn j:ofn bf]efg –)!, kfNkf ;+:yfks *,#%( @)*!÷!)÷!$ lgjf{rg

%= >L ljdn cfrfo{ rG›u9L –)^, emfkf ;j{;fwf/0f !#! @)*!÷!)÷!$ lgjf{rg

^= >L lty{ ;fu/ cof{n ch{'g rf}kfgL –$, :ofËhf ;j{;fwf/0f @)) @)*!÷!)÷!$ lgjf{rg

-3_	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s M

qm=;+= a}7ssf] ldlt pkl:yt ;+rfns ;+Vof a}7s g+= a}7ssf] lg0f{odf leGg dt 
/fVg] ;+rfns ;+Vof

s}lkmot

! @)*!÷)$÷)& % hgf !%! 5}g .

@ @)*!÷)%÷)$ % hgf !%@ 5}g .

# @)*!÷)%÷)% % hgf !%# 5}g .

$ @)*!÷)^÷@( ^ hgf !%$ 5}g .

% @)*!÷)&÷!! ^ hgf !%% 5}g .

^ @)*!÷)*÷@^ ^ hgf !%^ 5}g .

& @)*!÷)(÷@! % hgf !%& 5}g .

;"rLs[t ;Ful7t ;+:yfsf] gfd cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

7]ufgf, Od]n / j]e;fO6 ;lxt ag]kf–!), sfe|]knf~rf]s, aarambhachautari@gmail.com, www.aarambhachautari.com

kmf]g g+= )!!–^^$%&(, )!!^^!))*

k|ltj]bg k]z ul/Psf] cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@

cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf]
;+:yfut ;'zf;g;DaGwL jflif{s cg'kfngf k|ltj]bg
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* @)*!÷!)÷!@ ^ hgf !%* 5}g .

( @)*!÷!)÷!$ ^ hgf !%( 5}g .

!) @)*!÷!!÷!# ^ hgf !^) 5}g .

!! @)*!÷!@÷!% ^ hgf !^! 5}g .

!@ @)*@÷)!÷@* ^ hgf !^@ 5}g .

!# @)*@÷)@÷@) % hgf !^# 5}g .

!$ @)*@÷)#÷!^ ^ hgf !^$ 5}g .

	 s'g} ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s cfjZos u0fk'/s ;ª\Vof gk'uL :ylut ePsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f g/x]sf] .

	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a+}7s ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}+7sdf ;~rfns jf j}slNks 
;~rfns pkl:yt eP — gePsf] -gePsf] cj:yfdf 
a}+7ssf] ldlt ;lxt sf/0f v'nfpg_

ePsf]

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}+7sdf pkl:yt ;~rfnsx?, 
5nkmn ePsf] ljifo / tT;DaGwdf ePsf] lg0f{osf] 
ljj/0f -dfO{Go"6_ sf] 5'§} clen]v /fv] g/fv]sf]

clen]v /fVg] ul/Psf] .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}+7s eQf lgwf{/0f ;DaGwdf a;]sf] 
jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ldlt

@)&*÷!@÷@& -5}6f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efaf6_

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lt a}+7s eQf cWoIf ?=M ^,)))÷–
;~rfns ? M %,)))÷–

cf=j= @)*!.)*@ sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] s"n a}7s 
vr{

rfn' cf=j= df ;~rfns ;ldlt / cGo ;~rfns :t/Lo 
;ldltsf] a}7s eQf jfkt ?= %,)$,))).– -cIf?kL ?= 
kfFr nfv rf/ xhf/ ?k}+of dfq_ vr{ ePsf] .
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-@_ 	 ;~rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwL tyf cGo ljj/0f

;~rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DalGwt ;+:yfsf] cfrf/ ;+lxtf eP÷gePsf] M ePsf] .

Psf3/ kl/jf/sf] PseGbf a9L ;~rfns eP ;f] ;DaGwL ljj/0f M gePsf] . 

;~rfnsx¿sf] jflif{s ¿kdf l;sfO{ tyf k'g/tfhuL sfo{qmd ;DaGwL ljj/0f M ldlt @)*! kmfu'g !$ ut] 
;~rfng u/]sf] ! lbg] ;~rfns 
lzIff sfo{qmddf ^ hgf 
;~rfns ;xeflu ePsf] .

k|To]s ;~rfnsn] cfkm" ;~rfnssf] kbdf lgo'Qm jf dgf]gog ePsf] kGw| lbgleq  
b]xfosf s'/fsf] lnlvt hfgsf/L u/fPsf]÷gu/fPsf] / gu/fPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M  

	 ;+:yf;Fu lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/ kl/jf/sf] s'g} ls;Ldsf] s/f/ u/]sf] jf ug{ 
nfu]sf] eP ;f] sf] ljj/0fM 

	 lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/ kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] ;+:yf jf ;+:yfsf] d'Vo jf 
;xfos sDkgLdf lnPsf] z]o/ jf l8j]Gr/sf] ljj/0fM 

	 lgh cGo s'g} ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e't z]o/wgL jf ;~rfns /x]sf] eP 
;f] sf] ljj/0fM 

	 lghsf] Psf3/ kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:o ;+:yfdf kbflwsf/L jf sd{rf/Lsf]  
x}l;otdf sfd ul//x]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 

	 ;~rfnsn] p:t} k|s[ltsf] p2]Zo ePsf] ;"lrs[t ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns, tnaL  
kbflwsf/L, sfo{sf/L k|d'v jf sd{rf/L eO{ sfo{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0fM 

	 ;~rfnsx?nfO{ lgodg lgsfo tyf cGo lgsfox?af6 s'g} sf/jfxL ul/Psf] 
eP ;f]sf] ljj/0fM 

u/fPsf] 

g/x]sf] .

g/x]sf] .

gePsf] .

g/x]sf] .

gePsf] .
xfn ;Dd hfgsf/L gePsf] .

#=  	 ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg;DaGwL ljj/0f M
-s_  cfGtl/s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf] M cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k4ltnfO{ Jojl:yt agfpg ;+:yfn] ljleGg sfo{ljlwx? 

agfO{ nfu" ul/Psf] 5 .
-v_ 	cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP ÷ gePsf] M cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k4ltnfO{ ;'b[9 ug{ ;~rfns 

tyf Joj:yfkg :t/Lo ljleGg ;ldltx? u7g ul/Psf] 5 .
-u_ 	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-!_   	n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt -;~rfns :t/Lo_ M 
    	 u}/sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L lty{ ;fu/ cof{nHo"sf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;+:yfdf b]xfosf] n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 . 

cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ df pSt ;ldltsf]  % j6f a}7s a;]sf] lyof] .

-c_ 	;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox¿sf] gfd tyf kb_

qm=;+= kb gfd tyf kb s}lkmot

!= ;+of]hs >L lty{ ;fu/ cof{n, ;~rfns

@ ;b:o >L sdn k|;fb ltldlN;gf, cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ljefu

# ;b:o ;lrj >L b]jrGb| /fo, cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ljefu, k|d'v
	

-cf_	cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7s

qm=;+= ldlt pkl:yt ;+Vof a}7s g+=

! @)*!÷)$÷@$ # %&

@ @)*!÷)&÷@^ # %*

# @)*!÷)(÷!( # %(

$ @)*!÷!)÷!@ # ^)

% @)*@÷)!÷@^ # ^!
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-O_ 	 ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M 
	 ;+:yfsf] ;du| ljQLo cj:yf, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f, n]vfk/LIf0f of]hgf / cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIff0f k|ltj]bgdf  

cf}+NofOPsf ljifox?df cfjlws ?kdf ;dLIff u/L cfjZos ;'wf/sf] nflu Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] u/]sf] . afXo  
n]vfk/LIfsn] k]z u/]sf] jflif{s n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf cf}+NofOPsf a'Fbf÷s}lkmotx? pk/ ;dLIff u/L ;'wf/fTds sbd rfNg  
Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] ul/Psf] . g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 ;do ;dodf x'g] u/]sf] lg/LIf0f tyf ;'k/Lj]If0fsf qmddf 
cf}NofOPsf s}lkmotx?sf] sfof{Gjogsf] cj:yfsf] ;dLIff ug]{ ul/Psf] tyf ;du|df ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos 
hfgsf/L tyf ;'emfj pknAw u/fpg] ul/Psf] .

-@_	 -s_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf]M u7g ePsf]
	 -v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt ;DaGwL hfgsf/LM
	 u}/sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L ljdn cfrfo{Ho"sf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;+:yfdf b]xfosf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 

5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ df pSt ;ldltsf] $ j6f a}7s a;]sf] lyof] .

-c_ 	;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox7sf] gfd tyf kb_

qm=;+= kb gfd tyf kb s}lkmot

!= ;+of]hs >L ljdn cfrfo{, ;~rfns

@ kb]g ;b:o >L lty{ ;fu/ cof{n, ;~rfns

# ;b:o ;lrj >L rGbg s'df/ ;/bf/, shf{ c;'nL tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu k|d'v

-cf_  hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltsf] a}7s

qm=;+= ldlt pkl:yt ;+Vof a}7s g+=

! @)*!÷)$÷@! $ #%

@ @)*!÷)&÷@) # #^

# @)*!÷!)÷!# # #&

$ @)*@÷)!÷@* # #*
							     
-O_ 	 ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M 
	 ljBdfg  hf]lvdsf]  klxrfg  ul/  ;~rfns  ;ldltnfO{  hfgsf/L u/fpg] / pko'Qm k|0ffnLsf] ljsf;sf nflu 

;'emfj lbg] p2]Zon] hf]]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 . ;ldltn] Joj;flos ultljlwdf lglxt hf]lvd :t/,  
hf]lvd axg Ifdtf, hf]]lvd Joj:yfkgsf nflu ljsf; u/]sf] /0fgLlt, gLltut Joj:yf / dfu{bz{gsf] k'g/fjnf]sg tyf 
kof{Kttfsf ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltdf ;'emfj k]z ug]{ u/]sf] 5 . j:yfkgaf6 k|fKt x'g] hf]]lvd Joj:yfkg k|ltj]bgsf] 
ljZn]if0f u/L ;~rfns ;ldltdf cfjZos ;'emfj k]z ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . To:t}, b]zsf] ljBdfg cy{tGqsf] cj:yfsf] 
sf/0fn] ;+:yfdf kg{ ;Sg] c;/sf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltdf /fo ;'emfj k]z ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 .

-#_	 sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'lawf ;ldlt -;~rfns :t/Lo_  M 
	 u}/sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L ;Gtf]if kf]v/]nHo"sf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;+:yfdf b]xfosf] sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'lawf ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 

5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ df pSt ;ldltsf]  @ j6f a}7s a;]sf] lyof] .

-c_ 	;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox7sf] gfd tyf kb_

qm=;+= kb gfd tyf kb s}lkmot

 != ;+of]hs >L ;Gtf]if kf]v/]n, ;~rfns

@ ;b:o >L dg?kf kf}8]n, ljQLo Joj:yfkg ljefu, k|d'v

# ;b:o ;lrj >L rGbg s'df/ ;/bf/, hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ljefu, k|d'v
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-cf_  sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'lawf ;ldltsf] a}7s

qm=;+= ldlt pkl:yt ;+Vof a}7s g+=

! @)*!÷)&÷)* # !

@ @)*!÷!)÷!) # @

-O_ 	 ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M 
	 sd{rf/Lx?sf] kfl/>lds ;+/rgfsf] cWoog / ljZn]if0f u/L ahf/sf] kfl/>lds ;+/rgfdf cfPsf] kl/jt{gn] ;+:yfdf 

kfg]{ k|efjsf ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldlt ;dIf k|ltj]bg k]z ug]{ u/]sf] . ;+:yfsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f gLlt adf]lhd 
;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lxvsf] kfl/>lds j[l4 ug{ ;~rfns ;ldltdf l;kmfl/; ug]{ ul/Psf], hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ;DaGwL 
sfo{x? egf{, 5gf}6, lgo'lQm, kb:yfkgf, ;?jf, a9'jf, j[lQ ljsf;, sfo{;Dkfbg d"NofÍg, k'/:sf/ tyf ;hfoF h:tf gLlt 
tyf dfkb08x? tof/ u/L ;~rfns ;ldlt ;dIf k]z ug]{ ul/Psf] . 

-$_	 ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg''udg ;ldlt -;~rfns :t/Lo_ M 
	 u}/sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L k'ik/fh 9sfnHo"sf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;+:yfdf b]xfosf] ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt u7g 

ul/Psf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ df pSt ;ldltsf] $ j6f a}7s a;]sf] lyof] .
-c_ 	;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox7sf] gfd tyf kb_

qm=;+= kb gfd tyf kb s}lkmot

!= ;+of]hs >L k'ik/fh 9sfn, ;~rfns

@ ;b:o >L lzj k|;fb 1jfnL, k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

# ;b:o >L 6f]k axfb'/ /f:sf]6L, shf{ ljefu, k|d'v

$ ;b:o ;lrj >L rGbg s'df/ ;/bf/, cg'kfngf clws[t

-cf_  ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg''udg ;ldltsf] a}7s

qm=;+= ldlt pkl:yt ;+Vof a}7s g+=

! @)*!÷)$÷)* $ @%

@ @)*!÷)&÷)* # @^

# @)*!÷!)÷)& # @&

$ @)*@÷)!÷@* $ @*
       
-O_ 	 ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0fM  
	 ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f lgjf/0f ;DaGwL ljBdfg sfg"g cg';f/ ;+:yfdf eP u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLx?sf] ;DaGwdf  

Joj:yfkgaf6 k|fKt k|ltj]bg pk/ 5nkmn u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] u/]sf] tyf tT;DaGwdf ;~rfns 
;ldlt ;dIf k|ltj]bg k]z ug]{ u/]sf] .

-%_   kbk"lt{ ;ldlt M  
	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] jl/i7td\ clwsf/Lsf] cWoIftfdf kbk"lt{ ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 .
	
	 ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0fM 
	 sd{rf/L b/aGbL cg';f/ l/Qm kbx?df egf{ of]hgf ljsf; ug]{, pDd]bjf/x?sf] 5gf}6 ug]{, cGt/jftf{÷ lnlvt k/LIff 

;~rfng ug]{, of]Uo sd{rf/L 5gf}6 ug]{, sd{rf/L egf{ tyf sd{rf/Lx?sf] sfo{;Dkfbg d"NofÍg ;DaGwL Joj:yfkg  
nufotsf] sfo{x? o; ;ldltn] ub}{ cfPsf] .

-^_  cfly{s lgb{]zg ;ldlt M 
	 ;+:yfsf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t Ho"sf] ;+of]hsTjdf cfly{s lgb]{zg ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 .
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	 ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M 
	 o; ;ldltn] ;fdfGo ;]jf ljefun] klxrfg u/]sf] ljleGg cfk"lt{stf{ jf ;]jf k|bfossf] j:t' jf ;]jfsf] u'0f:t/, nfut 

k|efjsfl/tf, bIftf, hf]lvd:t/, tyf ljZj;lgotfsf] d'Nof+sg u/L ;a}eGbf pko'Qm cfk"lt{stf{ jf k|bfossf] gfd 
l;kmfl/; ug]{ u/]sf] .  j:t' jf ;]jfx?sf] k|efjsfl/tf, bIftf, / cy{ Joj:yf ;DaGwL dfkb08 k"/f u/L vl/b ePsf] 
;'lgZlrttf ug]{ u/]sf] .

-&_	 vl/b ;ldlt M 
	 ;+:yfsf jl/i7td\ clwsf/Lsf] ;+of]hsTjdf vl/b ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 . 
       	;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M o; ;ldltn] ;DklQsf] u'0f:t/, d"No, ;+:yfsf] cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnLdf 

ePsf] Joj:yf adf]lhd ;+:yfdf vl/b ;DaGwL cfjZos sfo{x¿ ug]{ u/]sf] .

-r_ 	 cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL eP÷gePsf] M ePsf]

$=  	 ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfx ;DaGwL ljj/0f
-s_ 	;+:yfn] ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfxsf] ljj/0f M

ljifo dfWod ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ldlt

jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] 
;"rgf

/fli6«o :t/sf] klqsf tyf ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO{6df  
k|sflzt ul/Psf] / ;+:yfsf] ;"rgf kf6Ldf 6fF; ul/Psf] .

;fwf/0f ;ef x'g' eGbf @! lbg 
cuf8L ;"rgf k|sflzt ul/Psf] 
.

ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;efsf] 
;"rgf 

/fli6«o :t/sf] klqsf tyf ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO{6df k|sflzt 
ul/Psf] / ;+:yfsf] ;"rgf kf6Ldf 6fF; ul/Psf] .

@)&% ;fn sflt{s !@ ut] 
! k6s ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef 
ePsf] .

jflif{s k|ltj]bg lstfa 5kfO{ ;DalGwt z]o/wgL, lgodgsf/L  
lgsfonfO{ k|bfg ug]{ / z]o/ /lhi6«f/ sf/f]jf/ ug]{ ;+:yf 
dfkm{t ljt/0f ug]{ . 

;fwf/0f ;ef ;"rgf k|sflzt  
u/]sf] !% lbg leq 5kfO{ u/L 
;DalGwt z]o/wgLnfO{ ljt/0f ug]{ .

q}dfl;s k|ltj]bg /fli6«o :t/sf] klqsfdf k|sflzt u/L ;"rgf k|jfx 
ug]{ .

k|To]s q}dfl;s cjlw ;lsPsf] 
#% lbg leq .

lwtf]kqsf] d"Nodf k|efljt 
kfg]{ ;+j]bglzn ;"rgf

;+j]bglzn ;"rgfx? k|sflzt gul/Psf] . gul/Psf] .

-v_ 	;"rgf ;fj{hlgs gu/]sf] jf cGo sf/0fn] lwtf]kq af]8{ tyf cGo lgsfoaf6 sf/jfxLdf k/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwL  
hfgsf/L M 

	 sf/jfxLdf gk/]sf] .

-u_  	kl5Nnf] jflif{s tyf ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M 
	 jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DkGg ldlt @)*!÷!)÷!$ ut]]

%=	 ;+:yfut ;+/rgf / sd{rf/L ;DaGwL ljj/0f M
s_ 	 sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ;+/rgf, kbklt{, j[lt ljsf;, tflnd, tna, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf, xflh/ / ljbf, cfrf/ ;+lxtf  

nufotsf  s'/fx¿ ;d]l6Psf] sd{rf/L ;]jf zt{ ljlgodfjnL Joj:yf eP gePsf] M ePsf] .
-v_ 	;+fu7lgs ;+/rgf ;+nUg ug]{ M o;} k|ltj]bg ;fy ;+nUg /x]sf] .
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-u_  	pRr Joj:yfkg txsf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] gfd, z}lIfs of]Uotf tyf cg'ej ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

qm=;+= Gffd kb Zf}lIfs 
of]Uotf

7]ufgf cg'ej

!
>L lzj k|;fb 1jfnL k|d'v sfo{sf/L 

clws[t
-sDkgL ;lrj_

:gftsf]Q/ /}gfb]jL 5x/f 
ufpFkflnsf !, 
l;4]Zj/,kfNkf

a}s tyf laQLo If]qdf 
!% jif{ sfof{g'ej

@ >L dg?kf kf}8]n ;xfos dxfk|aGws :gftsf]Q/ uf]nf )@, alb{of a}s tyf laQLo If]qdf 
!) jif{ sfof{g'ej

#
>L rGbg s'df/ ;/bf/ k|jGws :gfts t]t/Lof–)$, df]/ª a}s tyf laQLo 

If]qdf !* jif{ 
sfof{g'ej

$
>L lj/f6klt gfy 
uR5bf/

k|jGws :gfts en'jf )*, ;'g;/L a}s tyf laQLo If]qdf 
!* jif{ sfof{g'ej

% >L b]jrGb| /fo gfoj k|aGws :gfts b'xjL !@, ;'g;/L a}s tyf laQLo If]qdf 
!* jif{ sfof{g'ej

^
>L 6f]k axfb'/ /f:sf]6L ;xfos k|aGws :gfts kfl0fgL )^, 

c3f{vfFrL
a}s tyf laQLo If]qdf 
@$ jif{ sfof{g'ej

-3_ 	 sd{rf/L ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f M

;+/rgf cg';f/ sd{rf/L kbk"lt{ ug]{ u/]÷gu/]sf] M  u/]sf]

gofF sd{rf/Lx¿sf] kbk"lt{ ubf{ ckgfPsf]  
k|s[of M

;+:yfsf] sd{rf/L ;]jf ljlgodfjnLdf ePsf]Joj:yf adflhdsf] 
k|lqmof ckgfO{ lj1fkg k|sfzg  5gf}6 ;"rLdf k/]sf cfj]bsnfO{ lkmN8 
cjwf/0ff, cGt/jftf{ u/L dfkm{t kbk"lt{ ug]{ ul/Psf] .

s'n sd{rf/Lsf] ;ª\Vof M  $%* hgf

sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ;S;];g Knfg eP÷gePsf] M  sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ;S;];g Knfg /x]sf]

@)*!÷)*@ sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ lbOPsf] tflnd 
;ª\Vof tyf ;lDdlnt sd{rf/L

;a} k|b]z cGtu{tdf ;Dk"0f{ zfvfsf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ AML/CFT tyf hf]lvd 
Joj:yfkg tflnd lbO{Psf] ;fy} afXo tflnddf ;d]t k7fpg] ul/Psf] 
tfflnd ;ª\VofM $* -cfGt/Ls tyf afXo_
;xefuL sd{rf/LM lkmN8 ;xfos, zfvf k|aGws, k|b]z tyf ljefudf 
sfo{/t sd{rf/L 

cf=j=@)*!÷)*@ sf] sd{rf/L tflnd vr{  M  &*,#),$&#.–

s'n vr{df sd{rf/L vr{sf] k|ltzt M  ##=!(

s'n sd{rf/L vr{df sd{rf/L tfnLd vr{sf] 
k|ltzt M

 #=#*
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^=	 ;+:yfsf] n]vf tyf n]vfk/LIfs ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

;+:yfsf] kl5Nnf] cf=j= sf] ljQLo ljj/0f NFRS

cg';f/ tof/ u/] gu/]sf], gu/]sf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M
NFRS  cg';f/ tof/ u/]sf]

;~rfns ;ldltaf6 kl5Nnf] ljQLo ljj/0f 
:jLs[t  ePsf] ldlt M

@)*@÷)*÷@%

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg u/]sf] ldlt M @)*!÷)&÷@^ -k|yd q}dfl;s_
@)*!÷!)÷!# -bf];|f] q}dfl;s_
@)*@÷)!÷@* -t];|f] q}dfl;s_
@)*@÷)$÷!$ -rf}yf] q}dfl;s_

;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] 
ldltM

cf=j= @)*)÷*! sf] ljQLo ljj/0f ldlt @)*!÷!)÷!$ ut]sf] gjf}+ 
jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 :jLs[t ePsf] cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] ljQLo 
ljj/0f cfufdL ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 kfl/t x'g] .

;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s n]vfkl/If0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f
-c_    cfGtl/s vkdf n]vf k/LIf0f ug]{ 
         ul/Psf] jf jfx\o lj1 lgo'Qm ug]{ ul/Psf]
-cf_   jfx\o lj1 lgo'Qm ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f
-O_    cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f slt cjlwsf] 
         ug]{ ul/Psf]
-q}dfl;s, rf}dfl;s jf cw{jflif{s_

;+:yfsf] cfˆg} cfGtl/s n]vf kl/If0f ljefu /x]sfdf cfGtl/s ¿kdf  
n]vf kl/If0f ug]{ ul/Psf] .

g/x]sf] .

;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox¿sf] gfd, kb, tyf of]Uotf qm=;+=	 kb	         gfd tyf kb
!=	 ;+of]hs	         >L lty{ ;fu/ cof{n, ;~rfns
@	 ;b:o	         >L sdn k|;fb ltldlN;gf, 
                                cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ljefu
#	 ;b:o ;lrj     >L b]jrGb| /fo, 
                                cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ljefu, k|d'v

k|lt a}7s eQf ;~rfnsx¿nfO{ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf adf]lhd k|bfg ug]{ 
ul/Psf] / ;b:o ;lrjnfO{ eQf pknAw gu/fOPsf] .

&= 	 cGo ljj/0f

;+:yfn] ;~rfns tyf lghsf] Psf3/sf kl/jf/sf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] AolQm a}Í tyf laQLo 
;+:yfaf6 C0f jf ;fk6 jf cGo s'g} /sd lnP glnPsf]

glnPsf]

k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd sDkgL]sf] ;~rfns, z]o/wgL, sd{rf/L, ;Nnfxfsf/, k/fdz{bftfsf]  
x}l;otdf kfpg] ;'ljwf jf nfe afx]s ;'lrs[t ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] s'g} 
JolQm, kmd{, sDkgL, sd{rf/L, ;Nnfxfsf/ jf k/fdz{ bftfn] ;+:yfsf] s'g} ;Dklt s'g} lsl;dn]  
ef]urng u/]÷gu/]sf]

;Dklt ef]urng gu/]sf]

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{ tf]s]sf] zt{x¿sf] kfngf eP÷gePsf] kfngf ePsf]

lgodsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg lg/LIf0f jf ;'kl/j]If0f ubf{ ;+:yfnfO{ lbOPsf] lgb]{zg 
kfngf eP÷gePsf

kfngf ePsf] Hffgsf/L

;+:yf jf ;~rfns lj?¢ cbfntdf s'g} d'2f rln/x]sf] ;f]sf] ljj/0f 
kl/kfngf clws[tsf] gfd M rGbg s'df/ ;/bf/, k|jGws 

gePsf]
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

As on 32nd Ashad 2082

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Particulars Note Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
(Restated)

Cash and Cash equivalent 4.1  458,809,245  563,705,735 
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2  30,194,331  26,194,331 
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3  20,000,000  20,000,000 
Derivative Financial Instruments   4.4  -    -   
Other Trading Assets 4.5  -    -   
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6  -    -   
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7  5,266,571,091  4,242,635,376 
Investment Securities 4.8  597,846  1,000,000 
Current Tax Assets 4.9  31,215,288  28,350,027 
Investment Property 4.10  4,077,000  4,077,000 
Property and Equipment 4.11  5,544,255  7,096,706 
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12  24,171,487  24,711,431 
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13  59,732,888  19,405,229 
Other Assets 4.14  44,719,199  56,661,457 
Total Assets  5,945,632,630  4,993,837,293 
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15  -    -   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16  -    -   
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17  -    -   
Deposits from Customers 4.18  1,894,900,281  1,582,064,180 
Borrowing 4.19  3,359,277,082  2,776,891,693 
Current Tax Liabilities  4.9  -    -   
Provisions 4.20  -    -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13  -    -   
Other Liabilities 4.21  124,153,883  149,483,024 
Debt Securities Issued 4.22  -    -   
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23  -    -   
Total Liabilities  5,378,331,246  4,508,438,896 
Equity 
Share Capital 4.24  367,143,409  367,143,409 
Share Premium  -    -   
Retained Earnings  3,657,283  (49,155,337)
Reserves 4.25  196,500,692  167,410,324 
Total Equity  567,301,384  485,398,396 
Total Liabilities and Equity  5,945,632,630  4,993,837,293 
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.26  56,239,975  67,182,364 
Net assets value per share  155  132 

As per our report of  even date attached

Manarupa Poudel  
Finance Head

Tirth Sagar Aryal
Director

Shiva Prasad Gyawali  
CEO

Bimal Acharya  
Director

Pusparaj Dhakal 
Director

CA. Durga Prasad Gnawali, FCA
Senior Partner
N.B.S.M. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 25 Mangsir, 2082

Gopal Prasad Basyal 
Director

Binod Gyawali
Chairman

Santosh Pokharel  
Director
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the year ended 32nd Ashad 2082

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Particulars Note Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Interest Income 4.27  722,719,320  699,497,902 
Interest Expense 4.28  350,076,033  418,759,890 
Net Interest Income  372,643,288  280,738,012 
Fee and Commission Income 4.29  59,485,731  48,155,531 
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30  1,412,091  2,968,600 
Net Fee and Commission Income  58,073,640  45,186,931 
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income  430,716,928  325,924,943 
Net Trading Income 4.31  -    -   
Other Operating Income 4.32  -    -   
Total Operating Income  430,716,928  325,924,943 
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33  28,869,458  (398,552)
Net Operating Income  401,847,470  326,323,495 
Operating Expense  324,806,283  313,305,190 
Personnel Expenses 4.34  231,665,949  230,762,822 
Other Operating Expenses 4.35  70,498,796  59,487,032 
Depreciation & Amortization 4.36  22,641,538  23,055,336 
Operating Profit  77,041,187  13,018,305 
Non Operating Income 4.37  -    225,000 
Non Operating Expense 4.38  1,264,174  2,094,000 
Profit before Income Tax Income  75,777,013  11,149,305 
Tax Expense 4.39  (12,272,880)  10,468,334 
Current Tax  28,172,944  10,814,777 
Deferred Tax  (40,445,824)  (346,443)
Profit for the year  88,049,893  680,971 
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Financial Institution  88,049,893  680,971 
Profit for the year  88,049,893  680,971 
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share  23.98  0.19 
Diluted earnings per share  23.98  0.19 

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
For and on the behalf of Board.

As per our report of  even date attached

Manarupa Poudel  
Finance Head

Tirth Sagar Aryal
Director

Shiva Prasad Gyawali  
CEO

Bimal Acharya  
Director

Pusparaj Dhakal 
Director

CA. Durga Prasad Gnawali, FCA
Senior Partner
N.B.S.M. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 25 Mangsir, 2082

Gopal Prasad Basyal 
Director

Binod Gyawali
Chairman

Santosh Pokharel  
Director
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh, 2082 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Particulars  Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received  722,719,320  699,497,902 
Fees and other income received  59,485,731  48,155,531 
Divided received  -   
Receipts from other operating activities  -   
Interest paid  (350,076,033)  (418,759,890)
Commission and fees paid  (1,412,091)  (2,968,600)
Cash payment to employees  (241,842,852)  (230,762,822)
Other expense paid  (66,570,468)  (75,702,439)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities  122,303,608  19,459,682 
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets  (1,063,800,607)  475,254,961 
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  (4,000,000)  -   
Placement with bank and financial institutions  -  161,652,799 
Other trading assets  -  -   
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions  -  -   
Loans and advances to customers  (1,052,805,173)  361,596,757 
Other assets  (6,995,434)  (47,994,595)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities  870,514,339  95,285,411 
Due to bank and financial institutions  -  -   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank  -  -   
Deposit from customers  312,836,102  100,294,974 
Borrowings  582,385,389  (33,066,260)
Other liabilities  (24,707,153)  28,056,698 
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid  (70,982,661)  590,000,054 
Income taxes paid  (31,038,205)  (29,686,061)
Net cash flow from operating activities  (102,020,865)  560,313,993 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities  -  -   
Receipts from sale of investment securities  -  -   
Purchase of property and equipment  (2,875,625)  (2,370,714)
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment  -    -   
Purchase of intangible assets  -    -   
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets  -    -   
Purchase of investment properties  -    -   
Receipt from the sale of investment properties  -    -   
Interest received  -    -   
Dividend received  -    -   
Net cash used in investing activities  (2,875,625)  (2,370,714)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities  -    -   
Repayment of debt securities  -    -   
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities  -    -   
Repayment of subordinated liabilities  -    -   
Receipt from issue of sub-ordinated liabilities  -    -   
Repayment of subordinated liabilities  -    -   
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Receipt from issue of shares  -    -   
Dividends paid  -    -   
Interest paid  -    -   
Other receipt/payment  -    16,736 
Net cash from financing activities  -  16,736 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (104,896,490)  557,960,016 
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2081  563,705,735  5,745,720 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held  -  -   
Cash and cash equivalents at Ashad end 2082  458,809,245  563,705,735 

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
For and on the behalf of Board.

As per our report of  even date attached

Manarupa Poudel  
Finance Head

Tirth Sagar Aryal
Director

Shiva Prasad Gyawali  
CEO

Bimal Acharya  
Director

Pusparaj Dhakal 
Director

CA. Durga Prasad Gnawali, FCA
Senior Partner
N.B.S.M. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 25 Mangsir, 2082

Gopal Prasad Basyal 
Director

Binod Gyawali
Chairman

Santosh Pokharel  
Director
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh, 2082 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Particulars Note Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Profit for the year  88,049,893  680,971 
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at 
fair value

(402,154)  -   

Gains/(losses) on Revalation  -    -   
Acturial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans  796,036  5,207,609 
Income tax relating to above items  (118,164)  (1,562,283)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss

 275,717  3,645,326 

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial assets of 
foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items
Reclassify to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified 
to profit or loss

 -    -   

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax  275,717  3,645,326 
Total comprehensive income for the year  88,325,610  4,326,297 
Total comprehensive income for the period

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
For and on the behalf of Board.

As per our report of  even date attached

Manarupa Poudel  
Finance Head

Tirth Sagar Aryal
Director

Shiva Prasad Gyawali  
CEO

Bimal Acharya  
Director

Pusparaj Dhakal 
Director

CA. Durga Prasad Gnawali, FCA
Senior Partner
N.B.S.M. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 25 Mangsir, 2082

Gopal Prasad Basyal 
Director

Binod Gyawali
Chairman

Santosh Pokharel  
Director
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh, 2082 

STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss  88,049,893  680,971 
Appropriations:
a. General reserve  17,609,979  136,194 
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund  -    -   
c. Capital redemption reserve  -   
d. Corporate social responsibility fund  880,499  6,810 
e. Employees' training fund  852,137 
f. Client Protection Fund  1,320,748  6,810 
g. Other
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment  68,238,667  (320,979)
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)  14,774,265  55,092,805 
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)  -    -   
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)  -    -   
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)  -    -   
e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)  (40,327,659)  1,215,840 
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)  -    -   
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)  -    -   
h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)  557,225  3,645,326 
i. Other (+/-)  9,570,122  (1,946,744)
Total Regulatory Adjustments  (15,426,047)  58,007,227 
Net Profit for the year end 2082 available for distribution  52,812,620  57,686,247 
Opening Retained Earning  (49,155,337)  (106,412,994)
Adjustments (+/-)  (428,590)
Distribution
Bonus Share Issued  -   
Cash Dividend Issued  -   
Total Distributable Profit or (Loss) as on End Date  3,657,283  (49,155,337)
Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per Share  1.00  (13.39)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
For and on the behalf of Board.

As per our report of  even date attached

Manarupa Poudel  
Finance Head

Tirth Sagar Aryal
Director

Shiva Prasad Gyawali  
CEO

Bimal Acharya  
Director

Pusparaj Dhakal 
Director

CA. Durga Prasad Gnawali, FCA
Senior Partner
N.B.S.M. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 25 Mangsir, 2082

Gopal Prasad Basyal 
Director

Binod Gyawali
Chairman

Santosh Pokharel  
Director
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes

Fiscal Year 2081/82

1. 	 General Information of Reporting Entity			
	 Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. is the leading National level micro finance of Nepal and operates 

in 53 districts. As Per Nepal Rastra Bank Merger policy ACLBSL is the result of merger of Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya 
Sanstha Limited, Aarambha Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited and Deurali Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. 
ACLBSL believes that access to basic financial services can significantly augment economic opportunities for poor 
families and in turn help improve their lives. ACLBSL is committed to creating a distribution network across underserved 
sections of society in order to provide easy access to the full portfolio of microfinance products and services. 
			 

2. 	 Basis of Preparation	 		
	 The Financial Statements for the year ended 16th July, 2025 comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement 

of Profit and Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of change of Equity, the Statement of 
Cash Flows and the Notes to Financial Statements.  

			 
2.1 	 Statement of Compliance			 
	 The Financial Statement has been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as 

published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB)-Nepal. NFRSs conform, in all material respect, to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).		
	

2.2 	 Reporting Period and approval of Financial Statements	 		
	 The Micro Finance follows the Nepalese Financial Year based on the Nepalese Calendar. The Micro Finance has prepared 

the financial statements that comply with NFRS applicable for the period ending on 32nd Ashad 2082, together with 
the comparative period data as at and for the period ending 31st Ashad 2081 as described in its accounting policies.  

	 The accompanied Financial Statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its board meeting held on 
2082/08/25 and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in the 10th Annual General Meeting.		
	

2.3 	 Functional and Presentation Currency	 		
	 Financial Statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the 

Micro Finance.
			 
2.4 	 Accounting Convention, Estimates, assumptions and judgements	 		
	 The Financial Statements of the Micro Finance have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except the 

cash flow information which is prepared, on a cash basis, using direct method. The Financial Statements have 
been prepared on a going concern basis. The Micro Finance is required to apply the accounting policies that are 
most appropriate for the circumstance and operating environment. NFRS requires the Micro Finance to exercise 
judgement in making choice of specific accounting policies and accounting estimates. The Micro Finance, while 
complying with the reporting standards, makes critical accounting judgment as having potentially material impact 
on the financial statements. Description of such estimates and significant accounting policies has been given 
in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied. These policies are consistently applied to all the years 
presented, except for the changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically. The underlying assumption made 
while making accounting estimates are periodically reviewed and such revision are recognized in the period in which 
the estimates is revised and are applied prospectively.  Disclosures of the accounting estimate have been included 
in the relevant section of the notes whenever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of 
changes of accounting estimates, if any."			 

2.5 	 Change in accounting Policies			
	 The same accounting policies are normally adopted in each period and from one period to the next to maintain 

the compatibility of the Financial Statements of the entity over time to identify trends in the financial position, 
performance and cash flows however the changes  when required by NFRS or due the requirement that results in 
the financial statements providing more reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transaction, 
other events or conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows are made and the 
changes are applied retrospectively. An entity has used the same accounting policies in its opening NFRS Statement 
of financial position and throughout all periods presented in its first NFRS financial statements. Those accounting 
policies have complied with each NFRS effective at the end of its first NFRS reporting period except those specifically 
stated under relevant notes below.			 
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2.6 	 New Standard and Interpretation not adopted			 
	 For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

with carve-outs and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments – Disclosures have been applied. A number of new standards 
and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after the pronouncements 
of NFRS with varying effective dates. NFRSs 2018 has been pronounced by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Nepal.

			 
2.7 	 Discounting			
	 Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is 

material.			 
			 
2.8 	 Offsetting			 
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial 

Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses 
are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss, unless required or permitted by Nepalese Financial Reporting 
Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and 
Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC)) and as specifically disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies of the 
Microfinance			 

			 
2.9	 Materiality and Aggregation
	 Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements Items of dissimilar nature 

or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Nepal Accounting Standard – 
NAS 1 on ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.  Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic 
manner which ensures the understandability and comparability of Financial Statements of the Microfinance. 
Understandability of the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring material information with 
immaterial information or by aggregating material items that have different natures or functions

		
2.10 	Limitation of NFRS Implementation			 
	 If the information is not available and the cost would exceed the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS 

Implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.			 

3.	  Significant accounting Policies			 
	 The principal accounting policies applied by the Microfinance in the preparation of these financial statements are 

presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless stated otherwise.		
	

3.1     Basis of Measurement			 
	 The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material items in the 

statement of financial position:
•	  Investment property is measured initially at cost and subsequently at Fair value.
•	  Liabilities for cash-settled, share-based-payment arrangements are measured at fair value.
•	  Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.
•	  Impairment of financial asset is measured at fair value and related disposal cost.
	
	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical experience and 

other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the 
financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Microfinance. Any revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized prospectively in the period in which the estimates are revised and in the future periods. The areas 
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to 
the financial statements are disclosed in notes.

		
	 Materiality and Aggregation			 
	 In compliance with NAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is presented 

separately in the financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately unless they 
are material. Such presentation of line items is consistent with the format issued by NRB.

			 
3.2   	Cash and cash equivalent			 
	 Cash and cash equivalents include cash at vault and money at call and short notice which are subject to an 

insignificant risk of changes in value including interest receivable on investment with maturity up to 3 month 
or less. Cash and Cash equivalent are measured at amortized cost in the statement of financial position. 
Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method’ in accordance with NAS 07- Statement of 
Cash Flows.			
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3.3 	 Financial assets and financial liabilities"			 
	 Recognition			
	 The Microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position 

when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Microfinance initially 
recognize loans and advances, deposits; and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are 
originated which is the date that the Microfinance becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 
Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse 
repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Microfinance commits to purchase/ acquire the 
financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date. All financial assets 
and liabilities are initially recognized at their cost value and are subsequently presented as per NFRS based on the 
respective classification.

			 
	 Classification			 
i.     	 Financial Assets			 
	 The Microfinance classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on 

the basis of the Microfinance’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

			 
1.     	Financial assets measured at amortized cost	 		
	 The Microfinance classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:
a)	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash 

flows and
b)	 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding"			

2.     	Financial asset measured at fair value
	 Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value
	 Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

a)	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
	 Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or 

are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly 
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. 

b) 	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
	 Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Microfinance makes 

an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other 
comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive income. Such assets 
are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 
			 

ii.  Financial Liabilities			 
	 The Microfinance classifies the financial liabilities as follows:

a)	  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
	 Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are designated 

at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are 
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss 

b)	  Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
	 All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently measured 

at amortized cost using effective interest method."			 

	 Measurement			 
	 Financial assets at FVTOCI	 		
	 On initial recognition, the Microfinance can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by instrument basis) to 

present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity 
instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments 
are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising 
from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Fair Value Reserve’.  
The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.                                                                                                                               
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A financial asset is held for trading if:
•	 It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
•	 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together 

and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
•	 It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.  

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the 
Microfinance’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with 
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and 
the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)			 
	 Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Microfinance irrevocably elects on initial 

recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity 
instruments which are not held for trading.

	
	 Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at 

FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated 
as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL

 
A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may 
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the 
gains and losses on them on different bases

 
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses 
arising on re-measurement recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is 
recognized when the Microfinance’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost 
of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

			 
	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL			 
	 Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is designated as at FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
•	  it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
•	  on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together 

and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
•	  it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument 

	 A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition if:

•	 such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 
otherwise arise;

•	  the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and 
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s documented risk management 
or investment strategy, and information about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or

•	 it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9 permits the entire combined 
contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with NFRS 9 

			 
	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit and 
Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. 
However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the 
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in 
other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other 
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these 
effects of changes in credit risk are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change 
in the fair value of liability is always recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value attributable 
to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in 
retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

			 
	 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost			 
	 Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized 

cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest 
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expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance Expenses’ line item. 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where 
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

			 
	 De-recognition			 
i. 	  De-recognition of financial assets	 		
	 The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Microfinance neither transfers nor 
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.    
Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained by the 
Microfinance is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference 
between the carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of 

(i)	 The consideration received and
(ii)	 Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in retained 

earnings.
	 The Microfinance enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement of Financial 

Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of 
them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. 
Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example repurchase 
transactions.

			 
 i.       De-recognition of financial liabilities			 
	 A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of 
the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.		
	

	 Determination of fair value			 
	 Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous 
market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. 
When available, the Microfinance measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active 
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with 
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an 
active market, then the Microfinance uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that 
market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

	 The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:
Level 1 	 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 

assets or liabilities.

Level 2	 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for 
identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where 
all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are not based on 
observable market data.

			 
	 The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price 

i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Microfinance determines that the fair value at initial 
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active 
market for an identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only 
data from observable markets (Level 02 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, 
adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, 
that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but not later than 
when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out. In case the fair 
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value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation), the 
difference between the transaction price and fair value is recognized in profit or loss immediately		
	

			 
	 Impairment	 		
	 At each reporting date, the Microfinance assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group 

of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of 
the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or 
issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Microfinance on terms that 
the Microfinance would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the 
disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as 
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate 
with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its 
fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment. 

		
	 In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Microfinance considers to restructure loans rather than take 

possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan 
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the EIR method and the 
loan is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria 
are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective 
impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

		
	 Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost			 
	 The Microfinance considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances measured at amortized cost at both specific 

asset and collective level. The Microfinance first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists 
for financial assets that are individually significant and that are not individually significant are assessed on collectively. 
If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured 
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is 
recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued 
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.	
		

	 Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of portfolio behaviour. 
In assessing collective impairment, the Microfinance uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of 
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current economic 
and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical 
trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against 
actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate. Loans together with the associated allowance are written 
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred 
to the Microfinance. If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases 
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is 
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized 
in the ‘non-operating income’.	

		
3.4 	 Trading Assets			 
	 Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Laghubitta acquires or incurs principally for 

the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for 
short-term profit or position taking. There were no Trading Assets held by Laghubitta during F.Y. 2081-82.		
	

3.5   Property and Equipment			 
a) 	 Recognition and Measurement	 		
	 Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assets 

will flow to the Microfinance and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The cost includes expenditures that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-constructed assets includes followings:

•	  Cost of materials and direct labour;
•	  Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use; and
•	  Capitalized borrowing cost"			 
	 Property and equipment are measured at cost (for land using deemed cost at on the transition date) 

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. Neither class of the property 
and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date.  
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure will flow 
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to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed as incurred. 
Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss."		
	

b) 	 Grant Assets			 
	 The assets received under grant has been booked under Property and Equipment by creating a capital reserve of 

equal amount. The annual depreciation is deducted every year from this reserve till the useful life of assets. The 
balance of capital reserve depicts Written down Value of the Grant Assets.

			 
c) 	 Depreciation			 
	 Property and equipment’s are depreciated from the date they are available for use on property on Straight Line 

method over estimated useful lives as determined by the Management.  Depreciation is recognized in profit or 
loss. Land is not depreciated. Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of the date from which the asset 
is classified as held for sale or is derecognized. The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and 
equipment for current year and comparative periods are as follows:

			 
Categories Useful life (Years)
Lease hold Assets 5
Computer & Accessories 4
Office Equipment 4
Furniture & fixture 4
Vehicle 5
Software 5

		
3.6  	 Intangible Assets/ Goodwill			 
	 Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business 

Combination is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying value may be impaired. 			 

3.7  	 Investment Property	 		
	 Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and equipment and 

non-current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and building acquired by the Laghubitta as non-
banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date. 

			 
3.8  	 Income tax		  	
	 The Company is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income Taxes have been calculated as per the provisions of the 

Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable 
profits during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax law carry-forwards become deductible. 
The Microfinance considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable 
income making this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could 
be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced. 
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income."		
	

	 Current Tax			 
	 Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs 

from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or 
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.  
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that 
are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the Microfinance operates and 
generates taxable income. Current income tax assets and liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be 
payable or recoverable in respect of previous periods."			 

	 Deferred Tax
	 Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
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	 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and that 
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax 
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reversed if it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be 
realized. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which 
the Microfinance expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.  
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and 
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

i.	 Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

ii.	 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in 
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will 
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 
Deferred tax relating to items recognized in OCI is recognized in OCI. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation 
to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority.

		
3.9	 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities			 
	 Microfinance deposits consist of money placed into the Microfinance by its customers. These deposits are made to 

deposit accounts such as fixed deposit accounts, savings accounts, margin deposit accounts, call deposit accounts 
and current accounts. Details and further disclosures about deposits have been explained in note that follows.		
	

3.10  Provisions	 		
	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 

event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and when the amount 
can be reliably estimated.

	 The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying 
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

	 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third 
party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount 
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

	 A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:
•	  a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
•	 present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:
o	  It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; 

or
o	  The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
	 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by 

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.
			 
3.11	 Revenue Recognition			
	 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Microfinance and the 

revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is 
recognized.		

	
	 Interest income 			 
	 Interest income is recognized in profit or loss for all interest-bearing instruments on an accrual basis using the 

method which is approximately the same with effective interest method as allowed by carve-out on NFRS. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the expected estimated future cash payments and receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability. Where financial assets have been impaired, interest 
income continues to be recognized on the impaired value, based on the original effective interest rate.		
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	 NFRS Requirement			 
	 NFRS requires interest income to be recognized using the effective interest method, except for those classified at 

fair value through profit or loss. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a 
financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the expected life of the financial instrument. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life 
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset 
or financial liability. The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or liability by 
estimating the future cash flows after considering all the contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit 
losses. The calculation includes all amounts expected to be paid or received by the Microfinance including expected 
early redemption fees and related penalties and premiums and discounts that are an integral part of the overall 
return. Direct incremental transaction costs related to the acquisition, issue or disposal of financial instruments 
is also taken into account in the calculation. Once financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been 
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to 
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. 

			 
	 Carve-out for Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method
	 The Microfinance has availed the carve-out for interest income recognition by applying the rate implicit on individual 

products. Considering the amount of renewal and initial service fees that the bank charges on the loans and 
advances (which is in negligible figure), applying EIR method would not be practical and cost effective. Hence, initial 
service fees and renewal charges have been recognized during the period when such income accrue rather than 
being included within the component of interest income under EIR method. 			 

	 Fee and commission income			 
	 Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included in 

measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fee, service 
charges, syndication fee, forex transaction commission, commission of issue of letter of credit and guarantee are 
recognized as the related services are performed.	

		
	 Dividend income	 		
	 Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Dividend 

income are presented in net trading income, net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit 
or loss or other revenue based on the underlying classification of the equity instruments.			 

	 Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss			 
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by 

management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an instrument at fair value through profit or 
loss upon initial recognition when the following criteria are met, and designation is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis:
•	 The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise 

from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis.
•	 The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed 

and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or 
investment strategy.

•	 The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, which significantly modify the cash 
flows that would otherwise be required by the contract.

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial 
position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in Net gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities 
designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned or incurred 
is accrued in Interest income or Interest expense, respectively, using the effective interest rate (EIR), while dividend 
income is recorded in other operating income when the right to the payment has been established."		
	

3.12   Interest expense			 
	 Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in profit or loss using effective interest 

rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities is considered to be incidental to the Microfinance’s trading 
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net 
trading income.
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3.	 13 Employees Benefits			 
a) 	 Short Term Employee Benefits			
	 Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed 

as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid 
under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus Act pay the amount as a result of past service provided 
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits. 
Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period):
•	  wages, salaries and social security contributions;
•	  paid annual leave and paid sick leave;
•	  non-monetary benefits

			 
b) 	 Post-Employment Benefit Plan			 
	 Post-employment benefit plan includes followings
			 
i.  	 Defined Contribution Plan			 
	 A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays a fixed contribution to 

a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts. Obligations for contributions 
to defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the 
related service are rendered by employees. Pre-paid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash 
refund or reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan being due for more 
than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee render the service are discounted at their present 
value. The following are the defined contribution plan provided by the Microfinance to its employees:		
	

a) 	 Employees Provident Fund  	 		
	 In accordance with law, all employees of the Microfinance are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a 

defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the Microfinance contribute monthly at a pre-determined 
rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary plus grades). Microfinance does not assume any future liability for provident 
fund benefits other than its annual contribution.			 

ii    	 Defined Benefit Plan	 		
	 The Microfinance provides Gratuity Plan and Leave Encashment Plan (in terms of Annual Leave and Sick Leave) as defined 

benefits to its employees. These benefits are post-employment benefit plans and are paid based on length of service. 
These benefit plans are funded whereas the Microfinance makes earmark investment of these funds. The gratuity plan 
provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination 
of employment for an amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each completed year of service.  
Further, employees of the Microfinance are entitled to avail Annual Leave and Sick Leave. The employees can carry 
forward the un-availed leave and are entitled to encash the cumulative leave at the time of the retirement. The 
obligation under these plans is calculated by a qualified actuary every year using projected unit credit method. 
The following are the defined benefit plans provided by the Microfinance to its employees:

		
a)     Gratuity			 
	 Microfinance provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms of Employee Service 

Byelaws of the Microfinance. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon 
death while in employment or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary 
payable for each completed years of service. The Microfinance accounts for the liability for gratuity as per the 
Actuarial valuation.			 

b)     Leave Salary			
	 The employees of the Microfinance are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed / unutilized leave subject 

to a maximum limit. The employees can encash unavailed/ unutilized leave partially in terms of Employee Service 
Byelaws of the Microfinance. The Microfinance accounts for the liability for accumulated leave as per the actuarial 
valuation.

			 
c)     	Termination Benefits			
	 Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Microfinance is demonstrably committed, without 

realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to employees as a result of an 
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized if the Microfinances made an 
offer for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number of acceptances can be 
measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted 
to their Present value.			
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3.14	 Leases	 		
	 The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the 

arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that 
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.	

		
	 The Microfinance as a Lessee:	 		
	 Finance leases that transfer to the Microfinance substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to 

ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased 
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned 
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in Finance cost in the income statement. 
Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the 
Microfinance will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the 
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

	 Leases that do not transfer to the Microfinance substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the income statement on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general 
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognized in the year 
in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
The Microfinance has initially recognized Lease in balance sheet as Right of use of assets (ROU) and Lease Liability. 
ROU has been recognized at sum of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred by 
the lessee and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, 
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and 
conditions of the lease. At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value 
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall 
use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

	
	 A lessee may elect not to apply accounting treatment as per NFRS 16 in following cases:
(a) 	 short-term leases; and
(b) 	 leases for which the underlying asset is of low value
		
	 If a lessee elects not to apply the accounting treatment as per NFRS 16 due to either short-term leases or leases 

for which the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee shall recognize the lease payments associated with those 
leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis. The lessee 
shall apply another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the lessee’s benefit. 
The lease payment has been discounted at the incremental borrowing rate in lease which is 10%.  
The lease assets having the lease liability of equal to or less than 30 lacs present value at inception has been 
considered as low value and for those lease the expenses has been recognized under straight line basis."		
	

	 The Microfinance as a lessor			 
	 Leases in which the Microfinance does not transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership 

of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease 
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same 
bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 
In para 33, lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term unless either:

(a) 	 Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the payments to the 
lessors are not on that basis; or

(b) 	 The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the 
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary because of factors other than general 
inflation, then this condition is not met.

	 Microfinance operates its branches and ATMs in number of leased facilities under operating lease agreements. 
Operating lease rentals payable are charged to the profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 
For the reporting period the Microfinance did not have a finance lease in the capacity of the lessor or in the capacity 
of a lessee and it also did not have an operating lease in the capacity of the lessor."			 
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3.15	 Share capital and reserves			 
	 The Microfinance classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities in 

accordance with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as 
residual interest in total assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified 
as equity of the Microfinance and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of an equity instruments are deducted from the equity.  
The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, exchange 
equalization reserve, regulatory reserve, fair value reserve, revaluation reserve and other reserves. 
Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in retained earning 
computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.		

3.16	 Earnings per share including diluted	 		
	 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the year.

	 Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest 
and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity 
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and 
the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares 
would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares 
are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. 
There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date 
and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the restatement of earnings per 
share."			 

3.17	 Segment reporting			 
	 An operating segment is a component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities from which it may 

earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to transactions with any of the 
Microfinance’s other components, whose operating results are reviewed by the management to make decision 
about resource allocation to each segment and assess its performance			 

			 
3.18 	Regrouping and Reclassification	 		
			 
3.18.1 Reclassification of Placement with BFIs to Cash and Cash equivalent			 
	 In the current year, certain balances previously shown under Placements in BFIs have been reclassified to Balance 

with BFIs within Cash and Cash Equivalents, in line with the definition under NAS 7. This change improves the 
presentation of the financial statements without impacting total assets, liabilities, equity, or profit. Prior year figures 
have been regrouped accordingly for comparability.			 

			 
Particulars Current year 

balance (2081.82)
Reclassification of Previous 

year balance (2080.81)
As previously reported 

(2080.81)
Placements with Financial Institutions
Placement with domestic Fis  20,000,000.00  20,000,000.00  567,725,312.17 
Cash and Cash Equivalent
Balances with B/Fis  453,183,313.91  547,725,312.17  -   

			 
			 
3.18.2 Reclassification of Provision made against Other Financial Assets to Impairment Charge.			 
	 In the current year, previously made provision against Other Financial Assets has been reclassified and presented 

as impairment charge to Other Assets.			 
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The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:	
	

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the total amount of cash in hand, balances with other banks and financial institu-
tions, money at call and short notice.		

Cash and Cash Equivalent
		  Note-4.1

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Cash in hand  5,625,931  15,980,423 
Balances with B/FIs  453,183,314  547,725,312 
Money at call and short notice  -  -   
Other  -  -   
Total  458,809,245  563,705,735 

Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities purchased from Nepal Rastra 
Bank under resale agreement, other deposits with and receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank has been presented under this 
account head. 		

		  Note-4.2
Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Statutory balances with NRB  30,194,331  26,194,331 
Statutory balances with BFIs  -    -   
Securities purchased under resale agreement  -    -   
Other deposit and receivable from NRB  -    -   
Total  30,194,331  26,194,331 

Placements with Financial Institutions
Placement with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions are presented under this account head. 
		  Note-4.3

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Placement with domestic FIs  20,000,000  20,000,000 
Less: Allowances for impairment  -    -   
Total  20,000,000  20,000,000 

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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Derivative financial instruments
There were no derivative financial instruments held by the Microfinance during the year. 

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Held for trading  -    -   
Interest rate swap  -    -   
Currency swap  -    -   
Forward exchange contract  -    -   
Others  -    -   
Held for risk management  -    -   
Interest rate swap  -    -   
Currency swap  -    -   
Forward exchange contract  -    -   
Others  -    -   
Total  -    -   

	
Other trading assets
There were no trading assets held by the Microfinance during the year.

Note-4.4
Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Treasury bills  -    -   
Government bonds  -    -   
NRB Bonds  -    -   
Domestic Corporate bonds  -    -   
Equities  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Total  -    -   
Pledged  -    -   
Non-pledged  -    -   

Loan and advances to MFIs & Cooperatives
There were no Loans and Advances provided to MFIs and Financial Institutions during the year.
		  Note-4.6

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Loans to microfinance institutions  -    -   
Loans to FIs  -    -   
Loans to cooperative  -    -   
Less: allowance for impairment  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Less: Allowances for impairment  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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Allowances for Impairment
		  Note-4.6.1

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Balance at Shrawan 1  -    -   
Impairment loss for the year:  -    -   
Charge for the year  -    -   
Recoveries/reversal  -    -   
Amount written off  -    -   
Balance at Ashad end  -    -   

Loans and Advances to Customers
Outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other than BFIs as well as Bills Purchased and 
discounted less the amount of impairment allowances has been presented. Loan to employees provided according to 
employee bye-laws of the Microfinance has also been presented under this head. 		
		  Note-4.7

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost  5,350,766,500  4,297,961,327 
Less: Impairment allowances  84,195,408  55,325,950 
Collective impairment  12,359,734  11,537,796 
Individual impairment  71,835,675  43,788,154 
Net amount  5,266,571,091  4,242,635,376 
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL  -    -   
Total  5,266,571,091  4,242,635,376 

Analysis of loan and advances - By Product
		  Note-4.7.1

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Product
Term loans  5,274,662,845  4,178,072,535 
Short term, term loan  -    -   
Long term, term loan  5,274,662,845  4,178,072,535 
Hire purchase loans  -    -   
Personal Residential Loans  -    -   
Staff loans  -    -   
Other 54,344,680  72,994,817 
Sub total 5,329,007,525 4,251,067,352
Interest receivable 21,758,975  46,893,975 
Grand Total 5,350,766,500 4,297,961,327

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Collateral
		  Note-4.7.2

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Secured
Immovable assets  -    -   
Government guarantee  -    -   
Collateral of Government securities  -    -   
Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt  -    -   
Group guarantee Personal guarantee  -    -   
Other collateral  509,099,963  622,905,587 
Subtotal  509,099,963  622,905,587 
Unsecured  4,841,666,537  3,675,055,740 
Grand Total  5,350,766,500  4,297,961,327 

 
Allowances for impairment
		  Note-4.7.3

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1  55,325,950  55,724,502 
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year  28,869,458  -   
Recoveries/reversal during the year  -    (398,552)
Write-offs  -    -   
Other movement  -    -   
Balance at Ashad end  84,195,408  55,325,950 
Total allowances for impairment  84,195,408  55,325,950 

Investment Securities
		  Note-4.8

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Investment securities measured at amortized cost  -    -   
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI  597,846  1,000,000 
Total  597,846  1,000,000 

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost
		  Note-4.8.1

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Debt securities  -    -   
Government bonds  -    -   
Government treasury bills  -    -   
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds  -    -   
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Less: specific allowances for impairment  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
		  Note-4.8.2

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Equity instruments

Quoted equity securities  -    -   
Unquoted equity securities  597,846  1,000,000 
Total  597,846  1,000,000 

Current tax assets
		  Note-4.9

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Current tax assets  59,388,232  39,164,805 
Current year income tax assets  56,616,058  35,477,371 
Tax assets of prior periods  2,772,174  3,687,434 
Current tax liabilities  28,172,944  10,814,777 
Current year income tax liabilities  25,400,770  7,127,343 
Tax liabilities of prior periods  2,772,174  3,687,434 
Total  31,215,288  28,350,027 

Investment Property 
This also includes land, land and building acquired as non-banking assets by the Microfinance but not sold. After The 
Microfinance has measured Investment properties are measured at cost, however no deprecation has been charged as 
no such properties has been used by the Microfinance. 		
	 Note-4.10

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2081  -    -   
Addition/disposal during the year  -    -   
Net changes in fair value during the year  -    -   
Adjustment/transfer  -    -   
Net amount  -    -   
Investment properties measured at cost

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2081  4,077,000  -   
Addition/disposal during the year  -    4,077,000 
Adjustment/transfer  -    -   
Accumulated depreciation  -    -   
Accumulated impairment loss  -    -   
Net amount  4,077,000  4,077,000 
Total  4,077,000  4,077,000 

Other assets
	 Note-4.14

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Assets held for sale  -    -   
Other non banking assets  -    -   
Bills receivable  -    -   
Accrued income  -    -   
Prepayments and deposit  472,677  423,141 
Income tax deposit  -    -   
Deferred employee expenditure  140,447  57,222 
Other  44,106,075  54,916,670 
Other Financial Assets
Accounts receivable  851,124  851,374 
Cash in transit theft  118,425  118,425 
Receivable on Surpal branch misappropriation  4,619,916  4,619,916 
Receivable on Okhaldhunga branch misappropriation  35,583,016  35,583,016 
Receivable on Khairanitar branch misappropriation  84,904,152  84,904,152 
Receivable on Kisanpur branch misappropriation  942,000  942,000 
Impairment Charge  (127,018,633)  (125,754,459)
Total  44,719,199  56,661,457 

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
There was no due to Bank and financial institution by the Microfinance during the year.	 Note-4.15

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Borrowing from BFIs  -    -   
Settlement and clearing accounts  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
There was no due to Nepal Rastra Bank by the Microfinance during the year.	 Note-4.16

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Refinance from NRB  -    -   
Standing Liquidity Facility  -    -   
Lender of last report facility from NRB  -    -   
Securities sold under repurchase agreements  -    -   
Other payable to NRB  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Derivative financial instruments
There were no Derivative financial instruments held by the Microfinance during the year.	 Note-4.17

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Held for trading  -    -   
Interest rate swap  -    -   
Currency swap  -    -   
Forward exchange contract  -    -   
Others  -    -   
Held for risk management  -    -   
Interest rate swap  -    -   
Currency swap  -    -   
Forward exchange contract  -    -   
Others  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Deposits from customers
	 Note-4.18

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Institutions customers:  -    -   
Term deposits  -    -   
Call deposits  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Individual customers:  1,894,900,281  1,582,064,180 
Term deposits  -    -   
Saving deposits  -    -   
Savings from Members  1,894,900,281  1,582,064,180 
Other  -    -   
Total  1,894,900,281  1,582,064,180 

Borrowing
	 Note-4.19

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government  -    -   
Other licensed Institutions  3,359,277,082  2,776,891,693 
Other  -    -   
Sub total  3,359,277,082  2,776,891,693 
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions  -    -   
Multilateral Development Banks  -    -   
Other Institutions  -    -   
Sub total  -    -   
Total  3,359,277,082  2,776,891,693 

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Provisions
There was no provision made by the Microfinance during the year.	 Note-4.20

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Provisions for redundancy  -    -   
Provision for restructuring  -    -   
Pending legal issues and tax litigation  -    -   
Onerous contracts  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Movement in provision
	 Note-4.20.1

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Balance at Shrawan 1  125,754,459  125,037,459 
Provisions made during the year  1,264,174  942,000 
Provisions used during the year  -    -   
Provisions reversed during the year  -    (225,000)
Unwind of discount  -    -   
Balance at Ashad end  127,018,633  125,754,459 

Other liabilities
	 Note-4.21

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations  26,950,758  27,670,499 
Liability for long-service leave  28,835,435  23,585,995 
Short-term employee benefits  1,119,589  2,638,663 
Bills payable  -    -   
Creditors and accruals  6,401,501  12,517,449 
Interest payable on deposit  380,781  509,336 
Interest payable on borrowing  -    -   
Liabilities on deferred grant income  -    -   
Unpaid Dividend  -    -   
Liabilities under Finance Lease  47,456,101  54,526,336 
Employee bonus payable  9,187,535  2,492,278 
Other  3,822,182  25,542,468 
Total  124,153,883  149,483,024 

Defined benefit obligations
	 Note-4.21.1

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Present value of funded obligations  26,950,758  27,721,629 
Total present value of obligations  26,950,758  27,721,629 
Fair value of plan assets  -    -   
Present value of net obligations  26,950,758  27,721,629 
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations  26,950,758  27,721,629 

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Plan assets
	 Note-4.21.2

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Equity securities  -    -   
Government bonds  -    -   
Bank deposit  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
	 Note-4.21.3

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1  27,670,499  25,306,109 
Actuarial losses/(gain)  (796,036)  (5,207,609)
Benefits paid by the plan  1,632,019 1554336
Current service costs and interest  1,708,314 9126335
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end  26,950,758  27,670,499 

Movement in the fair value of plan assets
	 Note-4.21.4

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1  -    -   
Contributions paid into the plan  -    -   
Benefits paid during the year  -    -   
Actuarial (losses) gains  -    -   
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end  -    -   

Amount recognized in profit or loss
	 Note-4.21.5

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Current service costs  2,477,281.00  6,871,559 
Interest on obligation  6,960,454.00  2,254,776 
Past Service Cost  (7,729,421.00)

Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Total  1,708,314  9,126,335 

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income
	 Note-4.21.6

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Actuarial (gain)/loss  (796,036)  (5,207,609)
Total  (796,036)  (5,207,609)

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Actuarial assumptions
	 Note-4.21.7

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Discount rate 7% 10%
Expected return on plan asset 0% 0%
Future salary increase 5% 5%
Withdrawal rate "Up to 35 years: 20%  

& above 35 years: 10%"

Liability for long-service leave
	 Note-4.21.8

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Present value of long-service leave  28,835,435  23,585,995 
Total present value of long-service leave  28,835,435  23,585,995 
Fair value of plan assets  -    -   
Present value of net long-service leave  28,835,435  23,585,995 
Recognized liability for long-service leave  28,835,435  23,585,995 

Plan assets
	 Note-4.21.9

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Equity securities  -    -   
Government bonds  -    -   
Bank deposit  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Movement in the present value of Liability for Long service leave
	 Note-4.21.10

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Long service leave at Shrawan 1  23,585,995  25,540,367 
Actuarial losses/(gain)  4,467,852  (3,689,385)
Benefits paid by the plan  6,856,629  7,336,659 
Current service costs and interest  7,638,217  9,071,672 
Long service leave at Ashad end  28,835,435  23,585,995 

Movement in the fair value of plan assets
	 Note-4.21.11

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1  -    -   
Contributions paid into the plan  -    -   
Benefits paid during the year  -    -   
Actuarial (losses) gains  -    -   
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end  -    -   
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Amount recognized in profit or loss
	 Note-4.21.12

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Current service costs  5,622,449  6,884,468 
Interest on obligation  2,015,768  2,187,204 
Actuarial (gain)/loss  4,467,852  (3,689,385)
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Total  12,106,069  5,382,287 

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income
	 Note-4.21.13

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Actuarial (gain)/loss  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Actuarial assumptions
	 Note-4.21.14

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Discount rate 7% 10%
Expected return on plan asset 0% 0%
Future salary increase 5% 5%
Withdrawal rate "Up to 35 years: 20% 

Debt securities issued
No debt securities have been issued by the Microfinance	 Note-4.22

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through 
profit or loss

 -    -   

Debt securities issued at amortized cost  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Subordinated Liabilities
No Subordinated Liabilities has been issued by the Microfinance.	 Note-4.23

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Redeemable preference shares  -    -   
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities 
component)

 -    -   

Other  -    -   
Total  -    -   
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Share capital
	 Note-4.24

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Ordinary shares  367,143,409  367,143,409 
Convertible preference shares (equity component only)  -    -   
Irredeemable preference shares (equity component only)  -    -   
Perpetual debt (equity component only)  -    -   
Total  367,143,409  367,143,409 

Ordinary shares
	 Note-4.24.1

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Authorized Capital
75,00,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each  750,000,000  750,000,000 
Issued capital
36,71,434 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each  367,143,409  367,143,409 
Subscribed and paid up capital
36,71,434 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each  367,143,409  367,143,409 
Total  367,143,409  367,143,409 

Ordinary share ownership
		  Note-4.24.2

Ashad end 2082
Particulars % Amount
Domestic ownership
Nepal Government 0.00%  -   
"A" class licensed institutions 5.88%  21,594,600 
Other licensed institutions 9.87%  36,223,400 
Other Institutions 0.00%  -   
Other 50.29%  184,626,468 
Public Shareholders 33.96%  124,698,941 
Foreign Ownership 0.00%  -   
Total 100.00%  367,143,409 

Ashad end 2081
Particulars % Amount
Domestic ownership
Nepal Government 0.00%  -   
"A" class licensed institutions 5.88%  21,594,600 
Other licensed institutions 9.87%  36,223,400 
Other Institutions 0.00%  -   
Other 50.29%  184,626,468 
Public Shareholders 33.96%  124,698,941 
Total
Total 100.00%  367,143,409 
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Reserves
	 Note-4.25

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Statutory general reserve  64,279,207  46,669,229 
Capital reserve  3,840,000  3,840,000 
Exchange equalization reserve  -    -   
Investment adjustment reserve  -    -   
Corporate social responsibility reserve  1,171,886  882,842 
Client Protection Fund  28,854,001  29,104,706 
Capital redemption reserve  -   
Regulatory reserve  100,308,574  84,882,527 
Assets revaluation reserve  -    -   
Fair value reserve  (281,508)  -   
Dividend equalization reserve  -    -   
Actuarial gain  (1,671,468)  (2,228,693)
Special reserve  -    -   
Debenture redemption reserve  -    -   
Other reserve  -  4,259,713 
Total  196,500,692  167,410,324 

General Reserve	 	 4.25.1
General Reserve is created as per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 equivalent to 20% of the net 
profit earned during the year until the reserve is twice the paid-up share capital of the Microfinance after which 10% of the 
net profit earned during the year shall be set aside as General Reserve.	
	
Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra Bank.		
	
		
Client Protection Fund	 	 4.25.2
As per Clause 4.1Ja of Microfinance Directive, 2081 issued by NRB, every microfinance must allocate 1.5% of its profit to 
Client Protection Fund.
	
Corporate Social Responsibililty Fund		  4.25.3
The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating profit of 1% has been presented under 
this account head.	
	
Exchange Equalization Reserve	 	 4.25.4
Exchange Fluctuation Reserve is the reserve created as per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 
equivalent to 25% of the foreign exchange gain realized on the translation of foreign currency to the reporting currency 
during the year other than Indian Rupees.	
	
Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra Bank other than 
to set off revaluation loss incurred, if any during the year.		

Capital Reserve	 	 4.25.5
The assets received under grant has been booked under Property and Equipment by creating a capital reserve of equal 
amount. The annual depreciation is deducted every year from this reserve till the useful life of assets. The balance of 
capital reserve depicts Written down Value of the Grant Assets.		
		
Fair Value Reserve	 	 4.25.6
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair 
value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. The 
cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets has been presented under this account head.	

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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Contingent liabilities and commitments 	 Note-4.26
Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Contingent liabilities  -    -   
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities  -    -   
Capital commitment  -    -   
Lease Commitment  56,239,975  67,182,364 
Litigation  -    -   
Others  -    -   
Total  56,239,975  67,182,364 

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been made in financial 
statements 
	 Note-4.26.1

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment  -    -   
Approved and contracted for  -    -   
Approved but not contracted for  -    -   
Sub total  -    -   
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets  -    -   
Approved and contracted for  -    -   
Approved but not contracted for  -    -   
Sub total  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Lease commitments
	 Note-4.26.2

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable 
operating lease, where the institution is lessee
Not later than 1 year  -    -   
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  -    -   
Sub total  -    -   
Sub total  -    -   
Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable 
finance lease, where institution is lessee
Not later than 1 year  18,499,218  19,612,104 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  35,830,590  44,272,093 
Later than 5 years  1,910,167  3,298,167 
Sub total  56,239,975  67,182,364 
Grand total  56,239,975  67,182,364 

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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 Litigation		  Note-4.26.3
Explanatory paragraphs are required for litigation contingent liabilities as per their own case of each institution
	
Interest Income
	 Note-4.27

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Cash and cash equivalent  -    -   
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  -    -   
Placement with bank and financial institutions  3,140,307  3,716,380 
Loan and advances to financial institutions  -    -   
Loans and advances to customers  719,141,466  695,730,610 
Investment securities  -    -   
Loan and advances to staff  179,320  50,912 
Other  258,227  -   
Total interest income  722,719,320  699,497,902 

Interest Expense
	 Note-4.28

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Due to bank and financial institutions  -    -   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank  -    -   
Deposits from customers  120,293,090  104,521,117 
Borrowing  229,782,942  314,238,773 
Other  -    -   
Total interest expense  350,076,033  418,759,890 

Fees and Commission Income
	 Note-4.29

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Loan administration fees  50,662,704  39,384,864 
Service fees  2,334,477  7,770,272 
Remittance fees  -   

Other fees and commission income  6,488,550  1,000,396 
Total fees and Commission Income  59,485,731  48,155,531 

Fees and Commission Expense
	 Note-4.30

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Remittance fees and commission  -    -   
Other fees and commission expense  1,412,091  2,968,600 
Total Fees and Commission Expense  1,412,091  2,968,600 

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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Net Trading Income
There was no trading income earned by the Microfinance during the year.
	 Note-4.31

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Changes in fair value of trading assets  -    -   
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets  -    -   
Interest income on trading assets  -    -   
Dividend income on trading assets  -    -   
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction  -    -   
Other Net trading income  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Total Net Trading Income  -    -   
Other  -    -   

Operating Income
	 Note-4.32

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Foreign exchange revaluation gain  -    -   
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities  -    -   
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties  -    -   
Dividend on equity instruments  -    -   
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment  -    -   
Gain/loss on sale of investment property  -    -   
Operating lease income  -    -   
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver  -    -   
Other  -    -   
Total Operating Income  -    -   

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses
	 Note-4.33

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs  -    -   
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer  28,869,458  (398,552)
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment  -    -   
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and 
financial institutions

 -    -   

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment  -    -   
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets  -    -   
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties  -    -   
Total  28,869,458  (398,552)

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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Personnel Expense
	 Note-4.34

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Salary Allowances  192,119,973  201,209,402 
Gratuity expense  1,708,314  9,126,335 
Provident fund  8,122,697  7,852,424 
Uniform  -    -   
Training & development expense  7,830,473  5,196,555 
Leave encashment  12,106,069  5,382,287 
Medical Insurance  665,941  714,734 
Employees incentive  -    -   
Cash-settled share-based payments  -    -   
Pension expense  -    -   
Finance expense under NFRSs  692,814  50,912 
Other expenses related to staff  -    -   
Sub Total  223,246,281  229,532,648 
Employees bonus  8,419,668  1,230,173 
Grand Total  231,665,949  230,762,822 

Other operating expense
	 Note-4.35

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Directors' fee  504,000  600,000 
Directors' expense  813,156  424,688 
Auditors' remuneration  452,000  452,000 
Other audit related expense  113,396  253,927 
Professional and legal expense  724,768  836,764 
Office administration expense  62,306,944  50,523,610 
Operating lease expense  -    -   
Operating expense of investment properties  -    -   
Corporate social responsibility expense  -    -   
Client Protection expenses  -    -   
Onerous lease provisions  -    -   
Finance expense -Right of use of assets  5,499,782  6,246,043 
NFRS Consultancy Fee  84,750  150,000 
Other  -    -   
Total  70,498,796  59,487,032 

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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Office Administration Expense
	 Note-4.35.1

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Water and electricity  1,556,362  1,524,449 
Repair and maintenance  -    -   
(a) Building  -    -   
(b) Vehicle  466,187  603,546 
(c) Computer and accessories  -    -   
(d) Office equipment and furniture  1,339,165  941,175 
(e) Other  -    -   
Insurance  19,174,794  9,733,416 
Postage, telex, telephone, fax  3,957,880  2,184,432 
Printing and stationery  4,196,610  4,865,585 
News paper, books and journals  -    1,800 
Advertisement  470,725  441,014 
Donation  -    -   
Security expense  -    -   
Deposit and loan guarantee premium  -    -   
Travel allowance and expense  13,631,917  11,101,176 
Entertainment  620,870  612,736 
Annual/special general meeting expense  906,244  386,505 
Other  -    -   
(a) Registration and renewals  1,076,352  1,276,039 
(b) Office Furniture and Fixtures  1,010,714  2,113,289 
(c) Fuel Expense  9,368,639  11,467,375 
(d) Software annual fees  3,533,177  2,662,845 
(e) Other  997,310  608,228 
Total  62,306,944  50,523,610 

The microfinance institution has various lease agreements with durations ranging from 2 to 10 years. These leases are 
subject to renewal based on mutual agreement and include escalation clauses. In accordance with NFRS 16, the right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities have been determined.		

Depreciation & Amortization
	 Note-4.36

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Depreciation on property and equipment  4,428,076  6,986,052 
Depreciation of Right of use of assets  17,673,518  15,245,450 
Depreciation on investment property  -    -   
Amortization of intangible assets  539,944  823,834 
Total  22,641,538  23,055,336 

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Non Operating Income
	 Note-4.37

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Recovery of loan written off  -    -   
Other income  -    225,000 
Total  -    225,000 

Non operating expense
	 Note-4.38

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Loan written off  -    -   
Redundancy provision  -    -   
Expense of restructuring  -    -   
Provision on other assets  1,264,174  942,000 
Other expense  -    1,152,000 
Total  1,264,174  2,094,000 

Income tax expense
	 Note-4.39

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Current tax expense  28,172,944  10,814,777 
Current year  25,400,770  7,127,343 
Adjustments for prior years  2,772,174  3,687,434 
Deferred tax expense  (40,445,824)  346,443 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences  (40,445,824)  346,443 
Changes in tax rate  -    -   
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses  -    -   
Total income tax expense  (12,272,880)  11,161,220 

 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
	 Note-4.39.1

Particulars Ashad end 2082 Ashad end 2081
Profit before tax  75,777,013  11,149,305 
Tax amount at tax rate of 30%  22,733,104  3,344,792 
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose  13,220,595  13,724,410 
Less: Tax effect on exempt income 0  -   
Add/less: Tax effect on other items  (10,552,929)  (9,941,859)
Total income tax expense  25,400,770  7,127,343 
Effective tax rate 33.52% 63.93%
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Deferred Tax	 			   Note-4.13
			   (Amount in NPR)

Particulars
Ashad end 2082

Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax 
Assets/ (Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
 Loan and Advance to B/FIs  -    -    -   
Loans and advances to customers  -    -    -   
Investment properties  -    -    -   
Investment securities  -    -    -   
Property & equipment  3,085,244  -    3,085,244 
Employees' defined benefit plan  16,735,858  -    16,735,858 
Right of use of assets  -    12,430,634 -12,430,634 
Lease liabilities  14,236,830  -    14,236,830 
Acturial Gain/Loss  -    -    -   
Fair Value reserve(Investment in shares)  -    -    -   
Provision for other asset  38,105,590  38,105,590 
Other temporary differences  -    -    -   
Deferred tax on temporary differences  59,732,888 
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 2081/82  59,732,888 
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Shrawan 1, 2081  19,405,229 
Origination/(Reversal) during the year  40,327,659 
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss  (40,445,824)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehen-
sive income

 118,164 

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity

4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities
		

Ashad end 2082
Particulars Cost Fair Value
Investment in quoted equity
Investment in unquoted equity  1,000,000  597,846 
Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd.10,000 shares of Rs.100 each
Total  1,000,000  597,846 
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5. 	 Disclosures and Additional Information		
5.1 	 Risk Management 	 	
	 The Micro Finance in compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank Directive No.6 “Corporate Governance” has established a 

Risk Management Committee. Such committee comprised of following members as on date of the report:	
	

S.N. Members of Risk Management Committee	 Designation
1 Bimal Acharya Coordinator
2 Tirtha Sagar Aryal Member
3 Chandan Kumar Sardar Member-Secretary

	 The committee shall meet at least once every 3 months and also as per necessity based on circumstances. The 
committees play the advisory roles in the issues of risk of the Micro Finance after overseeing the various risk relat-
ing to liquidity, credit, operation, capital etc. The committee’s major function is to identify and minimize the Liquidity 
Risk, Credit Risk, Operating Risk, Marketing Risk and IT Risk		

	 Management Committee		
	 The Management Committee comprises of following subcommittees which represents by all key Business and 

Function Heads of Micro Finance that manages Micro Finance’s operation on day-to-day basis:		

a. 	 Procurement Committee	
S.N. Members Designation

1 Shiva Prasad Gyawali Coordinator
2 Manarupa Paudel Member
3 Hom Prasad Adhikari Member-Secretary

b. 	 Human Resource Committee
S.N. Members Designation

1 Santosh Pokharel Coordinator
2 Manarupa Paudel Member
3 Ram Paudyal Member-Secretary

c. 	 Finance Committee
S.N. Members Designation

1 Shiva Prasad Gyawali Coordinator
2 Manarupa Paudel Member
3 Chandan Kumar Sardar Member
4 Hom Prasad Adhikari Member-Secretary

d. 	 Audit Committee
S.N. Members Designation

1 Tirtha Sagar Aryal Coordinator
2 Kamal Prasad Timalsina Member
3 Dev Chandra Ray Member-Secretary

e. 	 AML/CFT
S.N. Members Designation

1 Puspa Raj Dhakal Coordinator
2 Shiva Prasad Gyawali Member
3 Top Bahadur Raskoti Member
4 Chandan Kumar Sardar Member-Secretary
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f. 	 Credit Committee
S.N. Members Designation

1 Top Bahadur Raskoti Coordinator
2 Manrupa Poudel Member
3 Ram Paudel Member
4 Kalpana Bista Member-Secretary

	 Aforementioned sub-committee meets as and when required. The strategies of Micro Finance are decided and 
monitored on regular basis and decision are taken collectively by this committee. 		

	
5.1.1   Liquidity Risk		
	 Liquidity has been actively monitored at an appropriate frequency. Routine reporting, Trend Analysis and Budget 

Variance Analysis was in place to BOD and through the ALCO and Risk Management Committee.		
		
5.1.2   Interest Rate Risk 		
	 Interest rate risk is the potential that a change in overall interest rates will increase the cost of funds. To limit this 

risk, Laghubitta has arranged for diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base and has implement-
ed a policy of managing assets with interest rates in mind, monitoring interest rates on a regular basis, and making 
repayment accordingly.		

5.1.3   Credit Risk		
	 The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained from 

Micro Finance as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk.

	 A loan application form which has been used by Micro Finance, includes all the relevant data and information re-
quired for assessment of borrowers’ background, business and experience, financial statement of borrower, credi-
bility, sector wise analysis etc.

	 The credit policy of Micro Finance has been guided by NRB Directives, Sector wise/ Product wise reporting of risk 
assets on monthly basis, reporting of top borrowers and their analysis"		

		
5.1.4   Operational Risk		
	 Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, peo-

ple and systems or from the impact of external events, including legal risks for the Laghubitta. Operational Risk is 
pervasive across all the functions of the Laghubitta and is influenced by all resources, including human resource, 
systems and procedural designs, deployed by the Laghubitta to carry out those functions. Operational Risk can be 
caused by both internal and external sources such as fraud, business interruptions, system failures, damage to 
physical infrastructure, failure in execution and service delivery, inherent risks in products, customers, inadequacy 
in procedures or flawed process designs, and business practices. The risk can occur in any business function or the 
business supporting functions.		

5.2 	 Capital Management		
	 The Laghubitta's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is 

adequately capitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns. The microfinance is a licensed 
institution providing financial services therefore it must comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank. 	
	

(i) 	 Qualitative disclosures		
	 Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to 

manage all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well 
as strategies for maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient 
process of managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. 
The Microfinance has BODs approved risk management policies for proper governance. The Microfinance has 
developed a comprehensive ICAAP document which is subject to review every year. The ICAAP has two major 
components; first is an internal process to identify, measure, manage and report risks to which the microfinance is 
exposed or could be exposed in the future; and second is an internal process to plan and manage a microfinance’s 
capital so as to ensure adequate capital. Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Microfinance to develop own internal 
policy, procedures and structures to manage all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in 
relation to the risk profiles as well as strategies for maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of 
having good governance, efficient process of managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and 
maintaining adequate capital.		
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5.3     Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities	 		
	 The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortized Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value 

through other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the classification of financial assets and liabili-
ties:	

As on Ashad End 2082
Particulars Amortized Cost (NPR.) FVTOCI Total (NPR.)

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalent  458,809,245  -    458,809,245 
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra 
Bank 

 30,194,331  -    30,194,331 

Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions  20,000,000  -    20,000,000 
Derivative Financial Instruments    -    -    -   
Other Trading Assets  -    -    -   
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives  -    -    -   
Loans and Advances to Customers  5,266,571,091  -    5,266,571,091 
Investment Securities  -    597,846  597,846 
Current Tax Assets  -    -    -   
Investment Property  -    -    -   
Property and Equipment  -    -    -   
Goodwill and Intangible assets  -    -    -   
Deferred Tax Assets  -    -    -   
Other Assets  -    -    -   
Total Financial Assets  5,775,574,668  597,846  5,776,172,513 
Financial Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions  -    -    -   
Due to Nepal Rastra  -    -   
Derivative Financial Instrument  -    -    -   
Deposits from Customers  1,894,900,281  -    1,894,900,281 
Borrowing  3,359,277,082  -    3,359,277,082 
Current Tax Liabilities  -    -    -   
Provisions  -    -    -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    -    -   
Other Liabilities  -    -    -   
Debt Securities Issued  -    -    -   
Subordinated Liabilities  -    -    -   
Total Financial Liabilities  5,254,177,363  -    5,254,177,363 

	
5.4 	 Segment Analysis	 						    
	 The Microfinance’s operation is managed centrally through Head Office. All strategic, financial and operational pol-

icies and operations are controlled and directed from the head office. The Microfinance operates in seven prove-
niences though has single jurisdiction details are mentioned below: 						    
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5.5 	Share options and share based payment 	 	
	 There is no share-based payment made by the Microfinance.		
		
5.6 	Contingent liabilities and commitment 	 	
	 The Microfinance discloses amount as contingent liabilities when it undertakes to make a payment on behalf of 

its customers for guarantee issued as part of its transactions for which no obligation will arise at the end of the 
reporting period. Other contingent liability can arise in respect of taxes and other regulatory liabilities. Though Micro 
Finance has been complying with applicable laws and regulation it may be subject to regulatory action which may 
result in material financial liability to the Micro Finance and are difficult to predict. None of such material claim exist 
at the end of reporting date. 			 

	 When the Micro Finance has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customers in 
the form of loans and advances, future guarantee and the Micro Finance has not made the payment at the end of 
reporting period, those instruments are included in the financial statements as commitment.			 

	 Contingent liabilities and commitments have been disclosed in Note 4.26.		
		
5.7	 Related Parties Disclosures	 	
	 Followings are the related parties to the Micro Finance as per NAS 24” Related Parties Disclosures”:		

i. 	 Key Management Personnel (KMP)		
	 The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing and 

controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director. The key management of the Micro-
finance includes members of its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and other higher-level employee of the 
Microfinance. The name of the key management personnel who were holding various positions in the office during 
the year (As at Ashad end 2082) were as follows:			 

	

Name of Key Management Personnel Designation
Shiva Prasad Gyawali CEO
Manarupa Paudel Assistant General Manager
Chandan Kumar Sardar Manager
Dev Chandra Roy Deputy Manager
Top Bahadur Raskoti Assistant Manager

5.7.1 Compensation to Key Management Personnel	 	
	 The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and allowances are provided to Chief 

Executive Officer and other member of Key Management Personnel (KMP). Salary and Allowances paid to the Chief 
Executive Officer is based on the contract entered by the Microfinance with him whereas compensation paid to other 
member of KMP are governed by Employees Byelaws and decisions made by management time to time in this re-
gard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits like vehicle facility, subsidized rate employees’ loan, 
and termination benefits are also provided to KMP.			

	 The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel (Director’s only) were as follows:	
Particulars FY 2081.82 FY 2080.81
Director’s Fee (including all BoD level committee)  504,000  600,000 
Other Expenses  813,156  424,688 
Total  1,317,156  1,024,688 

	 The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors were as follows:	
	
Name Position Remuneration
Shiva Prasad Gyawali CEO  4,082,800 
Manarupa Paudel Assistant General Manager  1,675,278 
Chandan Kumar Sardar Manager  448,208 
Biratpati Nath Gachhadar Manager  839,370 
Devchandra Roy Deputy Manager  1,029,976 
Top Bahadur Raskoti Assistant manager  974,885 
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	 Besides above remuneration, vehicle facilities were provided to key management personnel. Above amount also 
includes the retirement facilities.		

		
5.8 	Goodwill on Business Combination 	 	
	 During the fiscal year 2076/77, the Microfinance had merged with erstwhile Aarambha Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha 

Limited (AMFI) and commenced joint operations from 22 Ashad 2077. The Microfinance has issued 644,280 units 
of shares to shareholders of AMFI as purchase consideration on the basis of swap ratio of 1 shares of ACLBSL for 
each share of AMFI recommended by an independent valuator in accordance with Merger and Acquisition Bylaw 
2073 issued by the Central Bank.  Similarly, during the fiscal year 2078/79, the Microfinance had acquired Deurali 
Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd and commenced joint operations from 30 Kartik 2078. Post-acquisition, Deurali share-
holders had received 0.84 shares of ACLBSL for each share of Deurali(swap ratio of 84%). The Microfinance had 
adopted conventional way of booking swap gain from merger and acquisition as per point 9(Kha) of NRB Merger and 
Acquisition Bylaws, 2073 then. However, after the issuance of this Explanatory Note, the Carve-out no. 3 and 4 on 
NFRS 3: Business Combination issued by ICAN on 2077.07.25 stands withdrawn and revised treatment is applicable 
for Goodwill computation. Para 32 of NFRS 3 states that “The acquirer shall recognize goodwill as of the acquisition 
date measured as the excess of (a) over (b) below:			

(a) 	 The consideration transferred measured in accordance with this NFRS, which generally requires acquisition date fair 
value			 

(b) 	 The net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed measured in 
accordance with this NFRS.			 

	 As per Explanatory Note on Accounting for Business Combination dated 31 July 2022, Goodwill may be measured in 
a business combination effected through exchange of equity interest of the acquirer by considering the business val-
uation of acquiree computed based on the similar terms as for the purpose of computing swap ratio which is agreed 
by the parties involved and approved by regulator and AGM of the company and hence is reflective of fair value. The 
excess of consideration paid by the acquirer over the business value of the acquiree is only considered as goodwill 
because it represents the expected synergies and other benefits arising from combining the businesses.		
	

	 The calculation of Goodwill as per explanatory note is given below:	

a) 	 Arambha Microfinance	
Particulars Amount (NPR)
No. of shares 600,000
Additional shares from DDA date to Joint transaction date 44,280
Total share at the time of joint transaction 644,280
SWAP ratio 100%
No. of shares issued 644,280
Net worth per share of CHLBS as per DDA 129.28
Purchase consideration 83,292,518
Business Value acquired 69,724,859
Goodwill  13,567,660.00 

	
b) 	 Deurali Microfinance

Particulars Amount (NPR)
No. of shares 240,000
Additional shares from DDA date to Joint transaction date                   -   
Total share at the time of joint transaction 240,000
SWAP ratio 84%
No. of shares issued 201,600
Net worth per share of ACLBSL as per DDA 118.67
Purchase consideration 23,924,598
Business Value acquired 14,122,040
Goodwill 9,802,558
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	 The Microfinance has recognized NPR. 13,567,660 and NPR. 9,802,558 as Goodwill of Arambha Microfinance and 
Deurali Microfinance respectively and apportioned under other Reserve of equity. Since the recoverable amount is 
higher than carrying amount of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) (value in use), goodwill allocated is not impaired.		
		

5.9 	Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities	 	
	 There are no further disclosures to be made as per NFRS requirements.		
		
5.10 Events after reporting date. 	 	
	 There are no other events after Reporting Date affecting financial status as on Ashad end, 2082.
		
5.11 Valuation Hierarchy		
	 Following tables demonstrates the valuation hierarchy of Microfinance’s Assets and Liabilities. This fair value may 

differ from the actual amount that may be received or paid on settlement, realization or maturity of those Financial 
Assets and Liabilities.		

	 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value	
	
	 The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:	
	
Level 1 	 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets 

or liabilities.
Level 2 	 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical 

or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant 
inputs are observable.	

Level 3 	 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are not based on ob-
servable market data.		

Unquoted equity As on Amount
Level 1 2080.03.31  -   

2081.03.31  -   
2082.03.32  -   

Level 2 2080.03.31  -   
2081.03.31  -   
2082.03.32  -   

Level 2 2080.03.31  1,000,000 
2081.03.31  1,000,000 
2082.03.32  597,846 

5.12 Impairment of financial assets		
	 At each reporting date, the Microfinance has assessed whether there exists objective evidence that a financial asset 

or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be 
estimated reliably.

			 
	 Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or 

issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Microfinance on terms that 
the Microfinance would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the 
disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as 
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate 
with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its 
fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment. 			 

	 In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Microfinance considers to restructure loans rather than take 
possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan 
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conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated 
before the modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews 
renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue 
to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.		
	

5.12.1 Use of Carve Outs for Financial Assets 		
a. 	 Regulatory Compliance in Provisioning		
	 The Microfinance applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model under Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) 

9 for recognizing impairment loss on financial assets. As per the non-optional carve-out provided by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) until FY 2082/83, the Bank measures impairment loss on loans and 
advances as the higher of:			 

i. 	 The amount determined under the Expected loss model as per ECL guideline issued by Nepal, and
ii. 	 The amount of loan loss provision required as per the unified directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB)."		

	
Particulars 2081/82
Total Loan loss provision as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB Directive No. 2) 
and circular issued.

84,195,408

Total Impairment as per Expected Credit Loss NFRS 9 26,553,302

	 "As, Loan loss provision as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank is higher, impairment loss on loans and 
advances is made accordingly.

	 The Microfinance has classified total loan loss provision mentioned above is on the basis of Collective Impairment. 
 
The final provision recorded in the financial statements for each year represents the higher of the two calculated 
amounts, ensuring full compliance with both accounting and regulatory requirements.		

	 Implementation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Framework			
			 
	 During the year, the Microfinance fully implemented the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model as mandated by Nepal 

Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) 9 and guided by the detailed NFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 
2024 and First Amendment to ECL Guideline, 2024 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB). This forward-looking model 
replaces the previous incurred loss approach and requires the Microfinance to recognize expected credit losses 
based on past events, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions. 
 
The implementation involved the development of robust models for estimating Probability of Default (PD), Loss 
Given Default (LGD), and Exposure at Default (EAD).			 
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5.13 	Disclosures of Gross Amount of Loan and Advances as per Regulatory Classification

5.13.1 Disclosures of Gross Amount of Loan and Advances and Provision as per Regulatory Classification

5.13.2 Disclosures of Loan Loss Provision as per Regulatory Classification

Particulars
2082 Ashad 2081 Ashad Change in 

Loan Amount % Loan Amount % Loan Amount %
Pass  4,943,893,407 93%  3,554,331,281 83%  1,389,562,126 10%
Watchlist  87,816,899 2%  116,390,017 3%  (28,573,118) -1%
Restructured  -   0.00%  446,354,678 10%  (446,354,678) -10%
Performing Loan  5,031,710,306 94%  4,117,075,976 96%  1,360,989,008 -1%
Substandard  41,557,997 1%  39,276,987 1%  2,281,010 0%
Doubtful  59,834,182 1%  31,321,671 1%  28,512,511 0%
Loss  195,905,040 4%  110,286,693 3%  85,618,347 1%
Non-Performing 
Loan

 297,297,218 6%  180,885,351 4%  116,411,868 1%

Total Loan  5,329,007,525 100.00%  4,297,961,327 100.00%  1,477,400,876  (0)

Particulars
2082 Ashad 2081 Ashad Change in 

LLP Amount % LLP Amount % LLP Amount %
Pass  12,359,734 15%  11,537,796 21%  821,937 -6%
Watchlist  1,097,711 1%  1,447,561 3%  (349,850) -1%
Performing Loan  13,457,445 16%  12,985,357 23%  472,087 -7%
Restructured  -   0.00%  5,389,466 10%  (5,389,466) -10%
Substandard  2,597,375 3.08%  2,074,032 4%  523,343 -1%
Doubtful  7,479,273 8.88%  3,125,317 6%  4,353,955 3%
Loss  59,906,354 71.15%  31,524,069 57%  28,382,285 14%
Additonal Provision 
by Auditor

 754,962 0.90%  227,708 0%  527,254 0%

Non-Performing 
Loan

 70,737,964 84.02%  42,340,593 77%  28,397,371 7%

Total Loan  84,195,408 100.00%  55,325,950 100.00%  28,869,458  0 

5.14 Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements	

Misappropriation of fund amounting Rs. 126,049,084.3 done by staff of the bank till date. For which legal action 
has already been taken by Microfinance and respective staff is still in police custody, for these events necessary 
adjustment has been made in books of accounts and adjusted balances are presented in financial statements.  
 
Among which, fund amounting to Rs. 942,000 has been misappropriated by the staff of Kisanpur Branch in the fiscal year 
2080/81. For which legal action has been taken as the respective staff is out of contact.		
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)

PRINCIPAL INDICATOR

Particulars Indicators FY 2081/82 FY 2080/81
Net Profit/ Gross Income Percent 11.26% 0.09%
Earnings Per Share NPR  23.98 0.19
Market Value Per Share NPR 1087.41 1230.00
Price Earning Ratio Ratio  45.34 6631.505202
Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital Percent 0.00 0.00
Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent 0.00 0.00
Interest Income/ Loans and Advances and Investments Percent 13.51% 16.28%
Staff Expenses/ Total Operating Expenses Percent 71.32% 73.65%
Interest Expenses/ Total Deposits & Borrowings Percent 7.28% 9.68%
Exchange Gain/ Total Income Percent 0.00% 0.00%
Staff Bonus/ Total Staff Expenses Percent 3.63% 0.53%
Net Profit/Total Loans & Advances Percent 1.65% 0.02%
Net Profit/ Total Assets Percent 1.48% 0.01%
Total Loans & Advances/ Total Deposits Percent 282.38% 271.67%

Total Operating Expenses/ Total Assets Percent 5.46% 6.12%
Capital Adequacy (On Risk Weighted Assets)
    a. Core Capital Percent 7.52% 7.75%
    b. Supplementary Capital Percent 0.24% 0.28%
    c. Total Capital Fund Percent 7.77% 8.03%
Non-Performing Loan/ Total Loans & Advances Percent 5.58% 4.21%
Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent 8.06% 8.71%
Book Net Worth (Per Share) NPR 155 132
Number of Shares Nos. 3671434 3671434
No. of Staff Nos. 458 451
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Quantitative Disclosures	
Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy	

A. Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components:	

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Paid up Equity Share Capital  367,143,409 
Share Premium  -   
Proposed Bonus Equity Shares  -   
Statutory General Reserves  64,279,207 
Retained Earnings  3,657,283 
Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss)  -   
Capital Redemption Reserve  -   
Capital Adjustment Reserves  3,840,000 
Dividend Equalization Reserves  -   
Bargain Purchase Gain  -   
Deferred Tax Reserve  -   
Other Free Reserve  -   
Less: Goodwill  -   
Less: Intangible Asset  -   
Less: Fictitious Asset  -   
Less: Deferred Tax Asset  -   
Less: Investment in equity of Licensed Financial Institutions  -   
Less: Investment in equity of Institutions with financial interests  -   
Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits  -   
Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments  -   
Less: Purchase of Land & Building in excess of limit & unutilized  -   
Less: Reciprocal crossholdings  -   
Less: Other Deductions  -   
Total Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital)  438,919,899

 
	
B. Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components:	
Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share  -   
Subordinated Term Debt  -   
Hybrid Capital Instruments  -   
General loan loss provision  13,457,445 
Additional Loan Loss Provison  754,962 
Exchange Equalization Reserves  -   
Investments Adjustment Reserves  -   
Assets Revaluation Reserves  -   
Special Reserve Fund  -   
Total Tier 2 Capital (Supplementary Capital)  14,212,407

 	
(iii) Compliance with external requirement	
The Laghubitta has compiled with externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject and there is no such 
consequence where the institutions has not compiled with those requirements.	

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

At the month end of Ashad, 2082

STATEMENT OF RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS (RWA)

I. On- Balance-Sheet Items	 			 

S.No. Description
Weight Current period

(%)  Amount (NPR.)  RWA 
1 Cash Balance 0  5,625,931  -   
2 Gold (Tradable) 0  -    -   
3 NRB Balance 0  30,194,331  -   
4 Investment to Govt. Bond 0  -    -   
5 Investment to NRB Bond 0  -    -   
6 Loan against own FD 0  -    -   
7 Loan against Govt. Bond 0  -    -   
8 Accrued Interests on Govt. Bond 0  -    -   
9 Investment to Youth and Small Entrepreneurs 0  -    -   
10 Balance/Fixed deposit on domestic banks and financial 

institutions
20  473,183,314  94,636,663 

11 Loan against other banks' and financial institutions' FD 20  -    -   
12 Foreign bank balance 20  -    -   
13 Money at call 20  -    -   
14 Loan against internationally rated bank guarantee 20  -    -   
15 Investment to internationally rated Banks 20  -    -   
16 Inter-bank lending 20  -    -   
17 Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100  597,846  597,846 
18 Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100  -    -   
19 Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 100  5,350,766,500  5,350,766,500 
20 Fixed assets 100  5,544,255  5,544,255 
21 Net interest receivables (Toral IR - 8 - Interest supsense) 100  -    -   
22 Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 100  259,719,208  259,719,208 
23 Net Non-Banking Asset 100  -    -   
24 Real estate/residential housing loans exceeding the limit 150  -    -   

Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A)  6,125,631,384  5,711,264,470 
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

At the month end of Ashad, 2082

STATEMENT OF RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS (RWA)

II. Off- Balance-Sheet Items	 			 

S.No. Description
Weight Current period

(%)  Amount (NPR.)  RWA 
1 Bills collection 0  -    -   
2 Forward foreign exchange contract 10  -    -   
3 L/C with maturity less than six months (Outstanding) 20  -    -   
4 Guarantee against International rated bank's counter 20  -    -   
5 L/C with maturity more than six months (Outstanding 50  -    -   
6 Bid bond, performance bond and underwriting 50  -    -   
7 Loan sale with repurchase agreement 50  -    -   
8 Advance payment guarantee 100  -    -   
9 Financial and other guarantee 100  -    -   
10 Irrevocable loan commitment 100  -    -   
11 Possible liabilities for income tax 100  -    -   
12 All types of possible liabilities including acceptance 100  -    -   
13 Rediscounted bills 100  -    -   
14 Unpaid portion of partly paid share investment 100  -    -   
15 Unpaid guarantee claims 200  -    -   
16 Amount to be maintained for operational risk (2%) 100  122,512,628  122,512,628 

Total Off-Balance-sheet Items (B)  122,512,628  122,512,628 
Total Risk Weighted Assets (A) + (B)  6,248,144,012  5,833,777,098 

III. Total Qualifying Capital				 
Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Core Capital (Tier 1)  438,919,899 
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)  14,212,407 
Total Capital Fund  453,132,305 
Risk Weighted Exposures  5,833,777,098 

IV. Capital Adequacy Ratio
Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets:		
Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA)  466,702,168 
Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA)  233,351,084 
Capital Fund maintained (in %) 7.77%
Core Capital maintained (in %) 7.52%
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
PROMOTER SHAREHOLDER ABOVE 0.5% AS ON ASHAD END 2082

S.N Name Share Quantity Percentage Remarks
1 Central Finance Limited  167,185 4.55%
2 Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Limited  125,389 3.42%
3 Global Ime Bank  83,592 2.28%
4 Prabhu Bank Limited  83,592 2.28%
5 Shine Resunga Development Bank Ltd  69,660 1.90%
6 Dipak Tiwari  62,917 1.71%
7 Dipesh Upreti  53,318 1.45%
8 Citizens Bank International Limited  48,762 1.33%
9 Shobha Upreti  40,546 1.10%
10 Anita Pandit  27,823 0.76%
11 Usha Ghimire  23,767 0.65%
12 Dhruba Lal Pandey  22,300 0.61%
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-s_		 ;+:yfsf]] @)*@ c;f/ dlxgfdf s'n hf]lvd efl/t ;DklQsf] cfwf/df s'n k"hLsf]ifsf] cg'kft Go"g /x]sf]n] k'FhLsf]if 

;'wf/ ug{ k'FhL of]hgf k]z ug{ lgb]{zg ePsf]df k'FhLsf]if ;'wf/ of]hgf k]z ul/Psf] Joxf]/f ;fb/ cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .

-v_		 s]lx C0fL ;b:ox?sf] Joj;fodf ;d:of l;h{gf eO{ shf{sf] ls:tf e'QmfgLdf ;d:of k/]sf] / ;f] ls:tf /sd ;fgf] 

agfOlb+bf ls:tf e'QmfgLdf ;xhtf x'g] eGb} ;b:ox?4f/f lgj]bg k]z u/]sf] cj:yfdf dfq s]lx ;b:ox?nfO{ e'QmfgL 

Joj:yf ;lhnf] agfO{lbg] tyf lghx?n] ;+rfng u/]sf] Joj;fosf] ;'lglirttfsf] cfwf/df ls:tf ;fgf] agfO{ e'QmfgL 

k|lqmofnfO{ ;/nLs[t ul/Psf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf nflu ;fb/ cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .

 -u_		 lgb]{zg adf]lhd k"0f{?kdf sfof{Gjog ul/g] Joxf]/f ;fb/ cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .

 -3_		 shf{ nufgL ubf{ g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 Ohfhtkqk|fKt æ3Æ ju{sf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ hf/L ul/Psf] Plss[t  

lgb]{zg @)*! sf] lgb]{zg g+= !(÷)*! sf] a'Fbf g+= @ df /x]sf Joj:yf adf]lhd g} sfof{Gjog ul/g] Joxf]/f ;fb/  

cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .

 -ª_		 lgb]{zg adf]lhd sfof{Gjog ul/g] Joxf]/f ;fb/ cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .

 -r_		 lgb]{zg adf]lhd k"0f{?kdf sfof{Gjog ul/g] Joxf]/f ;fb/ cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .

 -5_	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s / afXo n]vfk/LIf0f tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] :ynut lg/LIf0f / u}/:ynut ;'kl/j]If0f 

k|ltj]bgn] cf}NofPsf s}lkmotx? k'g gbfxf]l/g] u/L sfof{Gjog ul/g] Joxf]/f ;fb/ cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .

o; ;+:yfsf] bzf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef k|of]hgsf nflu cf=j=@)*!÷)*@ sf] 
ljQLo ljj/0fx? k|sfzg ug{ ;xdlt k|bfg ug]{ qmddf g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 lbOPsf] 

lgb]{zg pk/ ;+:yfsf] k|ltpQ/ b]xfo jdf]lhd /x]sf] Joxf]/f ;fb/ cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .
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cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?sf] ljj/0f

Joj:yfkg ;d"x

gfd kb sfo{/t ljefu 

>L lzj k|;fb 1jfnL k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

>L dg?kf kf}8]n ;xfos dxfk|aGws ljQLo Joj:yfkg ljefu k|d'v

>L rGbg s'df/ ;/bf/ k|aGws d'Vo Joj;fo clws[t÷hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ljefu k|d'v

>L b]jrG› /fo gfoj k|aGws shf{ ljefu k|d'v

>L 6f]k axfb'/ /f:sf]6L ;xfos k|aGws shf{ c;'nL tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu k|d'v

>L clgn ljZjsdf{ sf=d'=al/i7 clws[t cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ljefu k|d'v

>L xf]d k|;fb clwsf/L clws[t ;~rfng ljefu k|Df'v

qm= ;= gfd kb sfo{/t ljefu 

! >L dx]Gb| k|;fb cfrfo{ ;xfos k|aGws shf{ c;'nL tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu

@ >L ;dL/ ltjf/L clws[t ljQLo Joj:yfkg ljefu 

# >L ;'ldt kGyL clws[t ;"rgf k|ljlw ljefu

$ >L Zofd s[i0f dxh{g clws[t cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefu

% >L sljtf vqL clws[t ljQLo Joj:yfkg ljefu

^ >L sdn k|;fb ltdlN;gf sf=d'= clws[t cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefu

& >L gljg af]u6L sf=d'= clws[t cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefu

* >L /fd k|;fb kf}8\ofn sf=d'= clws[t ;"rgf k|ljlw ljefu

( >L ;'hg bfxfn ;xfos clws[t cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefu

!) >L /fd kf}8\ofn ;xfos clws[t shf{ c;'nL tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu

!! >L pd]z bfxfn ;xfos clws[t shf{ ljefu

!@ >L ;'bLk n'OF6]n ;xfos clws[t cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefu

!# >L lzj kf}8]n ;xfos clws[t cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefu

!$ >L ;'/]z kl/of/ ;xfos clws[t ljQLo Joj:yfkg ljefu 

!% >L :j]tf ofbj sf=d'= ;'k/efO{h/ ;"rgf k|ljlw ljefu

!^ >L lbkf yklnof jl/i7 ;xfos hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ljefu

!& >L /ldtf s]=;L= jl/i7 ;xfos ljQLo Joj:yfkg ljefu

!* >L nIDfL yfkf du/ jl/i7 ;xfos shf{ ljefu

!( >L ;[hgf s]=;L= ;xfos hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ljefu

@) >L l;h{gf vltj8f ;xfos shf{ ljefu

@! >L k|lbk du/ Rffns jl/i7 ;jf/L rfns

@@ >L ;f]d axfb'/ nfdf ;'/Iff uf8{ ;'/Iff uf8{

@# >L ejfgL clwsf/L ;xof]uL sfof{no ;xof]uL

@$ >L ;l/tf u'?ª ;xof]uL sfof{no ;xof]uL

ljefuLo ;xfosx? M
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cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 

;Dk"0f{ k|b]z dftxtdf /x]sf cg'udg clws[tx?sf] ljj/0fM

qm= ;= gfd kb cg'udg sfof{no 

! >L afns[i0f sfsL{ al/i7 clws[t cg'udg clws[t, l;Gw'nL

@ >L ;Gtf]if rGb al/i7 clws[t cg'udg clws[t, a'6jn

# >L ljho s'df/ kf;dfg clws[t cg'udg clws[t, jfudtL

$ >L ho s[i0f ofbj clws[t cg'udg clws[t, 7'l6lkkn

% >L eujtL v/]n clws[t cg'udg clws[t, ;Demgfrf}s

^ >L b]j]G› v8\sf s]=;L clws[t cg'udg clws[t, ansf]6

& >L uLtf /fpt clws[t cg'udg clws[t, x]s'nL

* >L lbkf 1jfnL sf=d'= clws[t cg'udg clws[t, lzj/fh

( >L lgt]z s'df/ rf}w/L ;xfos clws[t cg'udg clws[t, s'Zdfxf/

!) >L sNkgf lai6 ;xfos clws[t cg'udg clws[t, kfFrvfn

!! >L ;Gtf]if /fodfemL ;xfos clws[t cg'udg clws[t, uN5L

!@ >L /d]z lj=s= ;xfos clws[t cg'udg clws[t, hfd'g]

!# >L a]b axfb'/ xfo' ;xfos clws[t cg'udg clws[t, ch'{gwf/f

!$ >L rGb| k|;fb cfrfo{ ;xfos clws[t cg'udg clws[t, b'Nn'

!% >L lbks axfb'/ jf]xf]/f ;xfos clws[t cg'udg clws[t, hf]lzk'/

!^ >L /fd k|j]z ofbj ;xfos clws[t cg'udg clws[t, ldlynf

!& >L l/lif/fd ;fksf]6f ;xfos clws[t cg'udg clws[t, cu{nL

!* >L /fh' s'j+/ ;xfos clws[t cg'udg clws[t, ;'lnrf}/

!( >L gf/fof0f lj=s= ;'k/efO{h/ cg'udg clws[t, /fªvf]nf

@) >L a;Gt ;f]8f/L ;'k/efO{h/ cg'udg clws[t, b]p/fnL
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!= sf];L k|b]z— zfvf sfof{no ;ª\VofM !( -pGgfO{;_

qm=;+= zfvf sfof{no zfvf k|aGwssf] gfd zfvf sfof{nosf] 7]ufgf

! zfvf sfof{no wgs'6f, wgs'6f >L /fs]z Anf]g wgs'6f g=kf=–$, wgs'6f

@ zfvf sfof{no e]8]6f/, wgs'6f >L ;'htf bg'jf/ ;fFu'/Lu9L uf=kf=–^, wgs'6f

# zfvf sfof{no cf]vn9'+uf, cf]vn9'+uf >L ;'hg /fO{ l;l4r/0f g=kf=–%, cf]vn9'+uf

$ zfvf sfof{no lbQm]n, vf]6fª >L k'ikf~hnL k'nfdL du/ lbQm]n ¿kfsf]6 dem'jfu9L g=kf=–!, vf]6fª

% zfvf sfof{no a;Gtk'/, t]x|y'd >L g]q k|;fb bfxfn nfnLu'/fF; g=kf=–@, t]x|y'd

^ zfvf sfof{no ef]hk'/, ef]hk'/ >L ;'/]G› v8\sf ef]hk'/ g=kf=–&, ef]hk'/

& zfvf sfof{no uf]7ufpF, df]/ª >L /fh gf/fo0f dfemL ;'Gb/ x/}rf g=kf=–&, df]/ª

* zfvf sfof{no zlgZr/], df]/ª >L ;+lutf sfsL{ ky/L zlgZr/] g=kf=–$, df]/Ë

( zfvf sfof{no xlNbaf/L, emfkf >L ljdnf v8\sf xlNbaf/L uf=kf=–@, emfkf

!) zfvf sfof{no ch'{gwf/f, emfkf >L x]dGtf /fO{ ch'{gwf/f g=kf=–*, emfkf

!! zfvf sfof{no O{§fe§f, emfkf >L tf]ofgfy af:tf]nf d]lrgu/ g=kf=–*, emfkf

!@ zfvf sfof{no zflGtrf]s, Onfd >L s'df/ a:g]t ;"of]{bo g=kf=–*, Onfd

!# zfvf sfof{no alaof, ;'g;/L >L /ljg vltj8f Og?jf g=kf=–(, ;'g;/L

!$ zfvf sfof{no SofDkfahf/,emfkf >L rGb| s'df/ ljZjsdf{ sdn uf=kf=–@, emfkf

!% zfvf sfof{no z'qmaf/], ;'g;/L] >L gf/fo0f s'df/ vª ah'{ uf=kf=–!, ;'g;/L

!^ zfvf sfof{no lhtk'/, Onfd >L lbks >]i7 b]pdfO{ g=kf=–*, Onfd

!& zfvf sfof{no lgd'jf, df]/ª >L /f]zg ljZjf; a'l9u+uf g=kf=–#, df]/ª

!* zfvf sfof{no g8fxf, ;'g;/L >L led axfb'/ vqL a/fxfIf]q g=kf=–#, ;'g;/L

!( zfvf sfof{no r'xf8], pbok'/ >L ;'/]Gb| >]i7 lqo'uf g=kf=–&, pbok'/

@= dw]; k|b]z— zfvf sfof{no ;ª\VofM !* -c7f/_

! zfvf sfof{no /fdhfgsLrf]s, af/f >L cGh' s'df/L rf}w/L lghu9 g=kf=–^, af/f

@ zfvf sfof{no ;kxL, af/f >L dlgif xn'jfO{ sf]NxjL g=kf=–$, af/f

# zfvf sfof{no b]jfxL uf]gfxL, /f}tx6 >L lht' s'df/ ;fx b]jfxL uf]gfxL g=kf=–,* /f}tx6

$ zfvf sfof{no dfwjgf/fo0f, /f}tx6 >L ?k]z s'df/ ofbj Dffwjgf/fo0f g=kf=,–^ /f}tx6

% zfvf sfof{no nxfg, l;/fxf >L kk' s'df/ ofbj nxfg g=kf==–!!, l;/fxf

^ zfvf sfof{no s'Zdfx/, ;Kt/L >L /dfgGb d08n af]8]j;f{xL g=kf==–#, ;Kt/L

& zfvf sfof{no ldlynf, wg'iff >L /fdb]j dxtf] ldlynf g=kf=–@, wg'iff

* zfvf sfof{no s7'wf/, dxf]Q/L >L /fw]Zofd ofbj cf}/xL g=kf=–$, dxf]Q/L

( zfvf sfof{no k/l8of, dxf]Q/L >L cfsfz rf}w/L= eFufxf g=kf=–* dxf]Q/L

!) zfvf sfof{no elQk'/, ;nf{xL >L ;Gho s'df/ rf}w/L O{Zj/k'/ g=kf=–#, ;nf{xL

!! zfvf sfof{no lx/fk'/, ;nf{xL >L /f]zg s'df/ /fd j/xyjf g=kf=–!!, ;nf{xL

!@ zfvf sfof{no afUdtL, ;nf{xL >L sljtf rf}w/L jfUdtL g=kf=–!@, ;nf{xL

!# zfvf sfof{no xg'dfggu/, ;Kt/L >L OG›lht s'df/ ofbj xg'dfggu/ s+sflngL g=kf= –%, ;Kt/L

!$ zfvf sfof{no l5Ggd:tf, ;Kt/L >L k'?ifQf]d vfF l5Ggd:tf uf=kf=–$, ;Kt/L

!% zfvf sfof{no t]g'jfk§L, l;/fxf >L /fh s'df/ d]x]tf Al/of/kl§ uf=kf= –$, l;/fxf

cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

k|b]z cg';f/ zfvf k|jGwsx?sf] ljj/0f
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!^ zfvf sfof{no g/xf, l;/fxf >L cd/]Gb| s'df/ l;+x g/xf uf=kf=–%, l;/fxf

!& zfvf sfof{no ls;fgk'/, wg'iff >L ;~ho s'df/ ofbj wg'iffwfd g=kf=–&, wg'iff

!* zfvf sfof{no nIdLlgof, wg'iff >L ;'bLk s'df/ l;+x nIdLlgof uf=kf=–^, wg'iff

#= jfUfdtL k|b]z— zfvf sfof{no ;ª\VofM !* -c7f/_

! zfvf sfof{no v'sf]{6, l;Gw'nL >L tf/f s'df/L yfkf uf]nGhf]/ uf=kf=–&, l;Gw'nL

@ zfvf sfof{no ;'s'6], l;Gw'kfNrf]s >L ;+lutf lu/L kf7s rf}tf/f ;fFufrf]su9L g=kf=–!, l;Gw'kfNrf]s

# zfvf sfof{no ag]kf, sfe|]knf~rf]s >L eQmgfy of]uL ag]kf– g=kf= !), sfe|]knf~rf]s

$ zfvf sfof{no l;Gw'nL, l;Gw'nL >L wg axfb'/ lwld/] sdnfdfO{ g=kf=–^, l;Gw'nL

% zfvf sfof{no a§f/, g'jfsf]6 >L ;'hg /fpt ljb'/ g=kf=–$, g'jfsf]6

^ zfvf sfof{no uN5L, wflbª >L k|Nxfb l3ld/] uN5L uf=kf=–&, wflbª

& zfvf sfof{no kfFrvfn, sfe|]knf~rf]s >L sfl:d/f clwsf/L kfFrvfn g=kf=–@, sfe|]knf~rf]s

* zfvf sfof{no rl/sf]6, bf]nvf >L zld{nf a'9fyf]sL eLd]Zj/ g=kf=–^, bf]nvf

( zfvf sfof{no dGynL, /fd]5fk >L lbk]z bnf{dL dGynL g=kf=–@ /fd]5fk

!) zfvf sfof{no afx'gLkf6L, l;Gw'kfNrf]s >L l/k]Gb| bfxfn d]nDrL g=kf=–!@, l;Gw'kfNrf]s

!! zfvf sfof{no b'wf}nL, l;Gw'nL >L ljgf]b s'df/ rf}w/L b'wf}nL g=kf=–%, l;Gw'nL

!@ zfvf sfof{no v/fgL6f/, g'jfsf]6 >L ch'{g e§/fO{ tfbL uf=kf=–#, g'jfsf]6

!# zfvf sfof{no sNof0fk'/, lrtjg >L zflGt s'df/L ;f? dfl8 g=kf=^, lrtjg

!$ zfvf sfof{no lkKn], lrtjg >L lzj axfb'/ sfsL{ /fKtL g=kf=–!, lrtjg

!% zfvf sfof{no kfn'Ë, dsjfgk'/ >L dx]Gb| k|;fb zdf{ yfxf g=kf=–@, dsjfgk'/

!^ zfvf sfof{no h'/]nL, dsjfgk'/ >L /;gf s'df/L tfdfª as}of uf=kf=–$, dsjfgk'/

!& zfvf sfof{no zlQmvf]/, lrtjg >L /fd s'df/ rf}w/L sflnsf g=kf=–*, lrtjg

!* Zffvf sfof{no 8fF5L, sf7df08f}+ >L dlGb/f cfrfo{ sfu]Zj/L dgf]x/f g=kf=–$, sf7df08f}+

$= u08sL k|b]z— zfvf sfof{no ;ª\VofM !$ -rf}w_

! zfvf sfof{no  uf]58f, gjnk'/ >L a'l4/fh a:g]t sfjf;f]tL g=kf= –!&, gjnk''/

@ zfvf sfof{no  ;lb{, gjnk'/ >L lg/h kGt lagoL lqj]0fL uf=kf=–#, gjnk/f;L

# zfvf sfof{no  rfkfsf]6, :ofª\hf >L t'lN;/fd k+u]gL rfkfsf]6  g=kf= –!), :ofËhf

$ zfvf sfof{no  ldld{, :ofª\hf >L c~hnL >]i7 sfnLu08sL  uf=kf= –&, :ofËhf

% zfvf sfof{no b]p/fnL, uf]/vf >L /fds[i0f >]i7 uf]/vf g=kf=–!#, uf]/vf

^ zfvf sfof{no b]j3f6, tgx'F >L dw'dfof u'?ª b]j3f6 uf=kf=–%, tgx'F

& zfvf sfof{no ?kf, sf:sL >L x]dGtf a'9fdu/ ?kf uf=kf=–%, sf:sL

* zfvf sfof{no 3frf]s, sf:sL >L ofg'dfof du/ df5fk'R5«] uf=kf==–#, sf:sL

( zfvf sfof{no /fªvf]nf, :ofª\hf >L lszf]/ kf}8]n k'tnLahf/ g=kf= –!), :ofËhf

!) zfvf sfof{no l8lxufpF, tgx'F >L s[i0f k|;fb cof{n Jof; g=kf= –!), tgxF'

!! zfvf sfof{no 9f]/lkmbL{, tgxF' >L 7fs'/ k|;fb ;'gf/ z'Snfu08sL g=kf= –)*, tgxF'

!@ zfvf sfof{no s'F8'n], afUn'ª >L a'l4dfof bdfO{ afUn'ª g=kf= –)*, afUn'ª

!# zfvf sfof{no a]pnLaf;, kj{t >L l6sf/fd kf]v|]n k}o'F, uf=kf= –)*, kj{t

!$ zfvf sfof{no 6'x'/]k;n, tgx'F >L nIdL kf08] 9sfn efg' g=kf= –)^, tgxF' 
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%= n'lDagL k|b]z— zfvf sfof{no ;ª\VofM %# -lqkGg_

! zfvf sfof{no  lzjk'/, ?kGb]xL >L /;' kf}8]n ltnf]Qdf g=kf=–*, ?kGb]xL

@ zfvf sfof{no  bf]efg, kfNkf >L /d]z emfFqmL ltgfp uf=kf=–@, kfNkf

# zfvf sfof{no  dfgks8L, ?kGb]xL >L cho ofbj z'4f]wg uf=kf=–%, ?kGb]xL

$ zfvf sfof{no  a'8\9L, slknj:t' >L dx]Gb| ofbj a'4e"ld g=kf=–$, slknj:t'

% zfvf sfof{no  atf;], kfNkf >L l;tf yfkf l/AbLsf]6 uf=kf=–&, kfNkf

^ zfvf sfof{no  ;'lnrf}/, /f]Nkf >L nfn axfb'/ 3lt{ ;'lgn :d[lt uf=kf=–$, /f]Nkf

& zfvf sfof{no  vgbx, c3f{vfFrL >L ;/:jtL uf}td dfnf/fgL uf=kf=–#, c3f{vfFrL

* zfvf sfof{no  aNsf]6, c3f{vfFrL >L ;'lgn s'df/ kl/of/ 5qb]j uf=kf=–@, c3f{vfFrL

( zfvf sfof{no  uf]UnL, bfª >L Hof]lt kf}8]n 3f]/fxL p=d=g=kf –$, bfª

!) zfvf sfof{no  l;dn6f/L, u'NdL >L sdnf 3lt{du/ dflnsf uf=kf=–*, u'NdL

!! zfvf sfof{no  nfndl6of, bfª >L ltng s'df/L k5f{O{ /fKtL uf=kf=–@, bfª

!@ zfvf sfof{no  7"nfj]zL, Ko"7fg >L k'0f{ axfb'/ /f]sfof uf}d'vL uf=kf=–%, Ko'7fg

!# zfvf sfof{no  7'l6lkkn, ?kGb]xL >L cGGft Gof}kfg] cf]d;ltof uf=kf=–!, ?kGb]xL

!$ zfvf sfof{no  z+s/k'/, ?kGb]xL >L d~h' b]jL a:ofn b]jbx g=kf=–!!, ?kGb]xL

!% zfvf sfof{no  sf]kjf, slknj:t' >L dfwj kGyL jf0fu+uf g=kf= –%, slknj:t'

!^ zfvf sfof{no  ?b|k'/, ?kGb]xL >L v'd axfb'/ /]ZdL sGrg uf=kf=–$, ?kGb]xL

!& zfvf sfof{no  lzj/fh, slknj:t' >L >j0f s'df/ cfrf{o lzj/fh g=kf –!, slknj:t'

!* zfvf sfof{no  a]y/L, ?kGb]xL >L ;+lbk s'df/ ofbj dfofb]jL uf=kf=–^, ?kGb]xL

!( zfvf sfof{no  u9jf, bfª >L /ldtf s'df/L k'g u9jf uf=kf=–^, bfª

@) zfvf sfof{no  cu{nL, kfNkf >L lutf clwsf/L tfg;]g g=kf=–!$, kfNkf

@! zfvf sfof{no  afUb'nf, Ko"7fg >L k|ltIff dx/f Ko'7fg g=kf=–&, Ko'7fg

@@ zfvf sfof{no  nfdfrf}/, Ko"7fg >L ltns vqL :ju{åf/L g=kf=–(, /f]Nkf

@# zfvf sfof{no  zflGtgu/, bfª >L b'uf{/fh cf]nL zflGtgu/ uf=kf=–#, bfª

@$ zfvf sfof{no  df8Lrf}/, /f]Nkf >L zflns /fd k'g /f]Nkf g=kf=–&, /f]Nkf

@% zfvf sfof{no  3lt{ufpF, /f]Nkf >L k|]d a'9fyf]sL df8L uf=kf=–@, /f]Nkf

@^ zfvf sfof{no  dh'jf, u'NdL >L kz'ktL zdf{ rGb|sf]6–*, u'NdL

@& zfvf sfof{no  /fdk'/, kfNkf >L /Ghgf kf]v/]n /fdk'/ g=kf= –^, kfNkf

@* zfvf sfof{no  enjf8, slknj:t' >L k|ltIff kl/of/ jf0fu+uf g=kf=–(, slknj:t'

@( zfvf sfof{no  e"dxL, gjnk/f;L >L s]zj ;f? ;'gjn g=kf= –!@, gjnk/f;L

#) zfvf sfof{no  n'lDagL, ?kGb]xL >L cfsfz uf}td n'lDagL ;f+:s[lts g=kf=–^, ?kGb]xL

#! zfvf sfof{no km]gx/f, gjnk/f;L >L ux]G› wfjn ;':tf uf=kf=–!, gjnk/f;L

#@ zfvf sfof{no  b'uf{kmfF6, c3f{vfFrL >L sNkgf clwsf/L kf0fLgL uf=kf=–#, c3f{vfFrL

## zfvf sfof{no  /fhk'/, bfª >L /fs]z s'df/ rf}w/L /fhk'/ uf=kf=–%, bfª

#$ zfvf sfof{no  xfk'/], bfª >L afa'/fd s]=;L= aaO{ uf=kf= –$, bfª

#% zfvf sfof{no  x]s'nL, bfª >L /df kf7s bª\uLz/0f uf=kf=–$, bfª

#^ zfvf sfof{no ?s'dsf]6, ?s'd k"j{ >L xl/zrGb| a'9fdu/ l;:g] uf=kf=–%, ?s''dk"j{ 

#& zfvf sfof{no  sld/]rf}/, bfª >L uf]kfn lj=s= a+unfr'nL uf=kf=–#, bfª
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#* zfvf sfof{no  demufjfF, ?kGb]xL >L afa'/fd kfn sf]6xLdfO{ uf=kf=–%, ?kGb]xL

#( zfvf sfof{no  7f8f, c3f{vfFrL >L clez]s kf}8]n l;tu+uf g=kf=–$, c3f{vfFrL

$) zfvf sfof{no  lvNhL, c3f{vfFrL >L l;h{gf vgfn e"ldsf:yfg g=kf=–^, c3f{vfFrL

$! zfvf sfof{no  j'6jn, ?kGb]xL >L klj kf08] ltnf]Qdf g=kf=–#, ?kGb]xL

$@ zfvf sfof{no em8]jf, kfNkf >L t'N;L/fd jf]xf]/f tfg;]g g=kf=–&, kfNkf

$# zfvf sfof{no ;'/kfn, /f]Nkf >L ltns k'g ?G6Lu9L uf=kf=–*, /f]Nkf

$$ zfvf sfof{no cu}of, afFs] >L tf/f vgfn kf}8]n /fKtL ;'gf/L uf=kf=–@, afFs]

$% zfvf sfof{no kz'kltgu/, alb{of >L cf]d k|sfz kf;L u]?jf uf=kf=–%, alb{of

$^ zfvf sfof{no ldngrf]s, afFs] >L ;'/t axfb'/ e'n 88'jf uf=kf=–$, afFs]

$& zfvf sfof{no a'l8of, afFs] >L cfzf e§/fO{ hfgsL uf=kf= –%, afFs]

$* zfvf sfof{no e'/LufpF,  alb{of >L pd]z/fh skf8L 7fs'/afaf uf=kf=–@, alb{of

$( zfvf sfof{no 5qsf]6, u'NdL >L s[i0f k|;fb a]njf;] 5qsf]6 uf=kf=–@, u'NdL

%) zfvf sfof{no ;Demgfrf]s, afFs] >L t'N5L s'df/L kftnL jf]x/f a}hgfy uf=kf=–^, afFs]

%! zfvf sfof{no ;fgf]>L, alb{of >L lbks lji6 dw'jg g=kf=–*, alb{of

%@ zfvf sfof{no gofF ldn, ?kGb]xL >L /ljgf kl/of/ ltnf]Qdf g=kf=–%, ?kGb]xL

%# zfvf sfof{no ;}gf d}gf, ?kGb]xL >L sNkgf aGhf8] ;'j]bL ;}gfd}gf g=kf=–#, ?kGb]xL

^= s0ff{nL k|b]z— zfvf sfof{no ;ª\VofM !@ -afx|_

! zfvf sfof{no  >Lgu/, ;Nofg >L 808 axfb'/ v8\sf zf/bf g=kf=–!, ;Nofg

@ zfvf sfof{no  yf/df/], ;Nofg >L nlnt u'?ª afurf}/ g=kf=–@, ;Nofg

# zfvf sfof{no rf}/hxf/L, ?s'd klZrd >L 6]s/fh 8fFuL rf}/hxf/L g=kf=–!, ?s'd klZrd

$ zfvf sfof{no  vn+uf, hfh/sf]6 >L lszf]/ s'df/ l;+x e]/L g=kf=–$, hfh/sf]6

% zfvf sfof{no  hfd'g], ;'v]{t >L /d]z s]=;L= l;Dtf uf=kf=–^, ;'v]{t

^ zfvf sfof{no d]xns'gf, ;'v]{t >L lgd{nf v8\sf s]=;L= u'ef{sf]6 g=kf=–*, ;'v]{t

& Zffvf sfof{no aflaofrf}/, ;'v]{t >L zflGt s'df/L wfdL kGrk'/L g=kf=–^, ;'v]{t

* zfvf sfof{no b]ptL, ;'v]{t >L ;ldIff kl/of/ la/]Gb|gu/ g=kf=–!!, ;'v]{t

( zfvf sfof{no afË]l;dn, ;'v]{t >L ;Gb]z af]x/f la/]Gb|gu/ g=kf=–@, ;'v]{t

!) zfvf sfof{no d6]nf, ;'v]{t >L gj/fh :j0f{sf/ lrª\uf8 g=kf=–#, ;'v]{t

!! zfvf sfof{no d]xnd'8L, sfnLsf]6 >L lxSdt bhL{ ;lGg lqj]0fL uf=kf=–^, sfnLsf]6

!@ zfvf sfof{no b'Nn', b}n]v >L g/]Gb| zfxL b'Nn' g=kf=–%, b}n]v

&= ;'b'/ klZrd k|b]z— zfvf sfof{no ;ª\VofM ^ -5_

! zfvf sfof{no lagfos ahf/, c5fd >L dgf]h bhL{ kGrb]jn lagfos g=kf=–#, c5fd

@ zfvf sfof{no a]nfk'/, 88]Nw'/f >L vu|]Gb| k|sfz cf]nL gjb'uf{ uf=kf=–$, 88]Nw'/f

# zfvf sfof{no df}jf, 8f]6L >L g/]Gb| axfb'/ ad cfbz{ uf==kf=–!, 8f]6L

$ zfvf sfof{no nfnemf8L, s~rgk'/ >L o;f]bf l;+x yfkf nfnemf8L=kf=–!, s~rgk'/

% zfvf sfof{no hf]lzk'/, s}nfnL >L ;+lutf s'df/L yfkf hf]lzk'/ uf=kf=–$, s}nfnL

^ zfvf sfof{no hfgsL, s}nfnL >L lbkf ;'j]bL hfgsL uf=kf=–#, s}nfnL
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;do kl/jt{gzLn 5 ,o;/L g} ;do ;+u} 
dflg;sf] lhjgsf ljleGg df]8,ef]ufOdf 
slt ;kmn t slt c;kmn eOG5 ,lt 
ef]ufOx? ;Demgf of]Uo / cWoog, of]
Uo jGg ;S5 . o;/L g} ;Demgf of]Uo 
;kmntfsf] syf jg]sf] 5 .  n'lDjgL 
k|b]; /f]Nkf lhNnf /f]Nkf g=kf, uf=kf 
j8f g= &   j:g]   ljkGg kl/jf/df  
hGd lnP/  sIff !) ;Dd dfq cWoog  
u/]sL ldgf s'df/L cf]nL n] xfn cf/De  
rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf zfvf  
sfof{no dfl8rf}/ 4f/f u7Lt s]Gb| g+ 
))@ sL n3'pBdL dlxnf ;b:osf] ?kdf 
cfˆgf] kl/ro jgfpg' ePsf] 5 . 

pxfFsf] lhjgdf w]/} kl/jt{g cfPsf 5g, dflg; ePkl5 elgG5 b'vdf gcflQg] ;'vdf gdflQg] x'g' kb{5 . o:t} @# 
jif{sf] pd]/df pxfFn] lnn jxfb'/ 8fFuL ;+u ljjfx ug'eof] . pgsf >Ldfg j}b]lzs /f]huf/Ldf x'g'x'GYof] . & jif{sf] 
cGt/fn kl5 pxFfn] @)^& ;fnjf6 ub}  cfPsf] s'v'/f kfngdf ;xof]uL e'ldsfdf >Ldfgn] yk ls/fgf k;n ;d]t 
;'? u/L lj:tf/} @ j6f Joj;fo rnfpg ;kmn  x'g' eof] .
         
pxfn] ub} cfPsf] Joj;fo  jf6 dgUo cfDbfgL ePkl5  Joj;fonfO{ yk lj:tf/ ug{] x]t'n] lghn] @)&$÷)(÷)# ut] 
ufFpd} cf/De rf}tf/Lsf] ;d'xdf cfj4 eO  ;b:otf lnO{ jrt ub} klxnf] k6s ? !,)),)))÷– shf{ lnP/ Joj;fo 
j9fpg' eof] . h;jf6 Joj;fodf lbg k|ltlbg uf|xsf] ljZjf; dfofn] ubf{ lghn] xfn ;Dd cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ 
jf6 bf]>f], t]>f], k6s qmdz M !,#),)))÷– , ^,)),)))÷– lwtf]df shf{ rnfO{ ljrdf cfPsf] sf]le8 dfxfdf/L 
sf] ;dodf s'g} ljrlNnt geO xfn cf/De rf}tf/L jf6 ljgf lwtf] ? %,)),)))÷– shf{ rnfO /xg' ePsf] 5 . 
h; jf6 dfl;s cfDbfgL ;du|df !,)),)))÷– ;Dd ub{} cfO/xg' ePsf]  ;d]t 5 . h'g k|utL df cf]nL bDklt 
bË  x'g'x'G5 . xfn Joj;fo ;+rfng df ;xof]ufy{ ! hgf dlxnf nfO{ /f]huf/L ;d]t lbg ;kmn /xg' ePsf] 5 . 
Joj;fodf j[l4 ;+u} clxn] ;fgf 7'nf u/L #))) j6f s'v'/f vf]/df /x]sf 5g. .  ;fy} ! j6f jf]n]/f] uf8L ;d]t 
/x]sf] 5, h;jf6 bfgf ,s'v'/f v/Lb ljqmL ub} cfpg' ePsf] 5 .cf]nL ldlt @)*@÷)*÷!@ ut] zfvfdf  cfof]lht 
ljQLo ;fIf/tf tflndsf] lbg pTs[i6 ;b:osf] ?kdf ;Ddflgt ;d]t x'g' ePsf] lyof] .
        
o;/L k};f geP/ ufpd} s]lx u5'{ eGg] dlxnf lblb jlxlgx?nfO{ cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQn] ljgf lwtf] shf{ lbO{  
xf};fnf lbPsf] sf/0fn] ;fgf] ls/fgf k;n Joj;fo tyf s'v'/f kfng jf6 /fdf|] cfDbfgL ub{} n3'ljQsf] ls:tf 
;dod} lt/L OdfGbf/k'j{s cfh  oxfF ;Dd  cfOk'u]sf] /  pxFf cGo ;b:o lblbjlxgLx?nfO{  cfkm' h:t} Joj;foL 
jGg ;d]t pTk|]l/t ug'x'G5 . 

;b:osf] hLjg kl/jt{gdf cf/De rf}tf/Lsf] ;fy
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d lznf la=s ## aif{sL eP d]/f] 3/ n'DagL k|b]z alb{of lhN-
nf af;u9L gu/kfnLsf @ rdsk'/df  k5{ . kfr aif{ klx-
nf d  cf/De rf}tf/L n3'laQ laQLo ;+:yfsf] ;Demgfrf]s 
zfvfsf] s]Gb| g+ )@& sf] ldlt @)&&.)^.@@ ut]sf lbg 
;b:o ag]sL x'+ . Tolt a]nf ;Dd d]/f] 3/sf] cfly{s ca:yf 
sdhf]/ /x]sf]  lyof] . ;fgf] ltgf] cfO{;>mLd 7]nfdf vf]n]sf 
lyof} . >Ldfg, >Ldlt 5f]/f 5f]/L ul/ hDdf $ hfgfsf] kl/jf/  
ePklg cfO{; >Ld k;nsf] cfDbfgL n] 3/ kl/jf/ kfng kf]
if0f ug{sf nfuL lgs} sl7g  lyof] . 

;d'xdf a;] kl5 shf{ kfO{G5, eGg] ufp+ 3/df ;'g]sLt lyP, 
cfa:ostfn] egf} of efUg]n] 8f]/\ofpb} nu]/ cf/De rf}tf/
Lsf] 9f]sf ;Dd k'/\ofPs]f lyof] . kl/jf/sf] ;/;Nnfxn] d}
n] klxnf] k6sdf ? !),))). shf{ lnPsf] lyP ,pQm shf{ 
lnP rNb} cfPsf] cfO{;>mLdsf] Joj;fodf nufgL u/]sf] 
lyP . u|xfs x?sf] cfj:ostf k'/f ub{} hfbf b}lgs u|xfs 
klg a9\b} uP , ;f]eflas ?kdf dfl;s cfDbfgL klg a9\b} 
uof] .

cfDbfgL a9\b} uPkl5 lxDdt klg a9\bf] /x]5 , To; kl5 
? !%,))). shf{ lnP/ Joj;fodf nufgL  u/]/ yk 
Joj;fo a9fP / lgoldt shf{ e'Stfg ul/ ;s]kl5 
o;} ;+:yf af6 ? !,)),))). shf{ lnP/ ;do cg';f/  
d}n] klg k;n kl/jt{g u/] u|xfssf] cfaZosftf k'/f 
ug{sf nfuL t/sf/L k;n ;'? u/]sL lyOg\ Jofkf/ ;+u 
;+u} ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/ klg a9fpb} nlug . clxn] lzfnfn] 
o;} ;+:yf af6 ?=#)),))).shf{ lnP/ cfkm' ;+u}  >Ld-
fgnfO{ ;d]t :j/f]huf/ agfpg cfO;>mLd k;n btF{ u/L 
>Ldfgn] cfO;>mLd agfpg] u/]sf 5g eg] lznf la=s clxn] 
t/sf/L kmnkm'n tyf cfO{; >mLd k;n rnfpb} cfPsL 5Lg\ 
 
xfdL h:tf ul/j lakGg ju{sf nfuL ;fyL eg]s} cf/De rf}tf/L n3'ljQ g} /x]sf] 5 .cfkm'nfO{ cfa:ostf  
k/]sf] a]nfdf lagf lwQf] shf{ lbPs} sf/0f olt k|ult ug{] ca;/ ldNof] . shf{ sf/f]af/ ubf{ ;Nnfx gu/L  
ug]{, Pp6f Joa;fo u5'{ eGg] t/ cGoq vr{ ug]{, pßd gug]{ clg cgfaZos s'/fdf vr{ ug]{ xf] eg] dfq 
dfG5] lau|g] xf] gq ;lx ;f]r nug / kl/>d ug]{ xf] eg] n3'laQ ;+:yfsf]  ;fgf] ;xof]un] lhjgg} kl/jt{g x'g 
;S5 ,xfd|f] ldx]gt / nugl;n k|ult b]v]/ ;fdfhn] klg k|;+;f dfg]sf 5g .

;kgfb]lv ;kmntf ;Dd===
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bfªsf] uf]UnL, 3f]/fxL pkdxfgu/kflnsf–$ df  
/x]sf] cf/De rf}tf/L n3'laQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf]  
zfvf sfof{non] @)&# ;fn cflZjg @* ut]b]lv 
ljQLo ;]jf k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5. Ps xhf/ rf/ ;o 
;b:ox¿dWo] #%) hgfn] shf{ ;'ljwf k|fKt u/]sf 
5g\. tLdWo] Ps k|]/0ffbfoL gfd xf] — t'n;f kL=Pd= 
u'?ª.

@)&# ;fndf t'n;f u'?ªn] klxnf]k6s ;+:yfaf6 
@),))) ?k}ofF shf{ lnP/ ;fgf] aª\u'/ kfng  
Joj;fo ;'? ul/g. ;'?jftL lbgx¿ ;lhnf lyPgg\ .  
aª\u'/ kfngdf >d, ;do / w}o{ rflxGYof]. t/ 
t'n;fn] xf/ dflggg. pgsf] b[9tf / d]xgtn]  
Joj;fo lj:tf/ x'Fb} uof]. 
  
shf{sf] ;b'kof]u ub}{ t'n;fn] Joj;fonfO{  
lg/Gt/tf lbb} ul/g. ;ftf}+ k6s;Dd ;+:yfaf6 
shf{ lnFbf /sd & nfv ?k}ofF k'u]sf] 5. t/ of]  
/sd s]jn C0f xf]Og, pgsf] kl/>d / ljZjf;sf] 
k|tLs /x]sf] 5 .   
  
cfh t'n;fsf] aª\u'/ kfng Joj;fon] kl/jf/nfO{ 
cfly{s ¿kdf ;an agfPsf] 5. Pp6f aª\u'/ af6 
;'? u/]sf] pQm Aoa;fo xfn 7'nf] aª\u'/ kmd{af6 
kl/rLt 5. h;n] ubf{ t'n;fsf] 3/df v'zL 5,  
kl/jf/ ;'vL 5.
pTs[i6 pBdL t'n;f u'?ª ca s]jn Ps ;b:o 
dfq xf]Ogg ;+:yfsf] pTs[i6 ;kmn Joj;foL x'g .  
pgn] shf{sf] ;xL ;b'kof]u u/]/ b]vfPsf]  
pbfx/0fn] cGo ;b:onfO{ klg k|]/0ff lbPsf] 5.
   
;+:yfn] pgnfO{ ;Ddfg ub}{ ljQLo sfo{qmd cfof]
hgf u¥of]. of] ;Ddfg s]jn t'n;fsf] nflu dfq 
lyPg, ;Dk"0f{ ;b:ox¿sf] nflu k|]/0ffbfoL ;Gb]z lyof] . æ;xL ;b'kof]un] shf{ af]em xf]Og, cj;/ x'G5.Æ 
eGg] pbfx/0f ag]sL 5g t'n;f . cf/De rf}tf/L n3'laQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8n] b]vfPsf] dfu{ :ki6 5 . ;fgf] 
/sdn] klg 7"nf] ;kgf k"/f ug{ ;lsG5. ;+:yfn] lbPsf] ;xof]unfO{ d]xgt / Odfgbf/Ln] k|of]u ubf{ hLjgdf  
kl/jt{g ;Dej 5. ;b:ox¿sf] ;kmntf g} ;+:yfsf] ;kmntf xf]. t'n;f u'?ªsf] syf s]jn JolQmut  
pknlAw dfq xf]Og, ;fd"lxs k|]/0ff xf]. o;n] b]vfpF5 ls n3'laQ ;+:yf s]jn C0f lbg] lgsfo xf]Og, hLjg  
kl/jt{g ug]{ ;fyL klg xf].

hxfF d]xgt / ljZjf; ToxfF ;kmntf
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ljQLo ;+:yfsf s]xL ;"rsf+sx¿

96,558,930.00 

35,008,117.00 

(60,570,059.00
)

680,971.00 

88,049,893.00 

2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 2081/82

1
9

1
8

1
8

1
4

5
3

1
2

1

K OSHI MADESH BAGMATI GANDAKI LUMBINI KARNALI SUDURPASHIM

PROVINCE WISE BRANCH

7
1
8
4
5
9
4
9
7
.
8

6
7
9
4
8
8
1
6
4
.
8

6
3
3
9
2
7
9
6
7
.
9

4
2
2
8
9
6
0
3
2
.
2

2
2
7
3
3
4
7
3
8
6

6
2
2
6
4
7
4
5
0
.
5

1
0
5
4
1
7
0
8
0
.
5

1
2
2
5
0
5
0
7
7
.
8

2
0
7
7
1
1
8
0
0
.
3

1
5
8
4
2
1
7
4
3
.
3

1
1
0
0
4
7
5
2
8
4

2
0
0
3
6
9
2
9
5
.
9

K OSHI MADESH BAGMATI GANDAKI LUMBINI KARNALI

PROVINCE WISE  LOAN AND SAVING
Loan Saving

55%
45%

Total Staff

Male

Female

 -

 1,000,000,000.00

 2,000,000,000.00

 3,000,000,000.00

 4,000,000,000.00

 5,000,000,000.00

 6,000,000,000.00

2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 2081/82

Loan Outstanding and Saving

Loan Saving

 -
 20,000
 40,000
 60,000
 80,000
 100,000
 120,000
 140,000
 160,000
 180,000

2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 2081/82

Member and Borrower

Member Borrower

57,800,845.32 

(22,473,023.13
)

(106,412,993.9
9)

(49,155,336.65
)

3,657,282.87 
2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 2081/82

Non 
Collateral 

Loan
90%

Collateral  
Loan
10%

LOAN CATEGORY
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ljQLo ;+:yfsf ultljlwx¿

lzj/fh :6];g cGtu{t zfvf sfof{no u9jf / /fhk'/sf ;b:ox¿nfO{  
s';g tyf 8n agfpg]  # lbg] ;Lkd"ns tflnd 

hf]lzk'/ :6];g cGtu{t zfvf sfof{no hf]lzk'/sf ;b:o nfO{ Jofj;flos 
Rofp v]tL tflnd

zfvf sfof{no x]s'nLåf/f Ps lbg] Jofj;flos t/sf/L v]tL tflnd tyf 
ljQLo ;fIf/tf tflnd ;DkGg

zfvf sfof{no a'6jnåf/f ljQLo ;fIf/tf tflnd ;DkGg

zfvf sfof{no x]s'nLåf/f ;~rflnt s]Gb| k|d'v uf]i7Lzfvf sfof{no 7'6Llkknåf/f Ps lbg] a6f/]sf] w'k alQ agfpg] tflnd ;DkGg
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ljQLo ;+:yfsf ultljlwx¿

zfvf k|jGwsx?nfO{ u|fxs klxrfg ;DaGwL tfnLd k|bfg ub}{

;+:yfsf ;xfos dxfk|jGwsåf/f Joj;fo k|j4{gdf zfvf k|jGwsx?nfO{ 
pTk|]/0ff hufpFb} 

hf]lvd klxrfg / Go"gLs/0f tfnLddf ;xefuL zfvf k|jGwsx? 

;+:yfsf ;~rfnsx? ;~rfns lzIff tfnLddf ;xefuL x'Fb}

zfvfdf sfo{/t ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ dfu{bz{g ub}{ ;+:yfsf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t
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gf]6



;~rfns ;ldlt Joj:yfkg ;d"x

>L lagf]b 1jfnL
cWoIf

>L lzj k|;fb 1jfnL
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

>L dg?kf kf}8]n
;xfos dxfk|jGws 

-k|d'v, ljQLo Joj:yfkg ljefu_

>L rGbg s'df/ ;/bf/
k|d'v, hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ljefu

>L b]jrGb| /fo
k|d'v, shf{ ljefu

>L 6f]k axfb'/ /f:sf]6L
k|d'v, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu

>L clgn ljZjsdf{
k|d'v, cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefu

>L xf]d k|;fb clwsf/L
k|d'v, ;fdfGo ;]jf ljefu

>L ;Gtf]if kf]v/]n
;~rfns

>L k'ik/fh 9sfn
;~rfns

>L lty{ ;fu/ cof{n
;~rfns -;j{;fwf/0f_

>L lzj k|;fb 1jfnL
sDkgL ;lrj

>L uf]kfn k|;fb a:ofn
;~rfns

>L ladn cfrfo{
;~rfns -;j{;fwf/0f_

>L ;'ldt kGyL
;"rgf k|ljlw ljefu
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aarambhachautari@gmail.com
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Covered District

Koshi Province

Madhesh 
Province 

Bagmati Province

Gandaki Province

Karnali Provinvce

Lumbini Province

Sudurpaschim 
Province
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